INTEGRITY

2010 ANNUAL REPORT

| CREATIVITY

| STABILITY



Chairman’s Letter

Kimco Realty owns North America’s largest portfolio of retail real estate.
Our properties are located in 44 states, Puerto Rico, Canada, Mexico and
South America.We have specialized in shopping center acquisitions,

development and management for more than 50 years.

Since our Initial Public Offering (IPO) almost 20 years ago, Kimco has
generated a total annualized return for shareholders in excess of |3%.

2010 Operating Review

Regaining Momentum 3
Continuing the Momentum in 201 |

The Kimco Spirit

| Financial Form 10K
Shareholder Information
Corporate Directory, Board of Directors




CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

“We have established a wonderful franchise in

owning and operating neighborhood and com-
munity shopping centers... focused on intrinsic

real estate values and always prepared for the

shifting fortunes of the retail tenant.”

Milton Cooper
Executive Chairman

Dear Friends and Associates:

In their letter that follows mine, Dave Henry and his sen-
ior leadership team have set forth, in a thorough and
thoughtful manner, our 2010 accomplishments and our
strategy for the future.

So permit me, in this letter, to share with you a bit
of nostalgia and some random thoughts concerning our
business.

This coming November will mark the 20th anniversary
of our IPO. Oh, what a difference 20 years can make! At
the close of 1991, the Dow Jones industrial average was
at 3,168. This was the first time it broke the 3,000 barrier.
Yet interest rates were quite high; LIBOR was 7.4% and
the Federal Reserve interest rate was 6.5%. Commercial
real estate was horribly out of favor; and many investors
viewed our asset class as the cause of the meltdown of
the entire savings and loan industry.

Despite the challenges, we at Kimco desired to be-
come a public company and we thus embarked upon a
two-and-a-half week “‘road show” to seek investor sup-
port for our IPO. Richard Saltzman, a current Director
of Kimco and the former head of Merrill Lynch’s Real
Estate Banking unit, spearheaded our effort to raise $128
million. It was a very challenging two and a half weeks.
(The comparison to our $346 million “overnight” equity
offering in December 2009 is striking.)

The investor refrain was, “Why buy an IPO? They all
trade down!” We just squeezed through; to paraphrase
Wellington at Waterloo, it was a close thing. Manage-
ment and friends bought approximately 5% of the offer-
ing. Our shares were priced at $20 a share, a very low
multiple of our projected 1992 FFO. The dividend yield
was 8.6% and, ves, the shares did trade down for a few
days. But our earnings estimates were conservative, and
by the end of 1992, we had far exceeded our guidance.
That may have been the origin of Kimco's mantra, ‘under-
promise and overperform.”

From that modest start, we have established a won-
derful franchise in owning and operating neighborhood
and community shopping centers. Retailing is a difficult
business, and represents a prime example of Schumpet-
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er's “creative destruction” We can list scores of once-
thriving retailers that no longer exist. The distinction and
difference for us is that we are retail real estate owners,
focused on intrinsic real estate values and always pre-
pared for the shifting fortunes of the retail tenant.

We have had so many retailers enter and exit our
centers over the years. By way of illustration, in our
Bridgehampton Center, located in Bridgehampton, N.Y,
the original tenant was W.T. Grant, followed by the
Woolco division of the EW. Woolworth Company,
followed by Caldor, and then by Kmart—but each paid
higher rent than its predecessor. This outcome can be
credited to a good retail location, strong relationships
with retailers and our focus on underlying real estate values.

Martin S.Kimmel, my partner of many years,and | have
always shared the conviction that our shopping centers
should provide space to tenants, including off-price retail-
ers and discounters, that sell everyday necessities, and
that these centers are superb investments. The propor
tion of land value to total property value (required by the
need to have four times more parking area than build-
ing area) ranks high compared with most other forms
of real estate. Rents from our tenants provide us with
the cash flow that, in effect, allows us to earn a retumn
while the underlying land increases in value due to popu-
lation growth and increasing density. Well-located land in
the U.S. has, historically and over time, been a very good
investment.

When, as now, we are experiencing low core inflation
and low interest rates and bond vields, | do believe that
a safe cash flow from quality shopping centers in good
locations warrants a valuation cap rate of something less
than 6%. On a risk-adjusted basis, the spread between



Cash flows from stable shopping centers, located on major
thoroughfares in thriving markets and enjoying strong tenancies,
are a wonderful investment attribute and safe haven.

the bond vyields of the credit tenants occupying these
shopping centers and a cap rate above 6% is too wide.

We should also keep in mind that there is severe
stress on municipal credits, even in such great states as
California, lllinois and Michigan. In this environment, se-
cure cash flows will be increasingly attractive to investors,
as will the diversification that a large property portfo-
lio such as ours (we have more than 15,000 individual
leases) provides. Over time, inflation will return, resulting
in higher rents and higher replacement costs, all leading to
higher values for our properties.

We are convinced that our business model can with-
stand the challenges of a slow-growth economy, stub-
bornly high unemployment and a struggling housing mar-
ket, and return us to a path of growth. Cash flows from
stable shopping centers, located on major thoroughfares
in thriving markets and enjoying strong tenancies, are
a wonderful investment attribute and safe haven. And,
despite the current softness in consumer spending, de-
mand for retail space is increasing because there are very
few new developments. Many retailers are experienc-
ing angst as to whether they will be able to meet their
expansion plans for 2012 store openings, and bargain-
ing power is slowly becoming more balanced between
owner and tenant.

We are quite proud that, despite the vicissitudes of
the market and the disruption wrought by the Great Re-
cession, a purchaser of our shares in November 991
has enjoyed a total return of 1,063% (including dividends)
and a compounded average annual total return of 13.7%;
these figures compare well with 39 1% and 8.7%, respec-
tively, for the S&P 500.

My Kimco partners, Dave Henry, Mike Pappagallo,
Glenn Cohen and Barbara Pooley, have contributed im-
mensely to our success. At the January meeting of the
Trustees of the International Council of Shopping Cen-
ters, we were delighted that Dave was nominated to be
the next Chairman of the ICSC. The Trustees gave Dave
a standing ovation, which is just further evidence of the
respect that he enjoys among his peers. Dave is a great
people person and a wonderful leader. Mike has smooth-
ly shifted his responsibilities for Kimco from Chief Finan-
cial Officer to Chief Operating Officer without missing
a beat. Our Regional Presidents have all told me how
enthused they are about working with him. Glenn, who
joined our company in 1995, transitioned very comfort-
ably from Treasurer to CFO. He is well-respected as the
“ombudsman of our balance sheet” Barbara has been a
driver of change in so many areas of the company. She
has brought clarity and transparency of our business to
the investment community. Her industry-wide recogni-
tion is further highlighted by being named Institutional
Investor magazine's top-ranked IR professional for two
straight years, based upon the votes of REIT investors.

Our job continues as it always has: to achieve favor-
able returns for our shareholders, as well as for all the
constituencies that rely on us. Kimco’s portfolio, guided
by our investment and property management profession-
als, should provide, over time, steady increases in recurring
cash flow and the dividends that so many of our investors
desire. Additionally, we continue to pursue avenues that
enable us to profit from the perturbations in the retalil
real estate markets, while using our capital wisely. We are
grateful to our associates, investors, retailer friends and
others who help us to accomplish these goals.

Milton Cooper
Executive Chairman



2010 OPERATING REVIEW

“Kimco entered 2010 with a commitment to
reinvigorate the power and promise of our shop-
ping center franchise. We are pleased to report
that we accomplished the things we set out to
do. Our shareholders realized a total return of
39% in 2010... and we exceeded our financial
targets by reaching $1.13 per share in Funds from
Operations.”

David B. Henry
Vice Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer

Dear Fellow Shareholders, Partners and Associates:

Kimco entered 2010 with a commitment to reinvigorate
the power and promise of our shopping center fran-
chise. We are pleased to report that we accomplished
the things we set out to do, and after two years of sub-
optimal stock performance, our shareholders realized a
total return of 39% in 2010, including an increase in the
quarterly common dividend of 12.5%, to an annualized
level of 72 cents per common share.

We exceeded our financial targets by reaching $1.13
per share in Funds from Operations (FFO), the most
common measure of a REIT's financial performance.
Our Recurring Funds from Operations—which adjusts
FFO for transaction profits and losses and impairment
charges—increased by just under 5%, to $465.4 million.

Regaining Momentum

In our letter to you last year; we highlighted certain pri-
orities for 2010 that we felt were necessary to steady
the business, increase shareholder value and position us
for future growth. Twelve months later; we have made
significant progress toward those goals.

Focusing Our Resources on
Shopping Center Value-Creation

Most real estate companies felt the sting of the economic
recession and financial crisis that overwhelmed the busi-
ness environment in 2008 and much of 2009. During
that time, demand for space fell, along with the rents
retailers were willing to pay. Small businesses were hit
particularly hard.

In 2010, the momentum shifted. While the smaller
store owners still faced headwinds in a credit-constrained
environment, national retailers trimmed their expenses,

improved their inventory management, and enhanced
their profitability and balance sheets. And as the eco-
nomic climate started to recover, they began to search
for ways to expand their businesses again. With avail-
able high-quality space at a premium, Kimco benefited
from the increased demand for such properties by sign-
ing more than 2.6 million square feet of new leases in the
U.S. during the year. In addition, we successfully extended
with our existing tenants more than 900 leases encom-
passing over 4.3 million square feet. Our total portfolio
ended the year with an occupancy level of 93%, a 40-ba-
sis-point improvement from the beginning of the year

Another encouraging sign was the positive operating
results we achieved from our same-site portfolio. (This
metric compares the change in income for properties
operating in both periods being measured.) We gener
ated positive same-site net operating income in each of
the last three quarters of 2010, after experiencing five
consecutive quarters of negative results. This turnaround
was faster than most of Kimco's retail REIT peers and un-
derscores the resilience of our portfolio. It's also a testa-
ment to the tireless efforts of our operating team, whose
focus never waivered from improving property-level oc-
cupancy and reducing expenses, while also finding ways
to generate additional revenue through creative ancillary
income programs.

The improving economic landscape also created more
opportunities to enhance value in our shopping centers
through redevelopment, re-tenanting and expansion.
Our redevelopment at St. Andrews Center in Charleston,
S.C., is now complete and features a new Harris Teeter
supermarket. We also initiated a variety of new proj-
ects during 2010 that we will harvest over the next few
years. For example, we demolished a vacant box from



the Value City Furniture bankruptcy to build a new Giant
Food supermarket and add an additional outparcel at our
Springfield Shopping Center in Springfield, Pa.; similarly, in
Elsmere, Del,, we are building a BJ's Wholesale Club. In
Pittsburgh, we attracted Whole Foods to our Wexford
Plaza Center, thereby eliminating a line of vacant shop
space. Our pipeline continues to grow, and we have new
projects commencing in both Miami and Lakeland, Fla.

As the leasing environment picked up in the U.S. dur-
ing the latter half of 2009 and throughout 2010, a similar
trend was emerging in Mexico. All of Kimco's 55 shop-
ping centers in Mexico have completed construction, and
31 of those properties are now fully operational. Activity
in Mexico picked up markedly over the past year as we
leased more than 700,000 square feet of new space, re-
sulting in an additional $9 million contribution to Kimco's
earnings from this portfolio.

Reducing Our Non-Retail Holdings

As we returned our focus exclusively to our core com-
petency of owning and managing retail real estate, we
ceased making investments in areas that did not fit that
strategy. We began the orderly liquidation of more than
$1 billion in non-retail assets. In 2010, we received more
than $130 million in cash proceeds from the sales of
these assets, reducing their total portfolio value to just
under $800 million, representing less than 6% of our
gross balance sheet assets.

Reducing Leverage

The return of the capital markets was swift and convinc-
ing during the past year Capital became available at sig-
nificantly lower cost and from numerous sources. We ac-
cessed capital in a variety of ways, including issuing $175
million in perpetual preferred stock, extending maturi-
ties of corporate debt by prefunding near-term maturi-
ties with new long-term bonds at advantageous pricing,
and successfully refinancing our Canadian debt balances.
More importantly, we reduced absolute debt levels by
$375 million, and improved a key metric known as “Net
Debt to Recurring EBITDA” to 6.3 times, well on our
way to our stated goal of 6.0 times by the end of 2012.
We also eliminated a significant level of debt in our joint
venture programs guaranteed by Kimco. These actions
helped solidify our investment-grade debt ratings from all
three major credit rating agencies.

Establishing New Institutional Joint Venture
Relationships

Joint venture investment programs with institutional in-
vestors have served us well over the years. Our partners
provide access to a source of capital that is largely un-
tapped by many REITs; this access remains a competitive
advantage for Kimco when acquiring high-quality shop-
ping centers. New programs were established in the U.S.
with three new partners during 2010: Canada Pension
Plan Investment Board, the second largest pension fund in



We generated positive same-site net operating income in

each of the last three quarters of 2010. This turnaround
was faster than most of Kimco's retail REIT peers and
underscores the resilience of our portfolio.

Michael V. Pappagallo

" Executive Vice President
& Chief Operating Officer

SUBURBAN SQUARE |
Philadelphia Market
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The return of the capital markets was swift and convincing
during the past year. Capital became available at significantly
lower cost and from numerous sources.

lenn G. Cohen
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer

(above)
MUNSEY PARK

(left, top of page)
MANHASSET CENTER

Long Island, New York



Canada; BIG Shopping Centers, an Israeli public company

that owns and develops retail properties throughout Is-
rael; and Cisterra LLC, a real estate private equity fund.
In Canada, we completed our first joint venture property
acquisition with Sun Life Financial, a leading international
financial products and services company. In addition to
providing a fresh source of investment capital, these new
programs allowed Prudential Real Estate Investors, an ex-
isting partner, to exit some of its real estate investments
with us. Kimco retained its management and ownership
position in these assets after they were transferred to our
new partners.

Remaining Poised to Take Advantage of Shopping
Center and Retailer-Owned Real Estate Opportunities
With the catalysts of low interest rates, a revitalized fi-
nancing market and a dearth of investment alternatives,
demand for high-quality real estate soared again. Kimco
was ideally positioned to take advantage of the rebound-
ing market after the actions we took to enhance our own
capital structure, establish new partnerships, and improve
liquidity through asset sales. During 2010 and the first
part of 201 |, we re-entered the acquisition market with
the purchase of 10 properties with an aggregate transac-
tion value of $269 million.

Continuing the Momentum in 201 |

Moving into 201 |, our message remains the same: We
intend to build on the success and momentum of 2010
and move ever closer to our vision of being the premier
owner and manager of high-quality shopping centers.
Not surprisingly, our business priorities are essentially the
same as last year, even as we remain vigilant, responsive
and flexible to meet ever-changing economic, operating
and financing conditions.

A shopping center portfolio well-located in strong
markets and occupied by solid, credit-worthy tenants
can serve as a stable source of cash flow, regardless
of the gyrations of the market and the business cycle.
Those same shopping centers also can grow operat-
ing cash flows and create value through rising rents,
while offering the opportunity for repositioning and re-
merchandising for even more value. The equation of
stability + growth is our focus, and our business strat-
egy and tactics are geared to delivering on those twin
objectives.

Asset-Level Execution

Our shopping center assets are the core of our busi-
ness and our operating teams are singularly focused on
extracting maximum value and increasing cash flow from
them. The key to our success is our tenants’ success: by
creating the right shopping environments to drive cus-
tomer traffic to our centers, we provide greater oppor-
tunity for our more than 7,000 tenants to thrive.



To accomplish that, our key objectives are:

e continued improvement in occupancy rates by re-
leasing space, recapturing lost rents, and aggressively
focusing on retaining in-place tenants;

* the pursuit of selected expansion, redevelopment and
increased density; and

* proactive property management and the growth of
alternative and ancillary income programs.

Knowledge of retailer strategies and space needs is
critical to our leasing strategy, and understanding the
store performance and operating issues of our existing
tenants is key to our efforts to retain them. Our daily
interaction with tenants is supplemented by both a na-
tional portfolio review process, as well as frequent re-
gional reviews. In our national program, we conduct well
over 100 reviews with existing and prospective tenants
each year. These reviews provide our leasing and asset
management teams with critical leads and opportunities
to improve occupancy, increase retention rates, and cre-
atively address retailer issues.

Portfolio Recycling

In the course of our 50-year history, we grew from a
company that only operated east of the Mississippi River
to an international business with properties in 44 U.S.
states, Puerto Rico, Canada, Mexico and South America.
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With current investments in more than 950 shopping
centers, it was time to take a hard look at each asset and
ask if it was consistent with our strategic goal of portfolio
stability and growth. We reached the conclusion that our
shareholders' interests would be best served by more
aggressively exiting those assets that do not fit our strate-
gic long-term focus. That means divesting properties that
are outside of Kimco's primary operating markets, do not
fit our desired asset profile, or have limited opportunity
for growth or repositioning. We identified approximately
I50 such “non-strategic’’ properties, which represent
about 0% of the company's total base rental income.

Over the next few years, we will sell these assets and
use the cash proceeds to reinvest in our strategic core
properties, as well as acquire new properties that meet
our optimal asset profile.

Disciplined External Growth
The velocity of transactions in the real estate industry
has picked up dramatically, and asking prices for the best
properties have increased considerably. Industry observ-
ers in 2009 suggested that the highest quality proper
ties in major markets would be acquired with a yield of
approximately 9% for the first year of operation, if one
could even find a property to buy.

Today, those returns are closer to 6%, and demand is
fueled by multiple bidders. However, growth and return
expectations implied by this pricing of assets may not be
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A shopping center portfolio well-located in
strong markets and occupied by solid, credit-worthy
tenants can serve as a stable source of cash flow.
The equation of stability + growth is our focus.

Barbara M. Pooley

Executive Vice President &
Chief Administration Officer

STAFFORD MARKET PLACE : : 3 3
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Joint venture investment programs with institutional
investors have served us well over the years.
Our partners provide access to a source of capital
that is largely untapped by many REITs; this access
remains a competitive advantage for Kimco.

Scott'G. Onufrey
Vice President & Managing Director,
Investment Management

y  ANAHEIM PLAZA
Ll Anaheim, California



With available high-quality space at a premium,
Kimco benefited from the increased demand for such
properties by signing more than 2.6 million square feet

of new leases in the U.S. during the year.

consistent with the fundamentals of the shopping center
business, specifically, demand versus supply of space, mar-
ket rents, and the competitive landscape. This represents
a flashing yellow light to us—not that we will ignore ac-
quisition opportunities, but rather that we will underwrite
the economics of a potential transaction with an added
dose of caution.

Further Reduction in Non-Retail Holdings

With just under $800 million of investment in non-retalil
properties remaining, we will aggressively pursue cre-
ative approaches to dispose of these non-core assets. A
substantial amount of these investments involve other
partners or investors, and creating an alignment of inter-
ests to advance our disposition strategy is an important
step in the process. Our long-standing relationships with
these business partners enabled us to make significant
progress in 2010 and accelerate the process for 201 1.
We expect to exit substantially all of these major asset
positions by the end of 2013 and, of course, we will strive
to accomplish it sooner.

Bruce Rubenstein

Vice President, General Counsel

& Secretary
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Liquidity and Conservative Capital Structure

Kimco's significant success over the past two years in re-
ducing debt and improving our balance sheet, coupled
with the robust recovery in the capital markets, might
cause some to conclude that the crisis in the capital mar-
kets in late 2008 and early 2009 should be considered
an aberration and should now be forgotten. We do not
intend to forget.

Ve are secure in our current access to capital, includ-
ing more than $1.5 billion in credit line availability, narrow-
ing spreads on our unsecured bonds, and access to insti-
tutional and public market equity capital. However, we
also acknowledge that a strong capital position is char-
acterized by ample liquidity, manageable debt loads with
staggered maturities, and strong debt and fixed-charge
coverage ratios—all of which are fundamental to manag-
ing through the ups and downs of the business and real
estate cycles.

We intend to meet our stated objectives of reduc-
ing net debt to EBITDA and improving our fixed-charge
coverage ratio. This will continue to position our balance
sheet for optimal performance in both good and bad op-
erating climates.



We intend to build on the success and momentum of 2010
and move ever closer to our vision of being the premier
owner and manager of high-quality shopping centers.

The Kimco Spirit

The challenges and responsibilities facing a public com-
pany are ever increasing, but our mandate of increasing
shareholder value remains paramount. To accomplish this
primary objective, we concentrate on offering creative
leasing options and providing the highest quality manage-
ment of our shopping centers for our tenants; we man-
age our balance sheet responsibly; we focus on execu-
tion excellence for our investment partners; we provide
a secure and motivating environment for our associates;
and we aim to deliver a steadily growing, secure and sus-
tainable dividend for our shareholders. We also are ever
mindful of the increasing need to broaden our corporate
mandate for social and environmental responsibility.

O S,

David B. Henry Michael V. Pappagallo

(right)
Robert Nadler

President, Central Region

(left)
Conor Flynn
President, Northwest Region

The 700 associates of Kimco are up for the challenge.
The dedication and steadfastness of our people was evi-
dent through the downturn in the economy. Their focus,
creativity, and resolve were on display as the operating
environment improved, and now their energy and ex-
citement is growing as the momentum increases in our
business.

The Kimco team has never been more determined to
deliver outstanding results for all of our stakeholders—
shareholders, tenants, equity investment partners, and
Kimco associates alike. Our intense passion for the shop-
ping center business bodes well for our future togethen

warifll I Pk K

Glenn G. Cohen Barbara M. Pooley

OUR REGIONAL LEADERS

Wilbur “Tom” Simmons I

President,

Mid-Atlantic/Northeast Region

Paul D. Puma

President, Florida/Southeast Region

Kelly Smith

Managing Director, Canada

(far left)
John Visconsi
President, Pacific Southwest Region

(left)
Mike Melson
Managing Director, Latin America
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010

OR
OO0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 1-10899

Kimco Realty Corporation
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Maryland 13-2744380
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation
or organization)

3333 New Hyde Park Road, New Hyde Park, NY 11042-0020
(Address of principal executive offices  Zip Code)

(516) 869-9000
(Registrant's telephone number; including area code)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

(ILR.S. Employer Identification No.)

Name of each exchange on

Title of each class which registered

Common Stock, par value $.01 per share. New York Stock Exchange
Depositary Shares, each representing one-tenth of a share of 6.65% Class F Cumulative Redeemable

Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share. New York Stock Exchange
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Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share. New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.  Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section |13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.  Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section |3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405 of this chapter) is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in
Part Il of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form [0-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer; an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer; or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting company’ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer O
Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company [
(Do not check if a small reporting company.)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes O No
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K, together with other statements and information publicly disseminated by Kimco Realty Corporation
(the “Company") contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 2|E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Company intends such forward-looking statements
to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995 and includes this statement for purposes of complying with the safe harbor provisions. Forward-looking statements, which are
based on certain assumptions and describe the Company’s future plans, strategies and expectations, are generally identifiable by use
of the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project” or similar expressions. You should not rely on forward-
looking statements since they involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which are, in some cases, beyond the
Company's control and could materially affect actual results, performances or achievements. Factors which may cause actual results
to differ materially from current expectations include, but are not limited to (i) general adverse economic and local real estate condi-
tions, (i) the inability of major tenants to continue paying their rent obligations due to bankruptcy, insolvency or general downturn in
their business, (iii) financing risks, such as the inability to obtain equity, debt or other sources of financing or refinancing on favorable
terms, (iv) the Company's ability to raise capital by selling its assets, (v) changes in governmental laws and regulations, (vi) the level and
volatility of interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates, (vii) the availability of suitable acquisition opportunities, (viii) valuation
of joint venture investments, (ix) valuation of marketable securities and other investments, (X) increases in operating costs, (xi) changes
in the dividend policy for the Company’s common stock, (xii) the reduction in the Company's income in the event of multiple lease
terminations by tenants or a failure by multiple tenants to occupy their premises in a shopping center, (xiii) impairment charges, (xiv)
unanticipated changes in the Company’s intention or ability to prepay certain debt prior to maturity and/or hold certain securities until
maturity and the risks and uncertainties identified under ltem [A, “Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Accordingly, there
is no assurance that the Company’s expectations will be realized.

PART |

ITEM |. BUSINESS

BACKGROUND

Kimco Realty Corporation, a Maryland corporation, is one of the nation's largest owners and operators of neighborhood and
community shopping centers. The terms “Kimco,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” each refer to Kimco Realty Corporation and
our subsidiaries unless the context indicates otherwise. The Company is a self-administered real estate investment trust (“REIT") and
has owned and operated neighborhood and community shopping centers for more than 50 years. The Company has not engaged, nor
does it expect to retain, any REIT advisors in connection with the operation of its properties. As of December 31, 2010, the Company
had interests in 95| shopping center properties (the “Combined Shopping Center Portfolio”) aggregating 138.0 million square feet of
gross leasable area (“GLA") and 906 other property interests, primarily through the Company's preferred equity investments, other
real estate investments and non-retail properties, totaling approximately 34.4 million square feet of GLA, for a grand total of 1,857
properties aggregating 172.4 million square feet of GLA, located in 44 states, Puerto Rico, Canada, Mexico, Chile, Brazil and Peru.
The Company’s ownership interests in real estate consist of its consolidated portfolio and in portfolios where the Company owns an
economic interest, such as properties in the Company’s investment real estate management programs, where the Company partners
with institutional investors and also retains management. The Company believes its portfolio of neighborhood and community shopping
center properties is the largest (measured by GLA) currently held by any publicly traded REIT.

The Company's executive offices are located at 3333 New Hyde Park Road, New Hyde Park, New York [1042-0020 and its
telephone numberis (516) 869-9000. Nearly all operating functions, including leasing, legal, construction, data processing, maintenance,
finance and accounting are administered by the Company from its executive offices in New Hyde Park, New York and supported by
the Company's regional offices. As of December 31, 2010, a total of 687 persons are employed by the Company.

The Company's Web site is located at http://www.kimcorealty.com. The information contained on our Web site does not constitute
part of this annual report on Form [0-K. On the Company’s Web site you can obtain, free of charge, a copy of our annual report on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursu-
ant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable, after we file such material
electronically with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC").

The Company began operations through its predecessor, The Kimco Corporation, which was organized in 1966 upon the contribution
of several shopping center properties owned by its principal stockholders. In 1973, these principals formed the Company as a Delaware
corporation, and, in 1985, the operations of The Kimco Corporation were merged into the Company. The Company completed its
initial public stock offering (the “IPO”) in November 1991, and, commencing with its taxable year which began January |, 1992, elected
to qualify as a REIT in accordance with Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).
If, as the Company believes, it is organized and operates in such a manner so as to qualify and remain qualified as a REIT under the
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Code, the Company generally will not be subject to federal income tax, provided that distributions to its stockholders equal at least
the amount of its REIT taxable income as defined under the Code. In 1994, the Company reorganized as a Maryland corporation. In
March 2006, the Company was added to the S & P 500 Index, an index containing the stock of 500 Large

Cap companies, most of which are U.S. corporations. The Company’s common stock, Class F Depositary Shares, Class G Depositary
Shares and Class H Depositary Shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE") under the trading symbols “KIM", “KIMprF",
“KIMprG” and “KIMprH", respectively.

The Company'’s initial growth resulted primarily from ground-up development and the construction of shopping centers. Subsequently,
the Company revised its growth strategy to focus on the acquisition of existing shopping centers and continued its expansion across the
nation. The Company implemented its investment real estate management format through the establishment of various institutional joint
venture programs in which the Company has noncontrolling interests. The Company earns management fees, acquisition fees, disposition
fees and promoted interests based on value creation. The Company continued its geographic expansion with investments in Canada,
Mexico, Chile, Brazil and Peru. The Company’s revenues and equity in income from its foreign investments are as follows (in millions):

2010 2009 2008

Revenues (consolidated):

Mexico $354 $234 $203

South America $38 $15 $04
Equity in income (unconsolidated joint ventures):

Canada $265 $25.1 $41.8

Mexico $120 $70 $17.1

South America $01 $04 $02

The Company, through its taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRS"), as permitted by the Tax Relief Extension Act of 1999, has been engaged
in various retail real estate related opportunities, including (i) ground-up development of neighborhood and community shopping centers
and the subsequent sale thereof upon completion, (i) retail real estate management and disposition services, which primarily focused on
leasing and disposition strategies for real estate property interests of both healthy and distressed retailers and (iii) acting as an agent or
principal in connection with tax-deferred exchange transactions. The Company may consider other investments through taxable REIT
subsidiaries should suitable opportunities arise.

In addition, the Company has capitalized on its established expertise in retail real estate by establishing other ventures in which the
Company owns a smaller equity interest and provides management, leasing and operational support for those properties. The Company
has also provided preferred equity capital in the past to real estate entrepreneurs and, from time to time, provides real estate capital
and management services to both healthy and distressed retailers. The Company has also made selective investments in secondary
market opportunities where a security or other investment is, in management’s judgment, priced below the value of the underlying
assets, however these investments are subject to volatility within the equity and debt markets.

OPERATING AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The Company'’s vision is to be the premier owner and operator of shopping centers with its core business operations focusing on
owning and operating neighborhood and community shopping centers through investments in North America. This vision will entail a
shift away from non-retail assets that the Company currently holds. These investments include non-retail preferred equity investments,
marketable securities, mortgages on non-retail properties and several urban mixed-use properties. The Company'’s plan is to sell certain
non-retail assets and investments. In addition, the Company continues to be committed to broadening its institutional management
business by forming joint ventures with high quality domestic and foreign institutional partners for the purpose of investing in neighbor-
hood and community shopping centers.

The Company’s investment objective is to increase cash flow, current income and, consequently, the value of its existing portfolio
of properties and to seek continued growth through (i) the retail re-tenanting, renovation and expansion of its existing centers and (ii)
the selective acquisition of established income-producing real estate properties and properties requiring significant re-tenanting and
redevelopment, primarily in neighborhood and community shopping centers in geographic regions in which the Company presently
operates. The Company may consider investments in other real estate sectors and in geographic markets where it does not presently
operate should suitable opportunities arise.

The Company’s neighborhood and community shopping center properties are designed to attract local area customers and typically
are anchored by a discount department store, a supermarket or a drugstore tenant offering day-to-day necessities rather than high-
priced luxury items. The Company may either purchase or lease income-producing properties in the future and may also participate
with other entities in property ownership through partnerships, joint ventures or similar types of co-ownership. Equity investments may
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be subject to existing mortgage financing and/or other indebtedness. Financing or other indebtedness may be incurred simultaneously or
subsequently in connection with such investments. Any such financing or indebtedness would have priority over the Company's equity
interest in such property. The Company may make loans to joint ventures in which it may or may not participate.

The Company seeks to reduce its operating and leasing risks through diversification achieved by the geographic distribution of its
properties and a large tenant base. As of December 31, 2010, no single neighborhood and community shopping center accounted for
more than 0.8% of the Company’s annualized base rental revenues, including the proportionate share of base rental revenues from
properties in which the Company has less than a 100% economic interest, or more than 1.0% of the Company’s total shopping center
GLA. At December 31, 2010, the Company’s five largest tenants were The Home Depot, T)X Companies, Wal-Mart, Sears Holdings
and Best Buy which represented approximately 3.0%, 2.8%, 2.4%, 2.3% and 1.6%, respectively, of the Company's annualized base rental
revenues, including the proportionate share of base rental revenues from properties in which the Company has less than a 100%
economic interest.

As one of the original participants in the growth of the shopping center industry and one of the nation’s largest owners and opera-
tors of neighborhood and community shopping centers, the Company has established close relationships with a large number of major
national and regional retailers and maintains a broad network of industry contacts. Management is associated with and/or actively par-
ticipates in many shopping center and REIT industry organizations. Notwithstanding these relationships, there are numerous regional and
local commercial developers, real estate companies, financial institutions and other investors who compete with the Company for the
acquisition of properties and other investment opportunities and in seeking tenants who will lease space in the Company’s properties.

ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS

We are subject to certain business and legal risks including, but not limited to, the following:

Loss of our tax status as a real estate investment trust could have significant adverse consequences to us and the value of our
securities.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT for federal income tax purposes under the Code. We believe we have operated so as to
qualify as a REIT under the Code and believe that our current organization and method of operation comply with the rules and regula-
tions promulgated under the Code to enable us to continue to qualify as a REIT. However, there can be no assurance that we have
qualified or will continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes.

Qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Code provisions for which there are only limited
judicial and administrative interpretations. The determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely within our control
may affect our ability to qualify as a REIT. New legislation, regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions could significantly
change the tax laws with respect to qualification as a REIT, the federal income tax consequences of such qualification or the desirability
of an investment in a REIT relative to other investments.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we must satisfy a number of requirements, including requirements regarding the composition of our
assets and a requirement that at least 95% of our gross income in any year must be derived from qualifying sources, such as ‘“rents
from real property.” Also, we must make distributions to stockholders aggregating annually at least 90% of our REIT taxable income,
excluding net capital gains. Furthermore, we own a direct or indirect interest in certain subsidiary REITs which elected to be taxed
as REI[Ts for federal income tax purposes under the Code. Provided that each subsidiary REIT qualifies as a REIT, our interest in such
subsidiary REIT will be treated as a qualifying real estate asset for purposes of the REIT asset tests. To qualify as a REIT, the subsidiary
REIT must independently satisfy all of the REIT qualification requirements. The failure of a subsidiary REIT to fail to qualify as a REIT,
could have an adverse effect on our ability to comply with the REIT income and asset tests, and thus our ability to qualify as a REIT.

If we lose our REIT status, we will face serious tax consequences that will substantially reduce the funds available to pay dividends
to stockholders for each of the years involved because:

» we would not be allowed a deduction for distributions to stockholders in computing our taxable income and would be subject
to federal income tax at regular corporate rates;

* we could be subject to the federal alternative minimum tax and possibly increased state and local taxes;

* unless we were entitled to relief under statutory provisions, we could not elect to be subject to tax as a REIT for four taxable
years following the year during which we were disqualified; and

* we would not be required to make distributions to stockholders.

As a result of all these factors, our failure to qualify as a REIT could also impair our ability to expand our business, raise capital and
could materially adversely affect the value of our securities.

To maintain our REIT status, we may be forced to borrow funds on a short-term basis during unfavorable market conditions.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally must distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income each year, exclud-
ing capital gains, and we will be subject to regular corporate income taxes to the extent that we distribute less than 100% of our net
taxable income each year. In addition, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the amount, if any, by which distributions
paid by us in any calendar year are less than the sum of 85% of our ordinary income, 95% of our capital gain net income and 100%
of our undistributed income from prior years. While historically we have satisfied these distribution requirements by making cash
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distributions to our stockholders, a REIT is permitted to satisfy these requirements by making distributions of cash or other property,
including, in limited circumstances, its own stock. Assuming we continue to satisfy these distributions requirements with cash, we may
need to borrow funds to meet the REIT distribution requirements even if the then prevailing market conditions are not favorable for
these borrowings. These borrowing needs could result from differences in timing between the actual receipt of cash and inclusion of
income for federal income tax purposes, or the effect of non-deductible capital expenditures, the creation of reserves or required debt
or amortization payments.

Adverse global market and economic conditions may impede our ability to generate sufficient income to pay expenses and maintain
our properties.

The economic performance and value of our properties is subject to all of the risks associated with owning and operating real
estate including:

+ changes in the national, regional and local economic climate;

« local conditions, including an oversupply of, or a reduction in demand for, space in properties like those that we own;

« the attractiveness of our properties to tenants;

« the ability of tenants to pay rent, particularly anchor tenants with leases in multiple locations;

« tenants who may declare bankruptcy and/or close stores;

« competition from other available properties to attract and retain tenants;

« changes in market rental rates;

« the need to periodically pay for costs to repair, renovate and re-let space;

« changes in operating costs, including costs for maintenance, insurance and real estate taxes;

« the fact that the expenses of owning and operating properties are not necessarily reduced when circumstances such as market

factors and competition cause a reduction in income from the properties; and
« changes in laws and governmental regulations, including those governing usage, zoning, the environment and taxes.

Competition may limit our ability to purchase new properties, generate sufficient income from tenants and may decrease the occu-
pancy and rental rates for our properties.

Our properties consist primarily of community and neighborhood shopping centers and other retail properties. Our performance
therefore is generally linked to economic conditions in the market for retail space. In the future, the market for retail space could be
adversely affected by:

« weakness in the national, regional and local economies;

« the adverse financial condition of some large retailing companies;

+ ongoing consolidation in the retail sector; and

« the excess amount of retail space in a number of markets.

In addition, numerous commercial developers and real estate companies compete with us in seeking tenants for our existing
properties and properties for acquisition. New regional malls, open-air lifestyle centers, or other retail shopping centers with more
convenient locations or better rents may attract tenants or cause them to seek more favorable lease terms at or prior to renewal.
Retailers at our properties may face increasing competition from other retailers, e-commerce, outlet malls, discount shopping clubs,
catalog companies, direct mail, telemarketing and home shopping networks, all of which could (i) reduce rents payable to us; (i) reduce
our ability to attract and retain tenants at our properties; and (iii) lead to increased vacancy rates at our properties. We may fail to
anticipate the effects on our properties of changes in consumer buying practices, particularly of sales over the Internet and the resulting
retailing practices and space needs of our tenants or a general downturn in our tenants’ businesses, which may cause tenants to close
stores or default in payment of rent.

Our performance depends on our ability to collect rent from tenants, our tenants’ financial condition and our tenants maintaining
leases for our properties.

At any time, our tenants may experience a downturn in their business that may significantly weaken their financial condition. As a
result, our tenants may delay a number of lease commencements, decline to extend or renew leases upon expiration, fail to make rental
payments when due, close stores or declare bankruptcy. Any of these actions could result in the termination of the tenants’ leases and
the loss of rental income attributable to these tenants’ leases. In the event of a default by a tenant, we may experience delays and costs
in enforcing our rights as landlord under the terms of our leases.

In addition, multiple lease terminations by tenants or a failure by multiple tenants to occupy their premises in a shopping center
could result in lease terminations or significant reductions in rent by other tenants in the same shopping centers under the terms of
some leases. In that event, we may be unable to re-lease the vacated space at attractive rents or at all, and our rental payments from
our continuing tenants could significantly decrease. The occurrence of any of the situations described above, particularly if it involves a
substantial tenant with leases in multiple locations, could have a material adverse effect on our performance.

A tenant that files for bankruptcy protection may not continue to pay us rent. A bankruptcy filing by or relating to one of our ten-
ants or a lease guarantor would bar all efforts by us to collect pre-bankruptcy debts from the tenant or the lease guarantor, or their
property, unless the bankruptcy court permits us to do so. A tenant or lease guarantor bankruptcy could delay our efforts to collect
past due balances under the relevant leases and could ultimately preclude collection of these sums. If a lease is rejected by a tenant in
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bankruptcy, we would have only a general unsecured claim for damages. As a result, it is likely that we would recover substantially less
than the full value of any unsecured claims we hold, if at all.

We may be unable to sell our real estate property investments when appropriate or on favorable terms.

Real estate property investments are illiquid and generally cannot be disposed of quickly. In addition, the federal tax code imposes
restrictions on a REIT's ability to dispose of properties that are not applicable to other types of real estate companies. Therefore, we
may not be able to vary our portfolio in response to economic or other conditions promptly or on favorable terms.

We may acquire or develop properties or acquire other real estate related companies and this may create risks.

We may acquire or develop properties or acquire other real estate related companies when we believe that an acquisition or
development is consistent with our business strategies. We may not succeed in consummating desired acquisitions or in completing
developments on time or within budget. When we do pursue a project or acquisition, we may not succeed in leasing newly developed
or acquired properties at rents sufficient to cover the costs of acquisition or development and operations. Difficulties in integrating
acquisitions may prove costly or time-consuming and could divert management's attention. Acquisitions or developments in new markets
or industries where we do not have the same level of market knowledge may result in poorer than anticipated performance. We may
also abandon acquisition or development opportunities that management has begun pursuing and consequently fail to recover expenses
already incurred and have devoted management’s time to a matter not consummated. Furthermore, our acquisitions of new properties
or companies will expose us to the liabilities of those properties or companies, some of which we may not be aware of at the time of
the acquisition. In addition, development of our existing properties presents similar risks.

We face competition in pursuing these acquisition or development opportunities that could increase our costs.

We face competition in the acquisition, development, operation and sale of real property from others engaged in real estate invest-
ment. Some of these competitors may have greater financial resources than we do. This could result in competition for the acquisition
of properties for tenants who lease or consider leasing space in our existing and subsequently acquired properties and for other real
estate investment opportunities.

These properties may have characteristics or deficiencies currently unknown to us that affect their value or revenue potential.
It is also possible that the operating performance of these properties may decline under our management. As we acquire additional
properties, we will be subject to risks associated with managing new properties, including lease-up and tenant retention. In addition,
our ability to manage our growth effectively will require us to successfully integrate our new acquisitions into our existing management
structure. We may not succeed with this integration or effectively manage additional properties. Also, newly acquired properties may
not perform as expected.

We do not have exclusive control over our joint venture and preferred equity investments, such that we are unable to ensure that
our objectives will be pursued.

We have invested in some cases as a co-venturer or partner in properties instead of owning directly. In these investments, we do
not have exclusive control over the development, financing, leasing, management and other aspects of these investments. As a result,
the co-venturer or partner might have interests or goals that are inconsistent with ours, take action contrary to our interests or
otherwise impede our objectives. These investments involve risks and uncertainties, including the risk of the co-venturer or partner
failing to provide capital and fulfilling its obligations, which may result in certain liabilities to us for guarantees and other commitments,
the risk of conflicts arising between us and our partners and the difficulty of managing and resolving such conflicts, and the difficulty of
managing or otherwise monitoring such business arrangements. The co-venturer or partner also might become insolvent or bankrupt,
which may result in significant losses to us.

Although our joint venture arrangements may allow us to share risks with our joint-venture partners, these arrangements may also
decrease our ability to manage risk. Joint ventures have additional risks, such as:

 potentially inferior financial capacity, diverging business goals and strategies and our need for the venture partner’s continued
cooperation;

 our inability to take actions with respect to the joint venture activities that we believe are favorable if our joint venture partner
does not agree;

 our inability to control the legal entity that has title to the real estate associated with the joint venture;

 our lenders may not be easily able to sell our joint venture assets and investments or view them less favorably as collateral, which
could negatively affect our liquidity and capital resources;

* our joint venture partners can take actions that we may not be able to anticipate or prevent, which could result in negative
impacts on our debt and equity; and

* our joint venture partners’ business decisions or other actions or omissions may result in harm to our reputation or adversely
affect the value of our investments.

Our joint venture and preferred equity investments generally own real estate properties for which the economic performance and
value is subject to all the risks associated with owning and operating real estate as described above.



We intend to sell many of our non-retail assets over the next several years and may not be able to recover our investments, which
may result in significant losses to us.

No assurance can be given that we will be able to recover the current carrying amount of all of our non-retail properties and
investments and those of our unconsolidated joint ventures in the future. Our failure to do so would require us to recognize impairment
charges for the period in which we reached that conclusion, which could materially and adversely affect us.

We have significant international operations, which may be affected by economic, political and other risks associated with interna-
tional operations, and this could adversely affect our business.

The risks we face in international business operations include, but are not limited to:

* currency risks, including currency fluctuations;

* unexpected changes in legislative and regulatory requirements;

* potential adverse tax burdens;

* burdens of complying with different accounting and permitting standards, labor laws and a wide variety of foreign laws;

* obstacles to the repatriation of earnings and cash;

* regional, national and local political uncertainty;

* economic slowdown and/or downturn in foreign markets;

« difficulties in staffing and managing international operations;

« difficulty in administering and enforcing corporate policies, which may be different than the normal business practices of local

cultures; and
* reduced protection for intellectual property in some countries.

Each of these risks might impact our cash flow or impair our ability to borrow funds, which ultimately could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows.

In order to fully develop our international operations, we must overcome cultural and language barriers and assimilate different
business practices. In addition, we are required to create compensation programs, employment policies and other administrative pro-
grams that comply with laws of multiple countries. We also must communicate and monitor standards and directives in our international
locations. Our failure to successfully manage our geographically diverse operations could impair our ability to react quickly to changing
business and market conditions and to enforce compliance with standards and procedures. Since a meaningful portion of our revenues
are generated internationally, we must devote substantial resources to managing our international operations.

Our future success will be influenced by our ability to anticipate and effectively manage these and other risks associated with our
international operations. Any of these factors could, however, materially adversely affect our international operations and, consequently,
our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We can predict neither the impact of laws and regulations affecting our international operations nor the potential that we may face
regulatory sanctions.

Our international operations are subject to a variety of U.S. and foreign laws and regulations, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, or FCPA. We cannot assure you that we will continue to be found to be operating in compliance with, or be able to detect
violations of, any such laws or regulations. In addition, we cannot predict the nature, scope or effect of future regulatory requirements
to which our international operations might be subject, the manner in which existing laws might be administered or interpreted, or the
potential that we may face regulatory sanctions.

We cannot assure you that our employees will adhere to our Code of Business Ethics or any other of our policies, applicable anti-
corruption laws, including the FCPA, or other legal requirements. Failure to comply with these requirements may subject us to legal,
regulatory or other sanctions, which could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We may be unable to obtain financing through the debt and equities market, which would have a material adverse effect on our
growth strategy, our results of operations and our financial condition.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to access the capital and credit markets to obtain additional debt or equity financing
or that we will be able to obtain financing on favorable terms. The inability to obtain financing could have negative effects on our busi-
ness, such as:

* we could have great difficulty acquiring or developing properties, which would materially adversely affect our business strategy;

* our liquidity could be adversely affected;

* we may be unable to repay or refinance our indebtedness;

* we may need to make higher interest and principal payments or sell some of our assets on unfavorable terms to fund our

indebtedness; and

* we may need to issue additional capital stock, which could further dilute the ownership of our existing shareholders.

Adverse changes in our credit ratings could impair our ability to obtain additional debt and equity financing on favorable terms, if
at all, and could significantly reduce the market price of our publicly traded securities.



Financial covenants to which we are subject may restrict our operating and acquisition activities.

Our revolving credit facilities and the indentures under which our senior unsecured debt is issued contain certain financial and oper-
ating covenants, including, among other things, certain coverage ratios, as well as limitations on our ability to incur debt, make dividend
payments, sell all or substantially all of our assets and engage in mergers and consolidations and certain acquisitions. These covenants
may restrict our ability to pursue certain business initiatives or certain acquisition transactions that might otherwise be advantageous.
In addition, failure to meet any of the financial covenants could cause an event of default under and/or accelerate some or all of our
indebtedness, which would have a material adverse effect on us.

Changes in market conditions could adversely affect the market price of our publicly traded securities.

As with other publicly traded securities, the market price of our publicly traded securities depends on various market conditions,
which may change from time-to-time. Among the market conditions that may affect the market price of our publicly traded securities
are the following:

* the extent of institutional investor interest in us;

* the reputation of REITs generally and the reputation of REITs with portfolios similar to us;

* the attractiveness of the securities of REITs in comparison to securities issued by other entities (including securities issued by

other real estate companies);

* our financial condition and performance;

* the market's perception of our growth potential and potential future cash dividends;

* anincrease in market interest rates, which may lead prospective investors to demand a higher distribution rate in relation to the

price paid for our shares; and

 general economic and financial market conditions.

We may in the future choose to pay dividends in our own stock.

We may distribute taxable dividends that are partially payable in cash and partially payable in our stock. Under IRS guidance, up to
90% of any such taxable dividend with respect to calendar years 2008 through 2011, and in some cases declared as late as December 31,
2012, could be payable in our stock if certain conditions are met. Although we reserve the right to utilize this procedure in the future, we
currently do not intend to do so. In the event that we pay a portion of a dividend in shares of our common stock, taxable stockholders
receiving such dividends will be required to include the full amount of the dividend as ordinary income to the extent of our accumulated
earnings and profits for United States federal income tax purposes. As a result, taxable U.S. stockholders would be required to pay
tax on the entire amount of the dividend, including the portion paid in shares of common stock, in which case such stockholders might
have to pay the tax using cash from other sources. If a U.S. stockholder sells the stock it receives as a dividend in order to pay this tax,
the sales proceeds may be less than the amount included in income with respect to the dividend, depending on the market price of
our stock at the time of the sale. Furthermore, with respect to non-U.S. stockholders, we may be required to withhold U.S. tax with
respect to such dividend, including all or a portion of such dividend that is payable in stock. In addition, if a significant number of our
stockholders sell shares of our common stock in order to pay taxes owed on dividends, such sales would put downward pressure on
the market price of our common stock.

We may change the dividend policy for our common stock in the future.

The decision to declare and pay dividends on our common stock in the future, as well as the timing, amount and composition
of any such future dividends, will be at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on our earnings, operating cash
flows, liquidity, financial condition, capital requirements, contractual prohibitions or other limitations under our indebtedness including
preferred stock, the annual distribution requirements under the REIT provisions of the Code, state law and such other factors as our
Board of Directors deems relevant. Any change in our dividend policy could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our
common stock.

We may not be able to recover our investments in marketable securities or mortgage receivables, which may result in significant
losses to us.

Our investments in marketable securities are subject to specific risks relating to the particular issuer of the securities, including the
financial condition and business outlook of the issuer, which may result in significant losses to us. Marketable securities are generally
unsecured and may also be subordinated to other obligations of the issuer. As a result, investments in marketable securities are subject
to risks of:

¢ limited liquidity in the secondary trading market;

* substantial market price volatility resulting from changes in prevailing interest rates;

* subordination to the prior claims of banks and other senior lenders to the issuer;

* the possibility that earnings of the issuer may be insufficient to meet its debt service and distribution obligations; and

* the declining creditworthiness and potential for insolvency of the issuer during periods of rising interest rates and economic downturn.

These risks may adversely affect the value of outstanding marketable securities and the ability of the issuers to make
distribution payments.



In the event of a default by a borrower, it may be necessary for us to foreclose our mortgage or engage in costly negotiations.
Delays in liquidating defaulted mortgage loans and repossessing and selling the underlying properties could reduce our investment
returns. Furthermore, in the event of default, the actual value of the property securing the mortgage may decrease. A decline in real
estate values will adversely affect the value of our loans and the value of the mortgages securing our loans.

Our mortgage receivables may be or become subordinated to mechanics’ or materialmen'’s liens or property tax liens. In these
instances we may need to protect a particular investment by making payments to maintain the current status of a prior lien or discharge
it entirely. In these cases, the total amount we recover may be less than our total investment, resulting in a loss. In the event of a major
loan default or several loan defaults resulting in losses, our investments in mortgage receivables would be materially and adversely affected.

We may be subject to liability under environmental laws, ordinances and regulations.

Under various federal, state, and local laws, ordinances and regulations, we may be considered an owner or operator of real prop-
erty and may be responsible for paying for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic substances released on or in our property,
as well as certain other potential costs which could relate to hazardous or toxic substances (including governmental fines and injuries
to persons and property). This liability may be imposed whether or not we knew about, or were responsible for, the presence of haz-
ardous or toxic substances.

ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Real Estate Portfolio. As of December 31, 2010, the Company had interests in 95| shopping center properties (the “Combined
Shopping Center Portfolio™) aggregating 138.0 million square feet of gross leasable area (“GLA") and 906 other property interests,
primarily through the Company’s preferred equity investments, other real estate investments and non-retail properties, totaling approxi-
mately 34.4 million square feet of GLA, for a grand total of 1,857 properties aggregating 172.4 million square feet of GLA, located in 44
states, Puerto Rico, Canada, Mexico and South America. The Company's portfolio includes noncontrolling interests. Neighborhood and
community shopping centers comprise the primary focus of the Company's current portfolio. As of December 31, 2010, the Company's
Combined Shopping Center Portfolio was approximately 93.0% leased.

The Company’s neighborhood and community shopping center properties, which are generally owned and operated through sub-
sidiaries or joint ventures, had an average size of approximately 137,000 square feet as of December 31, 2010. The Company generally
retains its shopping centers for long-term investment and consequently pursues a program of regular physical maintenance together
with major renovations and refurbishing to preserve and increase the value of its properties. This includes renovating existing facades,
installing uniform signage, resurfacing parking lots and enhancing parking lot lighting. During 2010, the Company capitalized approximately
$14.4 million in connection with these property improvements and expensed to operations approximately $25.3 million.

The Company’s neighborhood and community shopping centers are usually “anchored” by a national or regional discount depart-
ment store, supermarket or drugstore. As one of the original participants in the growth of the shopping center industry and one of
the nation’s largest owners and operators of shopping centers, the Company has established close relationships with a large number of
major national and regional retailers. Some of the major national and regional companies that are tenants in the Company’s shopping
center properties include The Home Depot, T)X Companies, Wal-Mart, Sears Holdings, Kohl's, Costco, Best Buy and Royal Ahold.

A substantial portion of the Company's income consists of rent received under long-term leases. Most of the leases provide for the
payment of fixed-base rentals monthly in advance and for the payment by tenants of an allocable share of the real estate taxes, insur-
ance, utilities and common area maintenance expenses incurred in operating the shopping centers. Although many of the leases require
the Company to make roof and structural repairs as needed, a number of tenant leases place that responsibility on the tenant, and the
Company's standard small store lease provides for roof repairs to be reimbursed by the tenant as part of common area maintenance.
The Company’s management places a strong emphasis on sound construction and safety at its properties.

Approximately 20.2% of the Company's leases also contain provisions requiring the payment of additional rent calculated as a
percentage of tenants’ gross sales above predetermined thresholds. Percentage rents accounted for less than 19 of the Company's
revenues from rental property for the year ended December 31, 2010. Additionally, a majority of the Company’s leases have provisions
requiring contractual rent increases as well as escalation clauses. Such escalation clauses often include increases based upon changes in
the consumer price index or similar inflation indices.



Minimum base rental revenues and operating expense reimbursements accounted for approximately 99% of the Company's total
revenues from rental property for the year ended December 31, 2010. The Company’s management believes that the base rent per
leased square foot for many of the Company’s existing leases is generally lower than the prevailing market-rate base rents in the geo-
graphic regions where the Company operates, reflecting the potential for future growth.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company's consolidated portfolio, comprised of 59.7 million square feet of GLA, was 91.9% leased.
For the period January [, 2010 to December 31, 2010, the Company increased the average base rent per leased square foot in its U.S.
consolidated portfolio of neighborhood and community shopping centers from $11.13 to $11.20, an increase of $0.07. This increase pri-
marily consists of (i) a $0.07 increase relating to acquisitions, as well as development properties placed into service, (ii) a $0.01 increase
relating to new leases signed net of leases vacated and rent step-ups within the portfolio, partially offset by (iii) a $0.01 decrease relating
to dispositions or the transfer of properties to various joint venture entities. For the period January |, 2010 to December 31, 2010, the
Company increased the average base rent per leased square foot in its Mexican consolidated portfolio of neighborhood and community
shopping centers from $11.69 to $12.03, an increase of $0.34 primarily due to an increase in new leases signed net of leases vacated
and rent step-ups within the portfolio.

The Company’s management believes its experience in the real estate industry and its relationships with numerous national and
regional tenants gives it an advantage in an industry where ownership is fragmented among a large number of property owners.

Ground-Leased Properties. The Company has interests in 48 consolidated shopping center properties and interests in 2| shopping
center properties in unconsolidated joint ventures that are subject to long-term ground leases where a third party owns and has leased
the underlying land to the Company (or an affiliated joint venture) to construct and/or operate a shopping center. The Company or the
joint venture pays rent for the use of the land and generally is responsible for all costs and expenses associated with the building and
improvements. At the end of these long-term leases, unless extended, the land together with all improvements revert to the landowner.

More specific information with respect to each of the Company's property interests is set forth in Exhibit 99.1, which is incorpo-
rated herein by reference.

ITEM 3.LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is not presently involved in any litigation nor, to its knowledge, is any litigation threatened against the Company or
its subsidiaries that, in management’s opinion, would result in any material adverse effect on the Company’s ownership, management
or operation of its properties taken as a whole, or which is not covered by the Company’s liability insurance.

ITEM 4. (REMOVED AND RESERVED)




PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

MARKET INFORMATION The following sets forth the common stock offerings completed by the Company during the three-year
period ended December 31, 2010. The Company's common stock was sold for cash at the following offering price per share:

Offering Date ~ Offering Price
September 2008 $37.10
April 2009 $ 7.10
December 2009 $12.50

The table below sets forth, for the quarterly periods indicated, the high and low sales prices per share reported on the NYSE
Composite Tape and declared dividends per share for the Company’s common stock. The Company's common stock is traded on the
NYSE under the trading symbol “KIM".

Stock Price

Period High  Low Dividends
2009:
First Quarter $2090 $ 6.33 $0.44
Second Quarter $1298 $ 7.03 $0.06
Third Quarter $1587 $ 816 $0.06
Fourth Quarter $1422 $11.54 $0.16®
2010:
First Quarter $1644 $1240 $0.16
Second Quarter $1672 $13.03 $0.16
Third Quarter $1705 $1251 $0.16
Fourth Quarter $1841 %1561 $0.18®

@ Paid on January 15, 2010, to stockholders of record on January 4, 2010.
® Paid on January 18, 2011, to stockholders of record on January 3, 2011.

HOLDERS The number of holders of record of the Company's common stock, par value $0.01 per share, was 3,150 as of
January 31, 2011,

DIVIDENDS Since the IPO, the Company has paid regular quarterly cash dividends to its stockholders. While the Company
intends to continue paying regular quarterly cash dividends, future dividend declarations will be paid at the discretion of the Board of
Directors and will depend on the actual cash flows of the Company, its financial condition, capital requirements, the annual distribution
requirements under the REIT provisions of the Code and such other factors as the Board of Directors deems relevant. The Company's
Board of Directors will continue to evaluate the Company's dividend policy on a quarterly basis as they monitor sources of capital and
evaluate the impact of the economy on operating fundamentals. The Company is required by the Code to distribute at least 90% of
its REIT taxable income. The actual cash flow available to pay dividends will be affected by a number of factors, including the revenues
received from rental properties, the operating expenses of the Company, the interest expense on its borrowings, the ability of lessees
to meet their obligations to the Company, the ability to refinance near-term debt maturities and any unanticipated capital expenditures.

The Company has determined that the $0.64 dividend per common share paid during 2010 represented 70% ordinary income and
a 30% return of capital to its stockholders. The $1.00 dividend per common share paid during 2009 represented 72% ordinary income
and a 28% return of capital to its stockholders.

In addition to its common stock offerings, the Company has capitalized the growth in its business through the issuance of unsecured
fixed and floating-rate medium-term notes, underwritten bonds, mortgage debt and construction loans, convertible preferred stock
and perpetual preferred stock. Borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facilities have also been an interim source of funds
to both finance the purchase of properties and other investments and meet any short-term working capital requirements. The various
instruments governing the Company's issuance of its unsecured public debt, bank debt, mortgage debt and preferred stock impose
certain restrictions on the Company with regard to dividends, voting, liquidation and other preferential rights available to the holders
of such instruments. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Notes 13, 14,
15 and 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K.



The Company does not believe that the preferential rights available to the holders of its Class F Preferred Stock, Class G Preferred
Stock and Class H Preferred Stock, the financial covenants contained in its public bond indentures, as amended, or its revolving credit
agreements will have an adverse impact on the Company’s ability to pay dividends in the normal course to its common stockholders
or to distribute amounts necessary to maintain its qualification as a REIT.

The Company maintains a dividend reinvestment and direct stock purchase plan (the “Plan”) pursuant to which common and
preferred stockholders and other interested investors may elect to automatically reinvest their dividends to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock or, through optional cash payments, purchase shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company may,
from time-to-time, either (i) purchase shares of its common stock in the open market or (i) issue new shares of its common stock for
the purpose of fulfilling its obligations under the Plan.

TOTAL STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE The following performance chart compares, over the five years ended
December 31, 2010, the cumulative total stockholder return on the Company’s common stock with the cumulative total return of the
S&P 500 Index and the cumulative total return of the NAREIT Equity REIT Total Return Index (the “NAREIT Equity Index”) prepared
and published by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT"). Equity real estate investment trusts are defined
as those which derive more than 75% of their income from equity investments in real estate assets. The NAREIT Equity Index includes
all tax qualified equity real estate investment trusts listed on the New York Stock Exchange, American Stock Exchange or the NASDAQ
National Market System. Stockholder return performance, presented quarterly for the five years ended December 31, 2010, is not
necessarily indicative of future results. All stockholder return performance assumes the reinvestment of dividends. The information in
this paragraph and the following performance chart are deemed to be furnished, not filed.

Historical Total Return Analysis
(December 2005 to December 2010)
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected, historical, consolidated financial data for the Company and should be read in conjunction
with the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and Notes thereto and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations included in this annual report on Form 10-K.

The Company believes that the book value of its real estate assets, which reflects the historical costs of such real estate assets less
accumulated depreciation, is not indicative of the current market value of its properties. Historical operating results are not necessarily
indicative of future operating performance.

Year ended December 31,2

(in thousands, except per share information) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Operating Data:
Revenues from rental property( $849549 $773423 $751,196 $667996 $574,701
Interest expenset® $226,388 $208,018 $212,198 $212436 $169,189
Early extinguishment of debt charges $ 10811 % — % — % — 3 —
Depreciation and amortization® $238474 $226608 $204809 $188861 $139,708
Gain on sale of development properties $ 2,130 $ 5751 % 36565 $ 40,099 $ 37276
Gain/loss on transfer/sale of operating properties, net® $ 2377 $ 3867 $ 1,782 $ 2,708 $ 2460
Benefit for income taxes® $ — $30144 $ 11,645 $ 20242 $ —
Provision for income taxes® $ 3415 % — % — % — % 17441
Impairment charges® $ 33910 $161,787 $147529 $ 13,796 $ —
Income from continuing operations!”) $130418 $ 4633 $225048 $350,924 $365,533
Income/(loss) per common share, from continuing operations:

Basic $ 019 $ (@I12) $ 069 $ 131 $ 148

Diluted $ 019 % (012) $ 069 $ 129 $ 145
Weighted average number of shares of common stock:

Basic 405,827 350,077 2578l 252,129 239,552

Diluted 406,201 350077 258,843 257,058 244615
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.66 0.72 1.68 [.52 .38

December 3,

(in thousands) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Balance Sheet Data:
Real estate, before accumulated depreciation $8,592,760 $ 8882341 $7818916 $7,325035 $6,001,319
Total assets $9,833,075 $10,183,079 $9,397,147 $9,097816 $7,869,280
Total debt $4,058987 $ 4434383 $4,556,646 $4216415 $3,587,243
Total stockholders' equity $4,935842 $ 4852973 $3983,698 $ 3894225 $3,366,826
Cash flow provided by operations $ 479935 $ 403582 $ 567599 $ 665989 $ 455569

Cash flow provided by (used for) investing activities  $ 37904 $ (343,236) $ (781,350) $(1,507,611) $ (246221)
Cash flow (used for) provided by financing activities $ (514,743) $ (74465) $ 262429 $ 584056 $ 59444

() Does not include (i) revenues from rental property relating to unconsolidated joint ventures, (ii) revenues relating to the investment in retail stores leases and (iii) revenues from
properties included in discontinued operations.

@ All years have been adjusted to reflect the impact of operating properties sold during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006 and properties classified as
held for sale as of December 31, 2010, which are reflected in discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

© Does not include amounts reflected in discontinued operations.

® Does not include amounts reflected in discontinued operations and extraordinary gain. Amounts include income taxes related to gain on transfer/sale of operating properties.

© Does not include amounts reflected in discontinued operations. Amounts include income taxes related to gain on transfer/sale of operating properties.

© Amounts exclude noncontrolling interests and amounts reflected in discontinued operations.

) Amounts include gain on transfer/sale of operating properties, net of tax and net income attributable to noncontrolling interests.



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included in
this annual report on Form 10-K. Historical results and percentage relationships set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
contained in the Consolidated Financial Statements, including trends which might appear, should not be taken as indicative of future
operations.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Kimco Realty Corporation is one of the nation’s largest publicly-traded owners and operators of neighborhood and community
shopping centers. As of December 31, 2010, the Company had interests in 951 shopping center properties (the “Combined Shopping
Center Portfolio”) aggregating 138.0 million square feet of gross leasable area (“GLA”) and 906 other property interests, primarily
through the Company’s preferred equity investments, other real estate investments and non-retail properties, totaling approximately
344 million square feet of GLA, for a grand total of 1,857 properties aggregating 1724 million square feet of GLA, located in 44 states,
Puerto Rico, Canada, Mexico, Chile, Brazil and Peru.

The Company is self-administered and self-managed through present management, which has owned and managed neighborhood
and community shopping centers for over 50 years. The executive officers are engaged in the day-to-day management and operation
of real estate exclusively with the Company, with nearly all operating functions, including leasing, asset management, maintenance, con-
struction, legal, finance and accounting, administered by the Company.

The Company’s vision is to be the premier owner and operator of shopping centers with its core business operations focusing on
owning and operating neighborhood and community shopping centers through investments in North America. This vision will entail a
shift away from non-retail assets that the Company currently holds. These investments include non-retail preferred equity investments,
marketable securities, mortgages on non-retail properties and several urban mixed-use properties. The Company's plan is to sell its
non-retail assets and investments, realizing that the sale of these assets will be over a period of time given the current market conditions.
If the Company accepts sales prices for these non-retail assets which are less than their net carrying values, the Company would be
required to take impairment charges. In order to execute the Company’s vision, the Company's strategy is to continue to strengthen its
balance sheet by pursuing deleveraging efforts, providing it the necessary flexibility to invest opportunistically and selectively, primarily
focusing on neighborhood and community shopping centers. In addition, the Company continues to be committed to broadening its
institutional management business by forming joint ventures with high quality domestic and foreign institutional partners for the purpose
of investing in neighborhood and community shopping centers.

The following highlights the Company’s significant transactions, events and results that occurred during the year ended
December 31, 2010:

Portfolio Information:

* Occupancy rose from 92.6% at December 31, 2009 to 93.0 % at December 31, 2010 in the Combined Shopping Center Portfolio.

» Occupancy year over year remained at 92.4% for the U.S. shopping center combined.

» Executed 2,703 leases, renewals and options totaling over 8.2 million square feet in the Combined Shopping Center Portfolio.

Acquisition Activity:

* Acquired 10 shopping center properties, an additional joint venture interest and two land parcels comprising an aggregate 1.7
million square feet of GLA, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $251.3 million including the assumption of approxi-
mately $138.8 million of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering seven of the properties.

* Established four new unconsolidated joint ventures that acquired approximately $1.0 billion in assets.

Disposition Activity:

¢ During 2010, the Company monetized non-retail assets of approximately $130.0 million and reduced its non-retail book values
by approximately $80.0 million.

* Included in the monetization above are the disposition of (i) three properties, in separate transactions, for an aggregate sales
price of approximately $23.8 million and (ii) five properties from a consolidated joint venture in which the Company had a
preferred equity investment for a sales price of approximately $40.8 million. These transactions resulted in an aggregate profit
participation of approximately $20.8 million, before income tax of approximately $1.0 million and noncontrolling interest of
approximately $4.9 million.

* Also included in the monetization above is the Company’s receipt of approximately $34.7 million in distributions from the
Albertson’s joint venture, in which the Company recognized approximately $21.2 million of equity in income primarily from the
joint ventures’ sale of 23 properties.



» Additionally, during 2010, the Company disposed of, in separate transactions, nine land parcels for an aggregate sales price of
approximately $25.6 million which resulted in an aggregate gain of approximately $3.4 million.

» Additionally, during 2010, the Company (i) sold seven operating properties, which were previously consolidated, to two new joint
ventures in which the Company holds noncontrolling equity interests for an aggregate sales price of approximately $438.1 million
including the assignment of $159.9 million of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering three of the properties and (i) disposed
of, in separate transactions, seven operating properties for an aggregate sales price of approximately $100.5 million including the
assignment of $81.0 million of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering one of the properties. These transactions resulted in
aggregate gains of approximately $4.4 million and aggregate losses/impairments of approximately $5.0 million.

Capital Activity (for additional details see Liquidity and Capital Resources below):
* Issued $150 million in Canadian denominated eight-year unsecured notes priced at 5.99%.
* Repaid the remaining $287.5 million guaranteed credit facility related to a joint venture in which the Company has a 15%
noncontrolling ownership interest.
e Issued $175 million of 6.90% cumulative redeemable preferred stock.
* Issued a $300 million seven and a half year unsecured bond priced at 4.3%.
» Total year over year reduction in debt of approximately $375.4 million.

Impairments:

* The U.S. economic and market conditions stabilized during 2010 and capitalization rates, discount rates and vacancies had
improved; however, overall declines in market conditions continued to have a negative effect on certain transactional activity as
it related to select real estate assets and certain marketable securities. As such, the Company recognized impairment charges
of approximately $39.1 million (including approximately $5.2 million which is classified within discontinued operations), before
income taxes and noncontrolling interests, relating to adjustments to property carrying values, investments in other real estate
joint ventures, investments in real estate joint ventures, real estate under development and marketable securities and other
investments. Potential future adverse market and economic conditions could cause the Company to recognize additional impair-
ments in the future (see Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K).

* In addition to the impairment charges above, various unconsolidated joint ventures in which the Company holds noncontrolling
interests recognized impairment charges relating to certain properties during 2010. The Company'’s share of these charges was
approximately $28.3 million, before an income tax benefit of approximately $3.2 million. These impairment charges are included
in Equity in income of joint ventures, net in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations(see Notes 2 and 8 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and all
entities in which the Company has a controlling interest, including where the Company has been determined to be a primary benefi-
ciary of a variable interest entity in accordance with the consolidation guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘“FASB’)
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC"). The Company applies these provisions to each of its joint venture investments to determine
whether the cost, equity or consolidation method of accounting is appropriate. The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions in certain
circumstances that affect amounts reported in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes. In preparing
these financial statements, management has made its best estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities. These estimates are based on, but not limited to, historical results, industry standards and current economic conditions, giving
due consideration to materiality. The most significant assumptions and estimates relate to revenue recognition and the recoverability
of trade accounts receivable, depreciable lives, valuation of real estate and intangible assets and liabilities, valuation of joint venture
investments, marketable securities and other investments, realizability of deferred tax assets and uncertain tax positions. Application
of these assumptions requires the exercise of judgment as to future uncertainties, and, as a result, actual results could materially differ
from these estimates.

The Company is required to make subjective assessments as to whether there are impairments in the value of its real estate
properties, investments in joint ventures, marketable securities and other investments. The Company’s reported net earnings is directly
affected by management’s estimate of impairments and/or valuation allowances.



Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Base rental revenues from rental property are recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases. Certain of
these leases also provide for percentage rents based upon the level of sales achieved by the lessee. These percentage rents are recorded
once the required sales level is achieved. Operating expense reimbursements are recognized as earned. Rental income may also include
payments received in connection with lease termination agreements. In addition, leases typically provide for reimbursement to the
Company of common area maintenance, real estate taxes and other operating expenses.

The Company makes estimates of the uncollectability of its accounts receivable related to base rents, straight-line rent, expense
reimbursements and other revenues. The Company analyzes accounts receivable and historical bad debt levels, customer credit-worthiness
and current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. In addition, tenants in bankruptcy
are analyzed and estimates are made in connection with the expected recovery of pre-petition and post-petition claims. The Company's
reported net earnings is directly affected by management'’s estimate of the collectability of accounts receivable.

Real Estate

The Company's investments in real estate properties are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures
for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Significant renovations and replacements, which improve and extend
the life of the asset, are capitalized.

Upon acquisition of real estate operating properties, the Company estimates the fair value of acquired tangible assets (consisting
of land, building, building improvements and tenant improvements) and identified intangible assets and liabilities (consisting of above
and below-market leases, in-place leases and tenant relationships), assumed debt and redeemable units issued at the date of acquisi-
tion, based on evaluation of information and estimates available at that date. Based on these estimates, the Company allocates the
estimated fair value to the applicable assets and liabilities. Fair value is determined based on an exit price approach, which contemplates
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. If, up to one year from the acquisition date, information regarding fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed is received and estimates are refined, appropriate adjustments are made to the purchase price allocation on a retrospective
basis. The Company expenses transaction costs associated with business combinations in the period incurred.

Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings and building improvements 15 to 50 years
Fixtures, leasehold and tenant improvements Terms of leases or useful lives,
(including certain identified intangible assets) whichever is shorter

The Company is required to make subjective assessments as to the useful lives of its properties for purposes of determining the
amount of depreciation to reflect on an annual basis with respect to those properties. These assessments have a direct impact on the
Company’s net earnings.

Real estate under development on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets represents ground-up development of neighbor-
hood and community shopping center projects which may be subsequently sold upon completion or which the Company may hold as
long-term investments. These assets are carried at cost. The cost of land and buildings under development includes specifically iden-
tifiable costs. The capitalized costs include pre-construction costs essential to the development of the property, development costs,
construction costs, interest costs, real estate taxes, salaries and related costs of personnel directly involved and other costs incurred
during the period of development. The Company ceases cost capitalization when the property is held available for occupancy upon
substantial completion of tenant improvements, but no later than one year from the completion of major construction activity. A gain
on the sale of these assets is generally recognized using the full accrual method in accordance with the provisions of the FASB's real
estate sales guidance provided that various criteria relating to terms of the sale and subsequent involvement by the Company with the
property are met.

On a continuous basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators, including property operating performance and
general market conditions, that the value of the real estate properties (including any related amortizable intangible assets or liabilities)
may be impaired. A property value is considered impaired only if management'’s estimate of current and projected operating cash
flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) of the property over its remaining useful life is less than the net carrying value of the
property. Such cash flow projections consider factors such as expected future operating income, trends and prospects, as well as the
effects of demand, competition and other factors. To the extent impairment has occurred, the carrying value of the property would
be adjusted to an amount to reflect the estimated fair value of the property.

When a real estate asset is identified by management as held-for-sale, the Company ceases depreciation of the asset and estimates
the sales price of such asset net of selling costs. If, in management'’s opinion, the net sales price of the asset is less than the net book
value of such asset, an adjustment to the carrying value would be recorded to reflect the estimated fair value of the property.



Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

The Company accounts for its investments in unconsolidated joint ventures under the equity method of accounting as the Company
exercises significant influence, but does not control, these entities. These investments are recorded initially at cost and are subsequently
adjusted for cash contributions and distributions. Earnings for each investment are recognized in accordance with each respective invest-
ment agreement and, where applicable, are based upon an allocation of the investment’s net assets at book value as if the investment
was hypothetically liquidated at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s joint ventures and other real estate investments primarily consist of co-investments with institutional and other joint
venture partners in neighborhood and community shopping center properties, consistent with its core business. These joint ventures
typically obtain non-recourse third-party financing on their property investments, thus contractually limiting the Company’s exposure to
losses to the amount of its equity investment, and, due to the lender’s exposure to losses, a lender typically will require a minimum level
of equity in order to mitigate its risk. The Company’s exposure to losses associated with its unconsolidated joint ventures is primarily
limited to its carrying value in these investments. The Company, on a limited selective basis, obtained unsecured financing for certain
joint ventures. These unsecured financings are guaranteed by the Company with guarantees from the joint venture partners for their
proportionate amounts of any guaranty payment the Company is obligated to make.

On a continuous basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators, including property operating performance and general
market conditions, that the value of the Company’s investments in unconsolidated joint ventures may be impaired. An investment's value
is impaired only if management'’s estimate of the fair value of the investment is less than the carrying value of the investment and such
difference is deemed to be other-than-temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the excess of
the carrying amount of the investment over the estimated fair value of the investment.

The Company's estimated fair values are based upon a discounted cash flow model for each specific property that includes all
estimated cash inflows and outflows over a specified holding period and where applicable, any estimated debt premiums. Capitalization
rates, discount rates and credit spreads utilized in these models are based upon rates that the Company believes to be within a reason-
able range of current market rates for each respective property.

Marketable Securities

The Company classifies its existing marketable equity securities as available-for-sale in accordance with the FASB's Investments-Debt
and Equity Securities guidance. These securities are carried at fair market value with unrealized gains and losses reported in stockhold-
ers' equity as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (“OCI"). Gains or losses on securities sold are based on the
specific identification method.

All debt securities are generally classified as held-to-maturity because the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold the
securities to maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortized cost, adjusted for any amortization of premiums and accretion
of discounts to maturity. Debt securities which contain conversion features are generally classified as available-for-sale. These securities
are carried at fair market value with unrealized gains and losses reported in stockholders’ equity as a component of OCI.

On a continuous basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators that the value of the Company’s marketable securi-
ties may be impaired. A marketable security is impaired if the fair value of the security is less than the carrying value of the security
and such difference is deemed to be other-than-temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the
excess of the carrying amount of the security over the estimated fair value in the security.

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets and Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to federal, state and local income taxes on the income from its activities relating to its TRS activities and
subject to local taxes on certain non-U.S. investments. The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method,
which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized based on future tax consequences of temporary differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the years in which temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period when the
changes are enacted.

A reduction of the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance is required, if based on the evidence available,
it is more likely than not (a likelihood of more than 50 percent) that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
The valuation allowance should be sufficient to reduce the deferred tax asset to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

The Company considers all available evidence, both positive and negative, to determine whether, based on the weight of that
evidence, a valuation allowance is needed. Information about an enterprise’s current financial position and its results of operations for
the current and preceding years is supplemented by all currently available information about future years.



Future realization of the tax benefit of an existing deductible temporary difference or carryforward ultimately depends on the
existence of sufficient taxable income of the appropriate character (for example, ordinary income or capital gain) within the carryback
or carryforward period available under the tax law.

The Company must use judgment in considering the relative impact of negative and positive evidence. The weight given to the
potential effect of negative and positive evidence is commensurate with the extent to which it can be objectively verified. The more
negative evidence that exists (a) the more positive evidence is necessary and (b) the more difficult it is to support a conclusion that a
valuation allowance is not needed for some portion or all of the deferred tax asset.

The Company believes, when evaluating deferred tax assets within its taxable REIT subsidiaries, special consideration should be
given to the unique relationship between the Company as a REIT and its taxable REIT subsidiaries. This relationship exists primarily to
protect the REIT’s qualification under the Code by permitting, within certain limits, the REIT to engage in certain business activities in
which the REIT cannot directly participate. As such, the REIT controls which and when investments are held in, or distributed or sold
from, its taxable REIT subsidiaries. This relationship distinguishes a REIT and taxable REIT subsidiary from an enterprise that operates
as a single, consolidated corporate taxpayer.

The Company primarily utilizes a twenty year projection of pre-tax book income and taxable income as positive evidence to
overcome its significant negative evidence of a three-year cumulative pretax book loss. Although items of income and expense utilized
in the projection are objectively verifiable there is also significant judgment used in determining the duration and timing of events that
would impact the projection. Based upon the Company’s analysis of negative and positive evidence the Company will make a deter-
mination of the need for a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets. If future income projections do not occur as forecasted,
the Company will reevaluate the need for a valuation allowance. In addition, the Company can employ additional strategies to realize
its deferred tax assets including transferring a greater portion of its property management business to the TRS, sale of certain built-in
gain assets, and further reducing intercompany debt (see Note 24 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this
annual report on Form 10-K).

The Company recognizes and measure benefits for uncertain tax positions which requires significant judgment from management.
Although the Company believes it has adequately reserved for any uncertain tax positions, no assurance can be given that the final tax
outcome of these matters will not be different. The Company adjusts these reserves in light of changing facts and circumstances, such
as the closing of a tax audit or the refinement of an estimate. Changes in the recognition or measurement of uncertain tax positions
could result in material increases or decreases in the Company's income tax expense in the period in which a change is made, which
could have a material impact on operating results (see Note 24 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this
annual report on Form 10-K).

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison 2010 to 2009

(all amounts in millions) 2010 2009 Increase % change
Revenues from rental property  $849.5 $7734  $76.1 9.8%
Rental property expenses:?
Rent $ 141 $139 $02 |.4%
Real estate taxes 1163 1104 59 5.3%
Operating and maintenance 122.6 108.5 14.1 13.0%
$2530 $232.8  $20.2 8.7%
Depreciation and amortization®  $2385  $226.6 $11.9 5.3%

() Revenues from rental property increased primarily from the combined effect of (i) the acquisition of operating
properties during 2010 and 2009, providing incremental revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010
of $70.6 million, as compared to the corresponding period in 2009 and (ii) the completion of certain devel-
opment and redevelopment projects, tenant buyouts and overall growth in the current portfolio, providing
incremental revenues of approximately $9.5 million, for the year ended December 31, 2010, as compared to
the corresponding period in 2009, which was partially offset by (iii) a decrease in revenues of approximately
$4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, as compared to the corresponding period in 2009, pri-
marily resulting from the sale of certain properties during 2010 and 2009.

@ Rental property expenses increased primarily due to (i) operating property acquisitions during 2010 and
2009, (ii) the placement of certain development properties into service, which resulted in lower capitalization
of carry costs, partially offset by operating property dispositions during 2010 and 2009.

© Depreciation and amortization increased primarily due to (i) operating property acquisitions during 2010
and 2009, (ii) the placement of certain development properties into service and (iii) tenant vacates, partially
offset by certain operating property dispositions during 2010 and 2009.



Mortgage and other financing income decreased $5.6 million to $9.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, as compared
to $15.0 million for the corresponding period in 2009. This decrease is primarily due to a decrease in interest income as a result of
pay-downs and dispositions of mortgage receivables during 2010 and 2009.

Management and other fee income decreased approximately $2.5 million to $39.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, as
compared to $42.4 million for the corresponding period in 2009. This decrease is primarily due to a decrease in property management
fees of approximately $2.6 million from PL Retail, due to the Company's acquisition of the remaining 85% ownership interest resulting
in the Company’s consolidation of PL Retail in 2009, partially offset by an increase in other transaction related fees of approximately
$0.1 million recognized during 2010.

Interest, dividends and other investment income decreased approximately $11.8 million to $21.3 million for the year ended December
31,2010, as compared to $33.1 million for the corresponding period in 2009. This decrease is primarily due to (i) a decrease in realized
gains of approximately $5.2 million during 2010 resulting from the sale of certain marketable securities during the corresponding period
in 2009 as compared to 2010, (i) a reduction in interest income of approximately $3.8 million due to repayments of notes in 2010 and
2009 and (iii) a decrease in interest and dividend income of approximately $1.9 million during 2010, as compared to the corresponding
period in 2009, primarily resulting from the sale of investments in marketable securities during 2010 and 2009.

Other (expense)/income, net changed approximately $9.9 million to an expense of approximately $4.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010, as compared to income of approximately $5.6 million for the corresponding period in 2009. This change is primarily
due to (i) a decrease in the fair value of an embedded derivative instrument of approximately $2.0 million relating to the convertible
option of the Company's investment in Valad notes, (i) decreased gains from land sales of approximately $3.5 million, (iii) an increase in
a legal settlement accrual of approximately $2.0 million relating to a previously sold ground-up development project and (iv) an increase
in acquisition related costs of approximately $0.5 million.

Interest expense increased approximately $18.4 million to $226.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, as compared to
$208.0 million for the corresponding period in 2009. This increase is due to higher average outstanding levels of debt during the year
ended December 31, 2010, as compared to 2009.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company incurred early extinguishment of debt charges aggregating approximately
$10.8 million in connection with the optional make-whole provisions of notes that were repaid prior to maturity and prepayment penal-
ties on five mortgages that the Company paid prior to their maturity.

Income from other real estate investments increased approximately $7.1 million to $43.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2010, as compared to $36.2 million for the corresponding period in 2009. This increase is primarily due to an increase in profit participa-
tion earned from capital transactions within the Company’s Preferred Equity Program during 2010 as compared to the corresponding
period in 2009.

During 2010, the Company disposed of a land parcel for a sales price of approximately $0.9 million resulting in a gain of approximately
$0.4 million. Additionally, the Company recognized approximately $1.7 million in income on previously sold development properties
during the year ended December 31, 2010.

During 2009, the Company sold, in separate transactions, five out-parcels, four land parcels and three ground leases for aggregate
proceeds of approximately $19.4 million. These transactions resulted in gains on sale of development properties of approximately
$5.8 million, before income taxes of $2.3 million.

During 2010, the Company recognized impairment charges of approximately $29.3 million (not including approximately $5.2 million
which is included in discontinued operations), before income taxes and noncontrolling interest, relating to adjustments to property
carrying values, real estate under development, investments in other real estate investments and other investments. The Company'’s
estimated fair values relating to these impairment assessments were based upon estimated sales prices and discounted cash flow models
that included all estimated cash inflows and outflows over a specified holding period. These cash flows are comprised of unobserv-
able inputs which include contractual rental revenues and forecasted rental revenues and expenses based upon market conditions and
expectations for growth. Capitalization rates and discount rates utilized in these models were based upon observable rates that the
Company believes to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respective properties. Based on these inputs, the
Company determined that its valuation in these investments was classified within Level 3 of the FASB fair value hierarchy.



Additionally, during 2010, the Company recorded impairment charges of approximately $4.6 million due to the decline in value of
certain marketable securities that were deemed to be other-than-temporary.

During 2009, the Company recognized impairment charges of approximately $131.7 million (not including approximately $13.3 million
of which is included in discontinued operations), before income taxes and noncontrolling interest, relating to adjustments to property car-
rying values, investments in real estate joint ventures, real estate under development and other real estate investments. The Company's
estimated fair values relating to these impairment assessments were based upon discounted cash flow models that included all estimated
cash inflows and outflows over a specified holding period and where applicable, any estimated debt premiums. These cash flows are
comprised of unobservable inputs which include contractual rental revenues and forecasted rental revenues and expenses based upon
market conditions and expectations for growth. Capitalization rates and discount rates utilized in these models were based upon observ-
able rates that the Company believes to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respective properties. Based on
these inputs the Company determined that its valuation in these investments was classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Additionally, during 2009, the Company recorded impairment charges of approximately $30.1 million due to the decline in value of
certain marketable equity securities and other investments that were deemed to be other-than-temporary.

(Provision)/benefit for income taxes changed by approximately $33.6 million to a provision of approximately $3.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010, as compared to a benefit of approximately $30.| million for the corresponding period in 2009. This
change is primarily due to (i) a decrease in income tax benefit of approximately $22.7 million related to impairments taken during the
year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the corresponding period in 2009, (ii) an increase in foreign taxes of approximately
$6.8 million primarily resulting from an overall increase in income from foreign investments and (iii) an increase in the tax provision
expense of approximately $6.8 million relating to an increase in equity income recognized in connection with the Albertson’s invest-
ment during the year ended December 31, 2010, as compared to the corresponding period in 2009, partially offset by (iv) a decrease
in the income tax provision expense of approximately $1.4 million in connection with gains on sale of development properties during
2010, as compared to 2009.

Equity in income of real estate joint ventures, net increased approximately $49.4 million to $55.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010, as compared to $6.3 million for the corresponding period in 2009. This increase is primarily the result of a (i) the
recognition of approximately $21.2 million of equity in income from the Albertson’s joint venture during 2010, as compared to $3.0 million
of equity in income recognized during 2009, primarily resulting from the sale of properties in the joint venture, (i) an increase in equity
in income of approximately $5.9 million from the Company’s joint venture investments in Canada primarily resulting from the amend-
ment and restructuring of two retail property preferred equity investments into two pari passu joint venture investments during 2010,
(iii) the recognition of approximately $8.0 million in income resulting from cash distributions received in excess of the Company’s car-
rying value of its investment in an unconsolidated limited liability partnership for the year ended December 31, 2010 and (iv) decrease
in impairment charges of approximately $15.0 million resulting from fewer impairment charges recognized against certain joint venture
properties during 2010, as compared to the corresponding period in 2009.

During 2010, the Company (i) sold seven operating properties, which were previously consolidated, to two new joint ventures
in which the Company holds noncontrolling equity interests for an aggregate sales price of approximately $438.1 million including the
assignment of $159.9 million of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering three of the properties and (i) disposed of, in separate trans-
actions, seven operating properties for an aggregate sales price of approximately $100.5 million including the assignment of $81.0 million
of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering one of the properties. These transactions resulted in aggregate gains of approximately
$4.4 million and aggregate losses/impairments of approximately $5.0 million.

Additionally, during 2010, the Company disposed of (i) three properties, in separate transactions, for an aggregate sales price of
approximately $23.8 million and (ii) five properties from a consolidated joint venture in which the Company had a preferred equity
investment for a sales price of approximately $40.8 million. These transactions resulted in an aggregate profit participation of approxi-
mately $20.8 million, before income tax of approximately $1.0 million and noncontrolling interest of approximately $4.9 million. This
profit participation has been recorded as Income from other real estate investments and is reflected in Income from discontinued
operating properties, net of tax in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During 2009, the Company disposed of, in separate transactions, portions of six operating properties and one land parcel for an
aggregate sales price of approximately $28.9 million. These transactions resulted in the Company’s recognition of an aggregate net gain
of approximately $4.I million, net of income tax of $0.2 million.

Net income attributable to the Company for 2010 was $142.9 million. Net loss attributable to the Company for 2009 was $3.9 million.
On a diluted per share basis, net income attributable to the Company was $0.22 for 2010, as compared to net loss of $0.15 for 2009.
These changes are primarily attributable to (i) a decrease in impairment charges of approximately $112.1 million, net of income taxes
and noncontrolling interests, (i) an overall net increase in Equity in income of joint ventures primarily due to a decrease in impairment
charges of approximately $15.0 million during 2010, as compared to 2009 and an increase in equity in income from the Albertson’s
joint venture, (i) an increase in Income from other real estate investments primarily due to an increase of approximately $7.2 million
from the Company’s Preferred Equity program, (iv) additional incremental earnings due to the acquisitions of operating properties
during 2010 and 2009, partially offset by (v) the recognition of approximately $10.8 million in early extinguishment of debt charges.
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Comparison 2009 to 2008

@all amounts in millions) 2009 2008 Increase % change
Revenues from rental property!”  $7734 $751.2  $22.2 3.0%
Rental property expenses:?
Rent $ 139 $ I3 $ 08 6.1%
Real estate taxes 104 96.9 13.5 13.9%
Operating and maintenance 108.5 103.8 4.7 4.5%
$2328 $2138  $190 8.9%
Depreciation and amortization®  $226.6 $2048  $21.8 10.6%

() Revenues from rental property increased primarily from the combined effect of (i) the acquisition of operat-
ing properties during 2009 and 2008, providing incremental revenues for the year ended December 31,
2009 of $29.3 million, as compared to the corresponding period in 2008 and (ii) the completion of certain
development and redevelopment projects and tenant buyouts providing incremental revenues of approxi-
mately $7.4 million, for the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared to the corresponding period in
2008, which was partially offset by (iii) a decrease in revenues of approximately $14.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009, as compared to the corresponding period in 2008, primarily resulting from the
sale of certain properties during 2009 and 2008, and (iv) an overall occupancy decrease in the consolidated
shopping center portfolio from 93.1% at December 31, 2008 to 92.2% at December 31, 2009.

) Rental property expenses increased primarily due to (i) operating property acquisitions during 2009 and
2008, (ii) the placement of certain development properties into service, which resulted in lower capitalization
of carry costs, and (iii) an increase in snow removal costs during 2009 as compared to 2008, partially offset
by (iv) a decrease in insurance costs during 2009 as compared to 2008 and (v) operating property disposi-
tions during 2009 and 2008.

O Depreciation and amortization increased primarily due to (i) operating property acquisitions during 2008
and 2009, (ii) the placement of certain development properties into service and (iii) tenant vacates, partially
offset by operating property dispositions during 2009 and 2008.

Mortgage and other financing income decreased $3.3 million to $15.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared
to $18.3 million for the corresponding period in 2008. This decrease is primarily due to a decrease in interest income during 2009
resulting from the repayment of certain mortgage receivables during 2009 and 2008.

Management and other fee income decreased approximately $5.1 million to $42.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as
compared to $47.6 million for the corresponding period in 2008. This decrease is primarily due to a decrease in property management
fees of approximately $5.8 million for 2009, due to lower revenues attributable to lower occupancy and the sale of certain properties
during 2009 and 2008, partially offset by an increase in other transaction related fees of approximately $0.6 million recognized during 2009.

General and administrative expenses decreased approximately $6.9 million to $108.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2009, as compared to $114.9 million for the corresponding period in 2008. This decrease is primarily due to a reduction in force during
2009 as a result of implementing the Company’s core business strategy of focusing on owning and operating shopping centers and a
shift away from certain non-retail assets along with a lack of transactional activity.

Interest, dividends and other investment income decreased approximately $23.0 million to $33.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2009, as compared to $56.1 million for the corresponding period in 2008. This decrease is primarily due to (i) a decrease in real-
ized gains of approximately $8.2 million during 2009 resulting from the sale of certain marketable securities during the corresponding
period in 2008 as compared to 2009, and (ii) a decrease in interest and dividend income of approximately $14.8 million during 2009, as
compared to the corresponding period in 2008, primarily resulting from the sale of investments in marketable securities and reductions
in dividends declared from certain marketable securities during 2009 and 2008.

Other (expense)/income, net changed approximately $5.2 million to income of approximately $5.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009, as compared to income of approximately $0.4 million for the corresponding period in 2008. This change is primarily
due to (i) increased gains from land sales of approximately $5.9 million and (i) an increase in the fair value of an embedded derivative
instrument relating to the convertible option of the Valad notes of approximately $9.8 million, partially offset by, (iii) the receipt of
fewer shares of Sears Holding Corp. common stock received as partial settlement of Kmart pre-petition claims during 2008 and (iv) a
decrease in franchise taxes.

Interest expense decreased approximately $4.2 million to $208.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared to
$212.2 million for the corresponding period in 2008. This decrease is due to lower outstanding levels of debt during the year ended
December 31, 2009, as compared to 2008.
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Income from other real estate investments decreased $51.4 million to $36.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as
compared to $87.6 million for the corresponding period in 2008. This decrease is primarily due to (i) a decrease from the Company's
Preferred Equity Program of approximately $36.4 million in contributed income during 2009, including a decrease of approximately
$22.1 million in profit participation earned from capital transactions during 2009 as compared to the corresponding period in 2008 and
(ii) a gain of approximately $7.2 million from the sale of the Company's interest in a real estate company located in Mexico during 2008.

During 2009, the Company sold, in separate transactions, five out-parcels, four land parcels and three ground leases for aggregate
proceeds of approximately $19.4 million. These transactions resulted in gains on sale of development properties of approximately
$5.8 million, before income taxes of $2.3 million.

During 2008, the Company sold, in separate transactions, (i) two completed merchant building projects, (ii) 2| out-parcels, (iii) a
partial sale of one project and (iv) a partnership interest in one project for aggregate proceeds of approximately $73.5 million and
received approximately $4.1 million of proceeds from completed earn-out requirements on three previously sold merchant building
projects. These sales resulted in gains of approximately $36.6 million, before income taxes of $14.6 million.

During 2009, the Company recognized impairment charges of approximately $131.7 million (not including approximately $13.3 million
of which is included in discontinued operations), before income taxes and noncontrolling interest, relating to adjustments to property
carrying values, investments in real estate joint ventures, real estate under development and other real estate investments. The Company's
estimated fair values relating to these impairment assessments were based upon discounted cash flow models that included all estimated
cash inflows and outflows over a specified holding period and where applicable, any estimated debt premiums. These cash flows are
comprised of unobservable inputs which include contractual rental revenues and forecasted rental revenues and expenses based upon
market conditions and expectations for growth. Capitalization rates and discount rates utilized in these models were based upon observ-
able rates that the Company believes to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respective properties. Based on
these inputs the Company determined that its valuation in these investments was classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Additionally, during 2009, the Company recorded impairment charges of approximately $30.1 million due to the decline in value of
certain marketable equity securities and other investments that were deemed to be other-than-temporary.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company recognized impairment charges of approximately $29.1 million before income
taxes and noncontrolling interests.

Additionally, during 2008, the Company recorded impairment charges of approximately $118.4 million due to the decline in value
of certain marketable equity securities and other investments that were deemed to be other-than-temporary.

The Company will continue to assess the value of all its assets on an on-going basis. Based on these assessments, the Company may
determine that a decline in value for one or more of its investments may be other-than-temporary or permanent and would therefore
write-down its cost basis accordingly.

Benefit for income taxes increased by $18.5 million to $30.I million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared to
$11.6 million for the corresponding period in 2008. This change is primarily due to (i) a decrease in the tax provision expense of approxi-
mately $13.2 million from equity income recognized in connection with the Albertson’s investment during the year ended December 31,
2009, as compared to the corresponding period in 2008 and (ii) a decrease in the income tax provision expense of approximately
$12.3 million in connection with gains on sale of development properties during 2009 as compared to 2008, partially offset by (iii) a
decrease in income tax benefit of approximately $2.1 million related to impairments taken during the year ended December 31, 2009,
as compared to the corresponding period in 2008 and (iv) an increase in foreign taxes of approximately $3.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009, as compared to the corresponding period in 2008.

Equity in income of real estate joint ventures, net for the year ended December 31, 2009, was approximately $6.3 million as
compared to $132.2 million for the corresponding period in 2008. This reduction of approximately $125.9 million is primarily the result
of (i) an increase in the recognition of impairment charges against the carrying value of the Company'’s investment in unconsolidated
joint ventures of approximately $27.5 million recorded during 2009, as compared to the corresponding period in 2008, primarily due
to an increase in impairments of approximately $23.9 million recognized by the Kimco Prudential joint ventures, (ii) the recognition of
approximately $2.9 million of equity in income from the Albertson’s joint venture during 2009, as compared to $63.9 million of equity
in income recognized during 2008 resulting from the sale of 121 properties in the joint venture, (iii) the recognition of approximately
$11.0 million in income resulting from cash distributions received in excess of the Company’s carrying value of its investment in various
unconsolidated limited liability partnerships during the corresponding period in 2008, (iv) a decrease in income of $11.8 million during
2009, from a joint venture which holds interests in extended stay residential properties primarily due to overall decreases in occupancy,
(V) a decrease in profit participation of approximately $9.1 million during 2009, as compared to the corresponding period in 2008,
resulting from the sale/transfer of operating properties from two joint venture investments, (vi) a decrease in income of approximately
$4.5 million during 2009, from a Canadian joint venture investment, primarily due to an overall decrease in occupancy and (vii) a decrease
in occupancy levels within certain real estate joint venture investments, partially offset by increased gains on sales of approximately
$5.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2009, resulting from the sale of operating properties during 2009, as compared to 2008.
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During 2009, the Company disposed of, in separate transactions, portions of six operating properties and one land parcel for an
aggregate sales price of approximately $28.9 million. These transactions resulted in the Company's recognition of an aggregate net gain
of approximately $4.1 million, net of income tax of $0.2 million.

During 2008, the Company disposed of seven operating properties and a portion of four operating properties, in separate transac-
tions, for an aggregate sales price of approximately $73.0 million, which resulted in an aggregate gain of approximately $20.0 million. In
addition, the Company partially recognized deferred gains of approximately $1.2 million on three properties relating to their transfer
and partial sale in connection with the Kimco Income Fund Il transaction described below.

During 2008, the Company transferred three properties to a wholly-owned consolidated entity, Kimco Income Fund Il (“KIF II""),
for $73.9 million, including $50.6 million in non-recourse mortgage debt. During 2008 the Company sold a 26.4% non-controlling own-
ership interest in the entity to third parties for approximately $32.5 million, which approximated the Company’s cost. The Company
continues to consolidate this entity.

Additionally, during 2008, the Company disposed of an operating property for approximately $21.4 million. The Company provided
seller financing for approximately $3.6 million, which bears interest at 109% per annum and is scheduled to mature on May I, 2011. Due
to the terms of this financing the Company deferred its gain of $3.7 million from this sale.

Additionally, during 2008, a consolidated joint venture in which the Company had a preferred equity investment disposed of a
property for a sales price of approximately $35.0 million. As a result of this capital transaction, the Company received approximately
$3.5 million of profit participation, before noncontrolling interest of approximately $1.1 million. This profit participation has been recorded
as income from other real estate investments and is reflected in Income from discontinued operating properties in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Net loss attributable to the Company for 2009 was $3.9 million. Net income attributable to the Company for 2008 was $249.9
million. On a diluted per share basis, net loss attributable to the Company was $0.15 for 2009, as compared to net income of $0.78 for
2008. These changes are primarily attributable to (i) an increase in impairment charges of approximately $57.8 million, net of income
taxes and noncontrolling interests, resulting from continuing declines in the real estate markets and equity securities, (ii) a reduction
in Income from other real estate investments, primarily due to a decrease in profit participation from the Company's Preferred Equity
program, (iii) a decrease in equity in income of joint ventures, primarily due to a decrease in income from the Albertson’s investment
and impairment charges relating to five joint venture investments, and (iv) lower gains on sales of development properties, partially
offset by (v) an increase in revenues from rental properties primarily due to acquisitions of operating properties during 2009 and 2008.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company’s capital resources include accessing the public debt and equity capital markets, when available, mortgage and con-
struction loan financing and immediate access to unsecured revolving credit facilities with aggregate bank commitments of approximately
$1.7 billion.

The Company’s cash flow activities are summarized as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Net cash flow provided by operating activities $4799 $4036 $ 5676
Net cash flow provided by/(used for) investing activites $ 379 $(343.2) $(7814)
Net cash flow (used for)/provided by financing activities $(514.7) $ (745) $ 262.4

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Company anticipates that cash on hand, borrowings under its revolving credit facilities, issuance of equity and public debt,
as well as other debt and equity alternatives, will provide the necessary capital required by the Company. Net cash flow provided by
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2010, was primarily attributable to (i) cash flow from the diverse portfolio of
rental properties, (ii) the acquisition of operating properties during 2010 and 2009, (iii) new leasing, expansion and re-tenanting of core
portfolio properties and (iv) distributions from the Company's joint venture programs.
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Cash flow provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2010, was approximately $479.9 million, as compared
to approximately $403.6 million for the comparable period in 2009. The change of approximately $76.3 million is primarily attributable
to (i) an increase in distributions from joint ventures of approximately $26.2 million, primarily from increases in distributions from the
Albertson’s investment and various other real estate joint ventures, (ii) a decrease in prepaid income taxes of approximately $22.6 million
during 2010 as compared to 2009 primarily from the Company's receipt of a federal tax refund from its filing of carryback claims for its
taxable REIT subsidiary, KRS and (iii) additional incremental earnings due to the acquisitions of operating properties during 2010 and 2009.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash flow provided by investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2010, was approximately $37.9 million, as compared to a
cash flows used for investing activities of approximately $343.2 million for the comparable period in 2009. This change of approximately
$38I.1 million resulted primarily from decreases in (i) the acquisition of and improvements to operating real estate and real estate under
development, (ii) an increase in proceeds from the sale of operating properties, partially offset by, (i) a decrease in proceeds from
the sale of marketable securities (iv) an increase in investments and advances to real estate joint ventures, (v) a decrease in reimburse-
ments of advances to real estate joint ventures, and (vi) a decrease in proceeds from the sale of development properties during the
year ended December 31, 2010, as compared to the corresponding period in 2009.

Acquisitions of and Improvements to Operating Real Estate

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company expended approximately $182.5 million towards acquisition of and
improvements to operating real estate including $74.5 million expended in connection with redevelopments and re-tenanting projects
as described below. (See Note 4 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K\)

The Company has an ongoing program to reformat and re-tenant its properties to maintain or enhance its competitive position in
the marketplace. The Company anticipates its capital commitment toward these and other redevelopment projects during 2011 will be
approximately $15.0 million to $25.0 million. The funding of these capital requirements will be provided by cash flow from operating
activities and availability under the Company’s revolving lines of credit.

Investments and Advances to Real Estate Joint Ventures

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company expended approximately $138.8 million for investments and advances
to real estate joint ventures and received approximately $85.2 million from reimbursements of advances to real estate joint ventures.
(See Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K))

Acquisitions of and Improvements to Real Estate Under Development

The Company is engaged in ground-up development projects which consist of (i) U.S. ground-up development projects which will
be held as long-term investments by the Company and (i) various ground-up development projects located in Latin America for long-
term investment. During 2009, the Company changed its merchant building business strategy from a sale upon completion strategy to
a long-term hold strategy. Those properties previously considered merchant building have been either placed in service as long-term
investment properties or included in U.S. ground-up development projects. The ground-up development projects generally have
significant pre-leasing prior to the commencement of construction. As of December 31, 2010, the Company had in progress a total
of six ground-up development projects, consisting of (i) two ground-up development projects located in Mexico, (ii) two ground-up
development projects located in the U.S,, (iii) one ground-up development project located in Chile and (iv) one ground-up develop-
ment project located in Brazil.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company expended approximately $42.0 million in connection with construction
costs related to ground-up development projects. The Company anticipates its capital commitment during 2011 toward these and other
development projects will be approximately $25.0 million to $35.0 million. The proceeds from construction loans and availability under
the Company's revolving lines of credit are expected to be sufficient to fund these anticipated capital requirements.

Dispositions and Transfers

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company received net proceeds of approximately $246.6 million relating to the sale
of various operating properties and ground-up development projects. (See Notes 5 and 7 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K))

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash flow used for financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2010, was approximately $514.7 million, as compared to
approximately $74.5 million for the comparable period in 2009. This change of approximately $440.2 million resulted primarily from the
Company'’s deleveraging efforts to strengthen the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. As a result of these efforts, there was (i) a
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decrease in proceeds from the issuance of stock of approximately $886.6 million in 2010 as compared to 2009, (ii) a decrease in proceeds
from mortgage/construction loan financing of approximately $419.3 million, (iii) an increase in the repayment of unsecured term loan/notes
of approximately $43.0 million, (iv) decreases in proceeds from issuance of unsecured term loans/notes of approximately $70.3 million and
(V) an increase in the redemption of noncontrolling interests of approximately $49.1 million, partially offset by (vi) a net decrease of approxi-
mately $565.4 million in net borrowings/repayments under the Company’s unsecured revolving credit facilities, (vii) an overall decrease
in aggregate principal payments of approximately $430.0 million and (viii) a decrease in dividends paid of approximately $24.1 million.

The Company continually evaluates its debt maturities, and, based on management’s current assessment, believes it has viable
financing and refinancing alternatives that will not materially adversely impact its expected financial results. The credit environment has
improved and the Company continues to pursue opportunities with large commercial U.S. and global banks, select life insurance com-
panies and certain regional and local banks. The Company has noticed a continuing trend that although pricing and loan-to-value ratios
remain dependent on specific deal terms, generally spreads for non-recourse mortgage financing are compressing and loan-to-values
are gradually increasing from levels a year ago. The unsecured debt markets are functioning well and credit spreads have decreased
dramatically from a year ago. The Company continues to assess 2011 and beyond to ensure the Company is prepared if the current
credit market conditions deteriorate.

Debt maturities for 2011 consist of: $112.5 million of consolidated debt; $685.2 million of unconsolidated joint venture debt; and
$276.4 million of preferred equity debt, assuming the utilization of extension options where available. The 2011 consolidated debt
maturities are anticipated to be repaid with operating cash flows, borrowings from the Company’s credit facilities, which at December
31, 2010, the Company had approximately $1.6 billion available under these credit facilities, and debt refinancings. The 2011 uncon-
solidated joint venture and preferred equity debt maturities are anticipated to be repaid through debt refinancing and partner capital
contributions, as deemed appropriate.

The Company intends to maintain strong debt service coverage and fixed charge coverage ratios as part of its commitment to
maintaining its investment-grade debt ratings. The Company plans to continue strengthening its balance sheet by pursuing deleveraging
efforts over time. The Company may, from time-to-time, seek to obtain funds through additional common and preferred equity offer-
ings, unsecured debt financings and/or mortgage/construction loan financings and other capital alternatives.

Since the completion of the Company’s IPO in 1991, the Company has utilized the public debt and equity markets as its principal
source of capital for its expansion needs. Since the IPO, the Company has completed additional offerings of its public unsecured debt
and equity, raising in the aggregate over $7.9 billion. Proceeds from public capital market activities have been used for the purposes of,
among other things, repaying indebtedness, acquiring interests in neighborhood and community shopping centers, funding ground-up
development projects, expanding and improving properties in the portfolio and other investments. These markets have experienced
extreme volatility but have more recently stabilized. As available, the Company will continue to access these markets. The Company
was added to the S&P 500 Index in March 2006, an index containing the stock of 500 Large Cap corporations, most of which are U.S.
corporations.

The Company has a $1.5 billion unsecured U.S. revolving credit facility (the "U.S. Credit Facility’) with a group of banks, which
was scheduled to expire in October 2011. During October 2010, the Company exercised its one-year extension option and the U.S.
Credit Facility is now scheduled to expire in October 2012. The U.S. Credit Facility has made available funds to finance general cor-
porate purposes, including (i) property acquisitions, (i) investments in the Company's institutional real estate management programs,
(iii) development and redevelopment costs and (iv) any short-term working capital requirements, including managing the Company’s
debt maturities. Interest on borrowings under the U.S. Credit Facility accrues at LIBOR plus 0425% and fluctuates in accordance with
changes in the Company’s senior debt ratings. As part of this U.S. Credit Facility, the Company has a competitive bid option whereby
the Company may auction up to $750.0 million of its requested borrowings to the bank group. This competitive bid option provides the
Company the opportunity to obtain pricing below the currently stated spread. A facility fee of 0.15% per annum is payable quarterly in
arrears. As part of the U.S. Credit Facility, the Company has a $200.0 million sub-limit which provides it the opportunity to borrow in
alternative currencies such as Pounds Sterling, Japanese Yen or Euros. As of December 31, 2010, the U.S. Credit Facility had a balance of
$123.2 million outstanding and approximately $23.7 million appropriated for letters of credit. Pursuant to the terms of the U.S. Credit
Facility, the Company, among other things, is subject to maintenance of various covenants. The Company is currently not in violation of
these covenants. The financial covenants for the U.S. Credit Facility are as follows:

Covenant Must Be As of 12/31/10
Total Indebtedness to Gross Asset Value (“GAV") <60% 44%
Total Priority Indebtedness to GAV <35% 1%
Unencumbered Asset Net Operating Income to Total Unsecured Interest Expense >|.75x 2.98x
Fixed Charge Total Adjusted EBITDA to Total Debt Service >1.50x 2.18x
Limitation of Investments, Loans and Advances <30% of GAV 9% of GAV
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For a full description of the U.S. Credit Facility’s covenants refer to the Credit Agreement dated as of October 25, 2007 filed in
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 25, 2007.

The Company also has a Canadian denominated (“CAD") $250.0 million unsecured credit facility with a group of banks. This
facility bears interest at a rate of CDOR plus 0.425%, subject to change in accordance with the Company’s senior debt ratings and was
scheduled to mature March 2011. During September 2010, the Company exercised its one-year extension option and the credit facility
is now scheduled to expire in March 2012. A facility fee of 0.15% per annum is payable quarterly in arrears. This facility also permits U.S.
dollar denominated borrowings. Proceeds from this facility are used for general corporate purposes, including the funding of Canadian
denominated investments. As of December 31, 2010, there was no outstanding balance under this credit facility. The Canadian facility
covenants are the same as the U.S. Credit Facility covenants described above.

During March 2008, the Company obtained a MXP 1.0 billion term loan, which bears interest at a rate of 8.58%, subject to change
in accordance with the Company'’s senior debt ratings, and is scheduled to mature in March 2013. The Company utilized proceeds from
this term loan to fully repay the outstanding balance of a MXP 500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility, which was terminated
by the Company. Remaining proceeds from this term loan were used for funding MXP denominated investments. As of December
31, 2010, the outstanding balance on this term loan was MXP .0 billion (approximately USD $80.9 million). The Mexican term loan
covenants are the same as the U.S. and Canadian Credit Facilities covenants described above.

The Company has a Medium Term Notes (“MTNs") program pursuant to which it may, from time-to-time, offer for sale its senior
unsecured debt for any general corporate purposes, including (i) funding specific liquidity requirements in its business, including property
acquisitions, development and redevelopment costs and (ii) managing the Company's debt maturities. (See Note |3 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K))

The Company's supplemental indenture governing its medium term notes and senior notes contains the following covenants, all of
which the Company is compliant with:

Covenant Must Be As of 12/31/10
Consolidated Indebtedness to Total Assets <60% 38%
Consolidated Secured Indebtedness to Total Assets <40% 9%
Consolidated Income Available for Debt Service to Maximum Annual Service Charge  >[.50x 34%
Unencumbered Total Asset Value to Consolidated Unsecured Indebtedness >1.50x 2.9x

For a full description of the various indenture covenants refer to the Indenture dated September I, 1993, First Supplemental Indenture
dated August 4, 1994, the Second Supplemental Indenture dated April 7, 1995, the Third Supplemental Indenture dated June 2, 2006,
the Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 24, 2009, the Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 31, 2006 and
First Supplemental Indenture dated October 31, 2006, as filed with the SEC. See Exhibits Index on page 35, for specific filing information.

During 2010, the Company issued $300.0 million of unsecured MTNs which bear interest at a rate of 4.30% and are scheduled to
mature on February I, 2018. Proceeds from these MTNs were used to repay (i) the Company's $100.0 million 5.304% MTNs which
were scheduled to mature in February 2011 and (ii) the Company’s $150.0 million 7.95% MTNs which were scheduled to mature in April
2011. The remaining proceeds were used for general corporate purposes. In connection with the optional make-whole provisions relating
to the prepayment of these notes, the Company incurred early extinguishment of debt charges aggregating approximately $6.5 million.

During April 2010, the Company issued $150.0 million CAD (approximately USD $141.1 million) unsecured notes to a group of pri-
vate investors at a rate of 5.99% scheduled to mature on April I3, 2018. Proceeds from these notes were used to repay the Company's
CAD $150.0 million 4.45% Series | unsecured notes which matured in April 2010.

Additionally, during 2010, the Company repaid (i) the remaining $46.5 million balance on its 4.62% MTNs, which matured in May
2010 and (ii) its $25.0 million 7.309% MTNs, which matured in September 2010.

During 2010, the Company (i) assumed approximately $144.8 million of individual non-recourse mortgage debt relating to the
acquisition of eight operating properties, including a decrease of approximately $4.4 million associated with fair value debt adjustments,
(i) assigned approximately $159.9 million in non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering three operating properties that were sold to
newly formed joint ventures in which the Company has noncontrolling interests, (iii) assigned approximately $81.0 million of non-recourse
mortgage debt encumbering an operating property that was sold to a third party and (iv) paid off approximately $226.0 million of
mortgage debt that encumbered |7 operating properties. In connection with the repayment of five of these mortgages, the Company
incurred early extinguishment of debt charges aggregating approximately $4.3 million.
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During April 2009, the Company filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3ASR, which is effective for a term of three years,
for the future unlimited offerings, from time-to-time, of debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares, common stock and common
stock warrants.

During August 2010, the Company issued 7,000,000 Depositary Shares (the “Class H Depositary Shares”), each representing a
one-hundredth fractional interest in a share of the Company’s 6.90% Class H Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value
per share (the “Class H Preferred Stock™). Dividends on the Class H Depositary Shares are cumulative and payable quarterly in arrears
at the rate of 6.90% per annum based on the $25.00 per share initial offering price, or $1.725 per annum. The Class H Depositary
Shares are redeemable, in whole or part, for cash on or after August 30, 2015, at the option of the Company, at a redemption price
of $25.00 per depositary share, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends thereon. The Class H Depositary Shares are not convertible
or exchangeable for any other property or securities of the Company. The net proceeds received from this offering of approximately
$169.2 million were used primarily to repay mortgage loans in the aggregate principal amount of approximately $150.0 million and for
general corporate purposes.

In addition to the public equity and debt markets as capital sources, the Company may, from time-to-time, obtain mortgage financ-
ing on selected properties and construction loans to partially fund the capital needs of its ground-up development projects. As of
December 31, 2010, the Company had over 430 unencumbered property interests in its portfolio.

In connection with its intention to continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, the Company expects to continue
paying regular dividends to its stockholders. These dividends will be paid from operating cash flows. The Company's Board of Directors
will continue to evaluate the Company’s dividend policy on a quarterly basis as they monitor sources of capital and evaluate the impact
of the economy and capital markets availability on operating fundamentals. Since cash used to pay dividends reduces amounts available
for capital investment, the Company generally intends to maintain a conservative dividend payout ratio, reserving such amounts as it
considers necessary for the expansion and renovation of shopping centers in its portfolio, debt reduction, the acquisition of interests
in new properties and other investments as suitable opportunities arise and such other factors as the Board of Directors considers
appropriate. Cash dividends paid were $307.0 million in 2010, as compared to $331.0 million in 2009 and $469.0 million in 2008.

Although the Company receives substantially all of its rental payments on a monthly basis, it generally intends to continue paying
dividends quarterly. Amounts accumulated in advance of each quarterly distribution will be invested by the Company in short-term
money market or other suitable instruments. The Company's Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.18 per
common share payable to shareholders of record on January 3, 2011, which was paid on January 18, 2011. Additionally, the Company's
Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.18 per common share payable to shareholders of record on April 5, 2011,
which will be paid on April |5, 2011.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Company has debt obligations relating to its revolving credit facilities, MTNSs, senior notes, mortgages and construction loans
with maturities ranging from less than one year to 25 years. As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s total debt had a weighted average
term to maturity of approximately 5.2 years. In addition, the Company has non-cancelable operating leases pertaining to its shopping
center portfolio. As of December 31, 2010, the Company has 48 shopping center properties that are subject to long-term ground leases
where a third party owns and has leased the underlying land to the Company to construct and/or operate a shopping center. In addi-
tion, the Company has |4 non-cancelable operating leases pertaining to its retail store lease portfolio. The following table summarizes
the Company’s debt maturities (excluding extension options and fair market value of debt adjustments aggregating approximately $3.2
million) and obligations under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2010 (in millions):

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015  Thereafter Total
Long-Term Debt-Principal®  $1474  $565.8 $651.7 $5214 $410.6 $1,7589 $4,055.8
Long-Term Debt-Interest® $2257 $2158 $1827 1414 $1235 $ 2330  $I,1221
Operating Leases
Ground Leases $119 $ 1L %106 102 $ 92 $ 1677 % 2207
Retail Store Leases $ 34 $ 26 3 23 7 % 13 $ l.6 $ 129

O Maturities utilized do not reflect extension options, which range from one to two years.
@ For loans which have interest at floating rates, future interest expense was calculated using the rate as of December 31, 2010.

The Company has $4.9 million of non-current uncertain tax benefits and related interest under the provisions of the authoritative
guidance that addresses accounting for income taxes, which are included in other liabilities on the Company's Consolidated Balance
Sheets at December 31, 2010. These amounts are not included in the table above because a reasonably reliable estimate regarding the
timing of settlements with the relevant tax authorities, if any, can not be made.
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The Company has $88.0 million of medium term notes, $2.6 million of unsecured notes payable and $35.2 million of mortgage
debt scheduled to mature in 2011. The Company anticipates satisfying these maturities with a combination of operating cash flows, its
unsecured revolving credit facilities, refinancing of debt and new debt issuances, when available.

The Company has issued letters of credit in connection with completion and repayment guarantees for construction loans encumber-
ing certain of the Company's ground-up development projects and guarantee of payment related to the Company's insurance program.
These letters of credit aggregate approximately $23.7 million.

During August 2009, the Company was obligated to issue a letter of credit for approximately CAD $66.0 million (approximately
USD $64.0 million) relating to a tax assessment dispute with the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA"). The letter of credit had been
issued under the Company’s CAD $250 million credit facility referred to above. The dispute was in regard to three of the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiaries which hold a 50% co-ownership interest in Canadian real estate. Applicable Canadian law requires that a
non-resident corporation post sufficient collateral to cover a claim for taxes assessed. As such, the Company issued its letter of credit
as required by the governing law. During November 2010, the Company was released from this tax assessment and as a result the
letter of credit was returned to the Company.

The Company holds a 15% noncontrolling ownership interest in each of three joint ventures, with three separate accounts man-
aged by Prudential Real Estate Investors (“PREI"), collectively, KimPru. KimPru had a term loan facility which bore interest at a rate of
LIBOR plus 1.25% and was scheduled to mature in August 2010. This facility was guaranteed by the Company with a guarantee from
PREI to the Company for 85% of any guaranty payment the Company was obligated to make. During July 2010, KimPru fully repaid
the $287.5 million outstanding balance on this facility primarily from capital contributions provided by the partners, at their respective
ownership percentages of 85% from PREl and 15% from the Company.

On a select basis, the Company provides guarantees on interest bearing debt held within real estate joint ventures in which the
Company has noncontrolling ownership interests. The Company is often provided with a back-stop guarantee from its partners. The
Company had the following outstanding guarantees as of December 31, 2010 (amounts in millions):

Amount of Maturity, with
Name of Joint Venture Guarantee Interest rate extensions Terms Type of debt
InTown Suites Management, Inc. ~ $147.5 LIBOR plus 0.375%") 2012 25% partner back-stop Unsecured credit facility
Willowick $ 245 LIBOR plus 1.50% 2012 5% partner back-stop Unsecured credit facility
Factoria Mall $ 523 LIBOR plus 4.00% 2012 Jointly and severally with partner Mortgage loan
RioCan $ 44 Prime plus 2.25% 2011 Jointly with 50% partner Letter of credit facility
Cherokee $ 45.1 Floating Prime plus 1.9% 2011 50% partner back-stop Construction loan
Towson $ 100 LIBOR plus 3.50% 2014 Jointly and severally with partner Mortgage loan
Hillsborough $ 31 LIBOR plus 1.50% 2012 Jointly and severally with partner Promissory note
Derby®? $ 110 LIBOR plus 2.75% 2011 Jointly and severally with partner Promissory note
Sequoia $ 58 LIBOR plus 0.75% 2012 Jointly and severally with partner Promissory note
East Northport $ 32 LIBOR plus 1.50% 2012 Jointly and severally with partner Promissory note

() The joint venture obtained an interest rate swap at 5.37% on $128.0 million of this debt. The swap is designated as a cash flow hedge and is deemed highly effective; as such, adjustments to
the swaps fair value are recorded at the joint venture level in other comprehensive income.
) Subsequent to December 31, 2010, this property was sold to a third party, as such, the debt was repaid and the Company was relieved of this guarantee.

In connection with the construction of its development projects and related infrastructure, certain public agencies require posting
of performance and surety bonds to guarantee that the Company’s obligations are satisfied. These bonds expire upon the completion
of the improvements and infrastructure. As of December 31, 2010, the Company had approximately $45.3 million in performance and
surety bonds outstanding.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Unconsolidated Real Estate Joint Ventures

The Company has investments in various unconsolidated real estate joint ventures with varying structures. These joint ventures
primarily operate either shopping center properties or are established for development projects. Such arrangements are generally
with third-party institutional investors, local developers and individuals. The properties owned by the joint ventures are primarily
financed with individual non-recourse mortgage loans, however, the Company, on a selective basis, obtains unsecured financing for
certain joint ventures. These unsecured financings are guaranteed by the Company with guarantees from the joint venture partners
for their proportionate amounts of any guaranty payment the Company is obligated to make (see guarantee table above). Non-recourse
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mortgage debt is generally defined as debt whereby the lenders’ sole recourse with respect to borrower defaults is limited to the
value of the property collateralized by the mortgage. The lender generally does not have recourse against any other assets owned by
the borrower or any of the constituent members of the borrower, except for certain specified exceptions listed in the particular loan
documents (See Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report on Form [0-K). These invest-
ments include the following joint ventures:

Kimco Number Non-Recourse Recourse Number of ~ Average ~ Weighted
Ownership of Total GLA  Mortgage Payable ~ Notes Payable ~Encumbered Interest ~ Average Term

Venture Interest  Properties  (in thousands) (in millions) (in millions) Properties Rate (months)
KimPru© 15.0%@ 65 11,339 $1,388.00 $ — 59 556% 59.8
RioCan Venture® 50.00% 45 9,287 $ 96850 $ — 45 5.84% 520
KIR® 45.00% 59 12,593 $ 95470 $ — 50 6.54% 531
KUBS® 17.9% 43 6,260 $ 73360 $ — 43 5.70% 548
InTown Suites) 0 138 N/A $ 480.50 $147.50 35 5.19% 46.8
BIG Shopping Centers() 36.50% 22 3,508 $ 40720 $ — 17 547% 725
SEB Immobilien) 15.00% 'l 1473 $ 19350 $ — 10 5.67% 714
CPP® 55.00% 5 2,137 $ 16870 $ — 3 445% 393
Kimco Income Fund® 1520% 12 1,534 $ 167.80 $ — 12 545% 447

@ Ownership % is a blended rate.

® See Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments regarding guarantees by the Company and its joint venture partners.
© Represents the Company’s joint ventures with Prudential Real Estate Investors.

@ Represents the Kimco Income Operating Partnership, L.P, formed in 1998.

© Represents the Company’s joint ventures with UBS Wealth Management North American Property Fund Limited.
® Represents the Company'’s joint ventures with BIG Shopping Centers (TLV:BIG), an Israeli public company.

© Represents the Company’s joint ventures with Canadian Pension Plan Investment Board (CPPIB)

) Represents the Company’s joint ventures with SEB Immobilien Investment GmbH.

O Represents the Kimco Income Fund, formed in 2004.

0 Represents the Company’s joint ventures with Westmont Hospitality Group.

() Represents the Company’s joint ventures with RioCan Real Estate Investment Trust.

O The Company’s share of this investment is subject to fluctuation and is dependent upon property cash flows.

The Company has various other unconsolidated real estate joint ventures with varying structures. As of December 31, 2010, these
other unconsolidated joint ventures had individual non-recourse mortgage loans aggregating approximately $2.3 billion and unsecured
notes payable aggregating approximately $41.8 million. The aggregate debt as of December 31, 2010 of all of the Company’s unconsoli-
dated real estate joint ventures is approximately $8.0 billion, of which the Company's share of this debt was approximately $3.0 billion.
These loans have scheduled maturities ranging from one month to 24 years and bear interest at rates ranging from 1.01% to 10.50% at
December 31, 2010. Approximately $685.2 million of the outstanding loan balance matures in 2011, of which the Company’s share is
approximately $252.9 million. These maturing loans are anticipated to be repaid with operating cash flows, debt refinancing and partner
capital contributions, as deemed appropriate. (See Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual
report on Form 10-K))

Other Real Estate Investments

The Company previously provided capital to owners and developers of real estate properties through its Preferred Equity pro-
gram. The Company accounts for its preferred equity investments under the equity method of accounting. As of December 31, 2010,
the Company’s net investment under the Preferred Equity Program was approximately $275.4 million relating to 171 properties. As of
December 31, 2010, these preferred equity investment properties had individual non-recourse mortgage loans aggregating approxi-
mately $1.2 billion. Due to the Company’s preferred position in these investments, the Company’s share of each investment is subject
to fluctuation and is dependent upon property cash flows. The Company’s maximum exposure to losses associated with its preferred
equity investments is primarily limited to its invested capital.

Additionally, during July 2007, the Company invested approximately $81.7 million of preferred equity capital in a portfolio comprised
of 403 net leased properties which are divided into 30 master leased pools with each pool leased to individual corporate operators.
These properties consist of a diverse array of free-standing restaurants, fast food restaurants, convenience and auto parts stores. As
of December 31, 2010, these properties were encumbered by third party loans aggregating approximately $403.2 million with interest
rates ranging from 5.08% to 10.47% with a weighted average interest rate of 9.3% and maturities ranging from one year to |1 years.

During June 2002, the Company acquired a 90% equity participation interest in an existing leveraged lease of 30 properties. The
properties are leased under a long-term bond-type net lease whose primary term expires in 2016, with the lessee having certain
renewal option rights. The Company’s cash equity investment was approximately $4.0 million. This equity investment is reported as
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a net investment in leveraged lease in accordance with the FASB's Lease guidance. The net investment in leveraged lease reflects the
original cash investment adjusted by remaining net rentals, estimated unguaranteed residual value, unearned and deferred income and
deferred taxes relating to the investment.

As of December 31, 2010, I8 of these leveraged lease properties were sold, whereby the proceeds from the sales were used to
pay down the mortgage debt by approximately $31.2 million. As of December 31, 2010, the remaining 12 properties were encumbered
by third-party non-recourse debt of approximately $33.4 million that is scheduled to fully amortize during the primary term of the lease
from a portion of the periodic net rents receivable under the net lease. As an equity participant in the leveraged lease, the Company has
no recourse obligation for principal or interest payments on the debt, which is collateralized by a first mortgage lien on the properties
and collateral assignment of the lease. Accordingly, this debt has been offset against the related net rental receivable under the lease.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION

Many of the Company’s leases contain provisions designed to mitigate the adverse impact of inflation. Such provisions include clauses
enabling the Company to receive payment of additional rent calculated as a percentage of tenants’ gross sales above pre-determined
thresholds, which generally increase as prices rise, and/or escalation clauses, which generally increase rental rates during the terms of
the leases. Such escalation clauses often include increases based upon changes in the consumer price index or similar inflation indices.
In addition, many of the Company’s leases are for terms of less than 10 years, which permits the Company to seek to increase rents to
market rates upon renewal. Most of the Company’s leases require the tenant to pay an allocable share of operating expenses, including
common area maintenance costs, real estate taxes and insurance, thereby reducing the Company’s exposure to increases in costs and
operating expenses resulting from inflation. The Company periodically evaluates its exposure to short-term interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates and will, from time-to-time, enter into interest rate protection agreements and/or foreign currency hedge
agreements which mitigate, but do not eliminate, the effect of changes in interest rates on its floating-rate debt and fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates.

MARKET AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS; REAL ESTATE AND RETAIL SHOPPING SECTOR

In the U.S., economic and market conditions have stabilized. Credit conditions have continued to improve from the prior year
with increased access and availability to secured mortgage debt and the unsecured bond and equity markets. However, there remains
concern over high unemployment rates and an uncertain economic recovery in Europe. These conditions have contributed to slow
growth in the U.S. and international economies.

Historically, real estate has been subject to a wide range of cyclical economic conditions that affect various real estate markets
and geographic regions with differing intensities and at different times. Different regions of the United States have and may continue to
experience varying degrees of economic growth or distress. Adverse changes in general or local economic conditions could result in
the inability of some tenants of the Company to meet their lease obligations and could otherwise adversely affect the Company’s ability
to attract or retain tenants. The Company’s shopping centers are typically anchored by two or more national tenants who generally
offer day-to-day necessities, rather than high-priced luxury items. In addition, the Company seeks to reduce its operating and leasing
risks through ownership of a portfolio of properties with a diverse geographic and tenant base.

The Company monitors potential credit issues of its tenants, and analyzes the possible effects to the financial statements of the
Company and its unconsolidated joint ventures. In addition to the collectability assessment of outstanding accounts receivable, the
Company evaluates the related real estate for recoverability as well as any tenant related deferred charges for recoverability, which may
include straight-line rents, deferred lease costs, tenant improvements, tenant inducements and intangible assets.

The retail shopping sector has been negatively affected by recent economic conditions, particularly in the Western United States
(primarily California). These conditions may result in the Company’s tenants delaying lease commencements or declining to extend or
renew leases upon expiration. These conditions also have forced some weaker retailers, in some cases, to declare bankruptcy and/or
close stores. Certain retailers have announced store closings even though they have not filed for bankruptcy protection. However, any
of these particular store closings affecting the Company often represent a small percentage of the Company’s overall gross leasable area
and the Company does not currently expect store closings to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s overall performance.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Footnote | of the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company's primary market risk exposure is interest rate risk. The following table presents the Company’s aggregate fixed rate
and variable rate domestic and foreign debt obligations outstanding as of December 31, 2010, with corresponding weighted-average
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interest rates sorted by maturity date. The table does not include extension options where available. Amounts include fair value
purchase price allocation adjustments for assumed debt. The information is presented in U.S. dollar equivalents, which is the
Company's reporting currency. The instruments’ actual cash flows are denominated in U.S. dollars, Canadian dollars (CAD), Chilean
Pesos (CLP) and Mexican pesos (MXP) as indicated by geographic description ($USD equivalent in millions).

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total Fair Value
U.S. Dollar Denominated
Secured Debt
Fixed Rate $ 83 $1252 $ 799 $1990 §$ 624 $ 457.1 $ 9319 $ 1,000.5
Average Interest Rate 6.56%  625% @ 6.19%  644% 491% 6.46% 6.30%
Variable Rate $270 $ 755 % 29 $ 209 $ 59 $ — $ 1322 $ 1382
Average Interest Rate 3.09%  394%  500% @ 2.17%  026% 0.00% 3.35%
Unsecured Debt
Fixed Rate $880 $2159 $2758 $2952 $350.0 $1,1909 $24158 $ 2,571.1
Average Interest Rate 4.82%  600% 541%  522%  529% 5.66% 5.53%
Variable Rate $26 $1324 $ — $ — $ — $ — % 1350 $ 1345
Average Interest Rate 525% 1.02% 0.00% 000%  0.00% 0.00% [.10%
CAD Denominated
Unsecured Debt
Fixed Rate $ — $ — %2004 $ — 3 — $ 1503 $ 3507 $ 3753
Average Interest Rate 0.00% 000% 5.18% 000%  0.00% 5.99% 5.53%
MXP Denominated
Unsecured Debt
Fixed Rate $ — $ — $809 $ — % — $ — $ 89 $ 813
Average Interest Rate 0.00% 000% 858% 000%  0.00% 0.00% 8.58%
CLP Denominated
Secured Debt
Variable Rate $— % - % — % — % — % 125 $ 125 $ 143
Average Interest Rate 0.00% 000% 0.00% 0.00%  0.00% 5.79% 5.79%

Based on the Company’s variable-rate debt balances, interest expense would have increased by approximately $2.8 million in 2010
if short-term interest rates were 1.0% higher.

The following table presents the Company's foreign investments as of December 31, 2010. Investment amounts are shown in their
respective local currencies and the U.S. dollar equivalents:

Foreign Investment (in millions)

Country Local Currency US Dollars
Mexican real estate investments (MXP) 8,715.0 $705.7
Canadian real estate joint venture and marketable securities investments (CAD) 391.6 $3925
Australian marketable securities investments (Australian Dollar) 196.0 $182.3
Chilean real estate investments (CLP) 18,178.1 $ 277
Brazilian real estate investments (Brazilian Real) 55.7 $ 334
Peruvian real estate investments (Peruvian Nuevo Sol) 7.1 $ 25

The foreign currency exchange risk has been partially mitigated, but not eliminated, through the use of local currency denominated
debt. The Company has not, and does not plan to, enter into any derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
As of December 31, 2010, the Company has no other material exposure to market risk.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The response to this Item 8 is included in our audited Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which are contained in a separate
section of this annual report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evalu-
ated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules [3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act"”)) as of the end of the period covered by this report.
Based on such evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such
period, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There have not been any changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules [3a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fourth fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2010 to which this report relates that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rule [3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer; we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, our management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2010.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to “Proposal |—Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance,”
“Committees of the Board of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM II. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Executive
Compensation Committee Report,” “Compensation Tables” and “Compensation of Directors’ in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” and “Compensation Tables" in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and
“Corporate Governance” in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to “Independent Registered Public Accountants” in our
Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Form 10-K
Report
Page

I. Financial Statements—

The following consolidated financial information is included as a separate section of this annual report

on Form 10-K.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 39
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 40

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 41

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 42

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 43

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 44

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45
2. Financial Statement Schedules—

Schedule Il—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 93

Schedule lll—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation 94

Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate 108

All other schedules are omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in amounts

sufficient to require submission of the schedule.

3. Exhibits—

The exhibits listed on the accompanying Index to Exhibits are filed as part of this report. 35
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
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3.1(a)  Articles of Restatement of the Company, dated January 14, 2011

3.1(b)  Articles Supplementary of the Company dated November 8, 2010
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4.1 Agreement of the Company pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii)(A) of Regulation
S-K

4.2 Form of Certificate of Designations for the Preferred Stock

4.3 Indenture dated September I, 1993, between Kimco Realty Corporation and
Bank of New York (as successor to I1B] Schroder Bank and Trust Company)
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Corporation, as guarantor and BNY Trust Company of Canada, as trustee

47 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 2, 2006
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements olf Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION
By: /s/ David B. Henry

David B. Henry

Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 25, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Milton Cooper
Milton Cooper Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors February 25, 2011
/s/ David B. Henry
David B. Henry Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors ~ February 25, 2011
/s/ Richard G. Dooley
Richard G. Dooley Director February 25, 2011
/s/ Joe Grills
Joe Grills Director February 25, 2011
/s/ F. Patrick Hughes
F. Patrick Hughes Director February 25, 2011
/s/ Frank Lourenso
Frank Lourenso Director February 25, 2011
/s/ Richard Saltzman
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Philip Coviello Director February 25, 2011
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Michael V. Pappagallo Executive Vice President - Chief Operating Officer February 25, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Kimco Realty Corporation:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item [5@)(l) present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kimco Realty Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) at December 31, 2010
and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial
statement schedules listed in the index appearing under Item 15()(2) present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained,
in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included
in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements, on the financial statement schedules, and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based
on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reli-
ability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i)pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii)provide reasonable assurance regarding preven-
tion or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
February 28, 2011
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KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

December 31,

(in thousands, except share information) 2010 2009
Assets:
Real Estate
Rental property
Land $ 1,837,348 $ 1937428
Building and improvements 6,420,405 6,479,128
8,257,753 8,416,556
Less, accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,549,380) (1,343,148)
6,708,373 7,073,408
Real estate under development 335,007 465,785
Real estate, net 7,043,380 7,539,193
Investments and advances in real estate joint ventures 1,382,749 1,103,625
Other real estate investments 418564 553,244
Mortgages and other financing receivables 108,493 131,332
Cash and cash equivalents 125,154 122,058
Marketable securities 223,991 209,593
Accounts and notes receivable 130,536 113,610
Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 147,048 160,995
Other assets 253,960 249,429
Total assets $ 9,833,875 $10,183,079
Liabilities & Stockholders’ Equity:
Notes payable $ 2982421 $ 3,000,303
Mortgages payable 1,046,313 1,388,259
Construction loans payable 30,253 45,821
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 154,482 142,670
Dividends payable 89,037 76,707
Other liabilities 275,023 311,037
Total liabilities 4,577,529 4,964,797
Redeemable noncontrolling interests 95,060 100,304
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 3,092,000 and 3,232,000 shares, respectively
Class F Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 700,000 shares
Issued and outstanding 700,000 shares
Aggregate liquidation preference $175,000 700 700
Class G Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 184,000 shares
Issued and outstanding 184,000 shares
Aggregate liquidation preference $460,000 184 184
Class H Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 70,000 shares
Issued and outstanding 70,000 shares
Aggregate liquidation preference $175,000 70 —
Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 750,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding 406,423,514, and 405,532,566, shares, respectively. 4,064 4,055
Paid-in capital 5,469,841 5,283,204
Cumulative distributions in excess of net income (515,164) (338,738)
4,959,695 4,949,405
Accumulated other comprehensive income (23,853) (96,432)
Total stockholders' equity 4,935,842 4,852,973
Noncontrolling interests 225,444 265,005
Total equity 5161286 5117978
Total liabilities and equity $ 9,833,875 $10,183,079

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year EnCded December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2010 2009 2008
Revenues from rental property $ 849549 $ 773423 $ 751,196
Rental property expenses:
Rent (14,076) (13.874) (13,147)
Real estate taxes (116,288) (110,432) (96,856)
Operating and maintenance (122,584) (108,518) (103,761)
Impairment of property carrying values (3,502) (36,700) -
Mortgage and other financing income 9,405 14,956 18,333
Management and other fee income 39,922 42,452 47,627
Depreciation and amortization (238,474) (226,608) (204,809)
General and administrative expenses (109,201) (108,043) (1'14,941)
Interest, dividends and other investment income 21,256 33,098 56,119
Other (expense)/income, net (4,277) 5577 389
Interest expense (226,388) (208,018) (212,198)
Early extinguishment of debt charges (10,811) — —
Income from other real estate investments 43,345 36,180 87,621
Gain on sale of development properties 2,130 5751 36,565
Impairments:
Real estate under development (1'1,700) (2,100) (13,613)
Investments in other real estate investments (13,442) (49,279) -
Marketable securities and other investments (5,266) (30,050) (118416)
Investments in real estate joint ventures — (43,658) (15,500)
Income/(loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and equity in income of joint ventures 89,598 (25,843) 104,609
(Provision)/benefit for income taxes, net (3,415) 30,144 ['1,645
Equity in income of joint ventures, net 55,705 6,309 132,208
Income from continuing operations 141,888 10,610 248,462
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operating properties, net of tax 20,379 4,604 6,740
Loss/impairments on operating properties held for sale/sold, net of tax (4,925) (13,441) (598)
Gain on disposition of operating properties, net of tax 1,932 421 20,018
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 17,386 (8,416) 26,160
(Loss)/gain on transfer of operating properties (57) 26 [,195
Gain on sale of operating properties 2434 3,841 587
Total net gain on transfer or sale of operating properties 2,377 3,867 1,782
Net income 161,651 6,061 276,404
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (18,783) (10,003) (26,502)
Net income/(loss) attributable to the Company 142,868 (3,942) 249,902
Preferred stock dividends (51,346) (47,288) (47,288)
Net income/(loss) available to common shareholders $ 91,522 $ (51,230) $ 202,614

Per common share:

Income/(loss) from continuing operations:

—Basic $ 019 $ (0.12) $ 069
—Diluted $ 019 $ (012) $ 0.6
Net income/(loss) attributable to the Company:
—Basic $ 022 $ (0I5 $ 079
—Diluted $ 022 $ (0I5 $ 0.78
Weighted average shares:
—Basic 405,827 350,077 257,811
—Diluted 406,201 350,077 258,843
Amounts attributable to the Company’s common shareholders:
Income/(loss) from continuing operations, net of tax $ 79072 $ (42655) $ 177,760
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations 12,450 (8,575) 24,854
Net Income/(loss) $ 91,522 $ (51,230) $ 202614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

41



KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2010 2009 2008
Net income $161,651 % 6061  $276404
Other comprehensive income:

Change in unrealized gain/(loss) on marketable securities 37,006 43,662 (71,535)

Change in unrealized loss on interest rate swaps (420) (233) (170)

Change in foreign currency translation adjustment 52,849 20,658 (149,836)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) 89,435 64,087 (221,541)

Comprehensive income 251,086 70,148 54,863
Comprehensive (income)/loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (35,639) 9,019 (17,801)
Comprehensive income attributable to the Company $215447  $79,167 $ 37,062

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Retained
Earnings/
(Cumulative
Distributions

Accumulated

Other Total

in Excess of Comprehensive Preferred Common  Paid-in Stockholders’ Noncontrolling Comprehensive
(in thousands) Net Income) Income Stock Stock Capital Equity Interest Total Equity Income
Balance, January I, 2008 $180005 $ 33299  $884 $2528 $3,677509 $3894225 $274916  $4,169,14]
Contributions from noncontrolling interests — — — — — — 92,490 92,490
Comprehensive income:
Net income 249,902 — — — — 249,902 26,502 276404 $ 276,404
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Change in unrealized loss on marketable securities — (71,535) — — — (71,535) — (71,535) (71,535)
Change in unrealized loss on interest rate swaps — (170) — — — (170) — (170) (170)
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment — (141,135) — — — (141,135) (8,701) (149,836) 149,836)
Comprehensive income $ 54863
Redeemable noncontrolling interest — — — — — — (7,906) (7,906)
Dividends ($1.64 per common share; $1.6625 per Class F
Depositary Share, and $1.9375 per Class G Depositary
Share, respectively) (488,069) — — — — (488,069) — (488,069)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests — — — — - — (77,460) (77,460)
Unit redemptions — — — — — — (80,000) (80,000)
Issuance of units — — — — — — [,194 [,194
Issuance of common stock — — — 64 486,709 486,873 — 486,873
Exercise of common stock options — — — 19 41,330 41,349 — 41,349
Amortization of equity awards — — — — 12,258 12,258 — 12,258
Balance, December 31, 2008 (58,162)  (179,541) 884 2711 4217806 3983698 221,035 4204733
Contributions from noncontrolling interests — — — — — — 73,601 73,601
Comprehensive income:
Net (loss)/income (3942) — — — — (3942) 10,003 6061 $ 606l
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Change in unrealized gain on marketable securities — 43,662 — — — 43,662 — 43,662 43,662
Change in unrealized loss on interest rate swaps — (233) — — — (233) — (233) (233)
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment — 39,680 — — — 39,680 (19,022) 20,658 20,658
Comprehensive income $ 70,148
Redeemable noncontrolling interest — — — — — — (6,429) (6,429)
Dividends ($0.72 per common share; $1.6625 per Class F
Depositary Share, and $1.9375 per Class G Depositary
Share, respectively) (276,634) — — — — (276,634) — (276,634)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests — — — — — — (9,626) (9,626)
Issuance of units — — — — — — 126 126
Unit redemptions — — — — — — (346) (346)
Issuance of common stock — — — 1,343 1064919 1,066,262 — 1,066,262
Exercise of common stock options — — — I 1234 1235 — 1235
Transfers from noncontrolling interests — — — (11,126) (I'1,126) (4,337) (15,463)
Amortization of equity awards — — — — 10,371 10,371 — 10,371
Balance, December 31, 2009 (338,738) (96/432) 884 4055 5283204 4852973 265,005 5117978
Contributions from noncontrolling interests — — — — — — 2,721 2,721
Comprehensive income:
Net income 142,868 — — — — 142,868 18,783 161,651 $ 161,651
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Change in unrealized gain on marketable securities — 37,006 — — — 37,006 — 37,006 37,006
Change in unrealized loss on interest rate swaps — (420) — — — (420) — (420) (420)
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment — 35993 — — — 35993 16,856 52,849 52,849
Comprehensive income $ 251086
Redeemable noncontrolling interests — — — — — — (6,500) (6,500)
Dividends ($0.66 per common share; $1.6625 per Class F
Depositary Share, $1.9375 per Class G Depositary share
and $0.5798 per Class H Depositary share, respectively) (319,294) — — — — (319,294) — (319,294)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests — — — — — — (64,658) (64,658)
Issuance of common stock — — — 3 4426 4,429 — 4,429
Issuance of preferred stock — — 70 — 169,114 169,184 — 169,184
Exercise of common stock options — — — 6 8561 8,567 — 8,567
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests — — — — (7,196) (7,196) (6,763) (13959)
Amortization of equity awards — — — — 11,732 11,732 — 11,732
Balance, December 31, 2010 $(515.164) $ (23853) $954 $4064 $5469.841 $4.935842  $225444  $5.161.286

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2010 2009 2008
Cash flow from operating activities:

Net income $ 161651  $ 6061 $276404
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 247,637 227776 206518
Loss on operating properties held for sale/sold/transferred 57 285 598
Impairment charges 39,121 175,087 147,529
Gain on sale of development properties (2,130) (5,751) (36,565)
Gain on sale/transfer of operating properties (4,366) (4,666) (21,800)
Equity in income of joint ventures, net (55,705) (6,309)  (132,208)
Income from other real estate investments (39,642) (30,039) (79,099)
Distributions from joint ventures 162,860 136,697 261,993
Cash retained from excess tax benefits (103) — (1,958)
Change in accounts and notes receivable (17,388) (19,878) (9,704)
Change in accounts payable and accrued expenses 15811 4,101 (1,983)
Change in other operating assets and liabilities (27,868) (79,782) (42,126)
Net cash flow provided by operating activities 479,935 403,582 567,599
Cash flow from investing activities:

Acquisition of and improvements to operating real estate (182,482) (374501)  (266,198)
Acquisition of and improvements to real estate under development (41,975) (143283)  (388,991)
Investment in marketable securities (9,041) — (263,985)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 30,455 80,586 52,427
Proceeds from transferred operating/development properties — — 32,400
Investments and advances to real estate joint ventures (138,796) (109,941)  (219913)
Reimbursements of advances to real estate joint ventures 85,205 99,573 | 18,742
Other real estate investments (12,528) (12,447) (77,455)
Reimbursements of advances to other real estate investments 30,861 18,232 71,762
Investment in mortgage loans receivable (2,745) (7,657) (68,908)
Collection of mortgage loans receivable 27,587 48,403 54,717
Other investments (4,004) (4,247) (25,466)
Reimbursements of other investments 8,792 4,935 23254
Proceeds from sale of operating properties 238,746 34,825 120,729
Proceeds from sale of development properties 7,829 22,286 55,535
Net cash flow provided by (used for) investing activities 37,904 (343,236) (781,350)
Cash flow from financing activities:

Principal payments on debt, excluding normal amortization of rental property debt (226,155) (437,710) (88,841)
Principal payments on rental property debt (23,645) (16,978) (14,047)
Principal payments on construction loan financings (30,383) (255,512) (30,814)
Proceeds from mortgage/construction loan financings 13,960 433,221 76,025
Borrowings under revolving unsecured credit facilities 42,390 351,880 812,329
Repayment of borrowings under unsecured revolving credit facilities (53,699) (928572)  (281,056)
Proceeds from issuance of unsecured term loan/notes 449,720 520,000 —
Repayment of unsecured term loan/notes (471,725) (428,701)  (125,000)
Financing origination costs (5,330) (13,730) (3,300)
Redemption of noncontrolling interests (80,852) (31,783) (66,803)
Dividends paid (306,964) (331,024)  (469,024)
Cash retained from excess tax benefits 103 — 1,958
Proceeds from issuance of stock 177,837 1,064,444 451,002
Net cash flow (used for) provided by financing activities (514,743) (74,465) 262,429
Change in cash and cash equivalents 3,096 (14,119) 48,678
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 122,058 136,177 87,499
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 125154 $ 122058 $ 136,177
Interest paid during the period (net of capitalized interest of $14,730, $21,465, and $28,753, respectively) $ 242,033 $ 204672  $ 217,629
Income taxes paid during the period $ 259 % 4773 $ 29,652

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts relating to the number of buildings, square footage, tenant and occupancy data, joint venture debt average interest rates
and terms and estimated project costs are unaudited.

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

BUSINESS

Kimco Realty Corporation (the “Company” or “Kimco"), its subsidiaries, affiliates and related real estate joint ventures are engaged
principally in the operation of neighborhood and community shopping centers which are anchored generally by discount department
stores, supermarkets or drugstores. The Company also provides property management services for shopping centers owned by affili-
ated entities, various real estate joint ventures and unaffiliated third parties.

Additionally, in connection with the Tax Relief Extension Act of 1999 (the “RMA’"), which became effective January |, 2001, the
Company is permitted to participate in activities which it was precluded from previously in order to maintain its qualification as a Real
Estate Investment Trust ("REIT"), so long as these activities are conducted in entities which elect to be treated as taxable subsidiaries
under the Internal Revenue Code, as amended (the “Code”), subject to certain limitations. As such, the Company, through its taxable
REIT subsidiaries, has been engaged in various retail real estate related opportunities including (i) ground-up development projects through
its wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRS"), which were primarily engaged in the ground-up development of neighborhood
and community shopping centers and the subsequent sale thereof upon completion, (i) retail real estate management and disposition
services which primarily focuses on leasing and disposition strategies of retail real estate controlled by both healthy and distressed and/
or bankrupt retailers and (iii) acting as an agent or principal in connection with tax deferred exchange transactions.

The Company seeks to reduce its operating and leasing risks through diversification achieved by the geographic distribution of its
properties, avoiding dependence on any single property and a large tenant base. At December 31, 2010, the Company’s single largest
neighborhood and community shopping center accounted for only 0.8% of the Company’s annualized base rental revenues and only
1.0% of the Company's total shopping center gross leasable area (“GLA") including the proportionate share of base rental revenues
from properties in which the Company has less than a 100% economic interest. At December 31, 2010, the Company's five largest ten-
ants were The Home Depot, TJX Companies, Wal-Mart, Sears Holdings and Best Buy which represented approximately 3.0%, 2.8%,
2.4%, 2.3% and 1.6%, respectively, of the Company’s annualized base rental revenues, including the proportionate share of base rental
revenues from properties in which the Company has less than a 100% economic interest.

The principal business of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries is the ownership, management, development and operation
of retail shopping centers, including complementary services that capitalize on the Company’s established retail real estate expertise.
The Company does not distinguish its principal business or group its operations on a geographical basis for purposes of measuring per-
formance. Accordingly, the Company believes it has a single reportable segment for disclosure purposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP").

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND ESTIMATES

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Kimco Realty Corporation (the “Company”), its sub-
sidiaries, all of which are wholly-owned, and all entities in which the Company has a controlling interest, including where the Company
has been determined to be a primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity (*VIE") or meets certain criteria of a sole general partner
or managing member in accordance with the Consolidation guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC"). All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

GAAP requires the Company's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during a reporting period.
The most significant assumptions and estimates relate to the valuation of real estate and related intangible assets and liabilities, equity
method investments, marketable securities and other investments, including the assessment of impairments, as well as, depreciable lives,
revenue recognition, the collectability of trade accounts receivable, realizability of deferred tax assets and the assessment of uncertain
tax positions. Application of these assumptions requires the exercise of judgment as to future uncertainties, and, as a result, actual
results could differ from these estimates.
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KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure in its consolidated
financial statements.

REAL ESTATE

Real estate assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Upon acquisition of real estate operating
properties, the Company estimates the fair value of acquired tangible assets (consisting of land, building, building improvements and
tenant improvements) and identified intangible assets and liabilities (consisting of above and below-market leases, in-place leases and
tenant relationships), assumed debt and redeemable units issued at the date of acquisition, based on evaluation of information and
estimates available at that date. Based on these estimates, the Company allocates the estimated fair value to the applicable assets and
liabilities. Fair value is determined based on an exit price approach, which contemplates the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. If, up to one year from
the acquisition date, information regarding fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed is received and estimates are refined,
appropriate adjustments are made to the purchase price allocation on a retrospective basis. The Company expenses transaction costs
associated with business combinations in the period incurred.

In allocating the purchase price to identified intangible assets and liabilities of an acquired property, the value of above-market and
below-market leases is estimated based on the present value of the difference between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to
the leases and management's estimate of the market lease rates and other lease provisions (i.e., expense recapture, base rental changes,
etc.) measured over a period equal to the estimated remaining term of the lease. The capitalized above-market or below-market intan-
gible is amortized to rental income over the estimated remaining term of the respective leases. Mortgage debt discounts or premiums
are amortized into interest expense over the remaining term of the related debt instrument. Unit discounts and premiums are amor-
tized into noncontrolling interest in income, net over the period from the date of issuance to the earliest redemption date of the units.

In determining the value of in-place leases, management considers current market conditions and costs to execute similar leases
in arriving at an estimate of the carrying costs during the expected lease-up period from vacant to existing occupancy. In estimating
carrying costs, management includes real estate taxes, insurance, other operating expenses, estimates of lost rental revenue during the
expected lease-up periods and costs to execute similar leases including leasing commissions, legal and other related costs based on
current market demand. In estimating the value of tenant relationships, management considers the nature and extent of the existing
tenant relationship, the expectation of lease renewals, growth prospects and tenant credit quality, among other factors.

The value assigned to in-place leases and tenant relationships is amortized over the estimated remaining term of the leases. If a
lease were to be terminated prior to its scheduled expiration, all unamortized costs relating to that lease would be written off.

Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings and building improvements I5 to 50 years
Fixtures, leasehold and tenant improvements Terms of leases or useful
(including certain identified intangible assets) lives, whichever is shorter

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Significant renovations and replacements, which
improve and extend the life of the asset, are capitalized. The useful lives of amortizable intangible assets are evaluated each reporting
period with any changes in estimated useful lives being accounted for over the revised remaining useful life.

When a real estate asset is identified by management as held-for-sale, the Company ceases depreciation of the asset and estimates
the sales price, net of selling costs. If, in management’s opinion, the net sales price of the asset is less than the net book value of the
asset, an adjustment to the carrying value would be recorded to reflect the estimated fair value of the property.
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KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

On a continuous basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators, including property operating performance and
general market conditions, that the value of the real estate properties (including any related amortizable intangible assets or liabilities)
may be impaired. A property value is considered impaired only if management’s estimate of current and projected operating cash
flows (undiscounted and unleveraged) of the property over its remaining useful life is less than the net carrying value of the property.
Such cash flow projections consider factors such as expected future operating income, trends and prospects, as well as the effects of
demand, competition and other factors. To the extent impairment has occurred, the carrying value of the property would be adjusted
to an amount to reflect the estimated fair value of the property.

REAL ESTATE UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Real estate under development represents both the ground-up development of neighborhood and community shopping center
projects which may be subsequently sold upon completion and projects which the Company may hold as long-term investments. These
properties are carried at cost. The cost of land and buildings under development includes specifically identifiable costs. The capitalized
costs include pre-construction costs essential to the development of the property, development costs, construction costs, interest costs,
real estate taxes, salaries and related costs of personnel directly involved and other costs incurred during the period of development. The
Company ceases cost capitalization when the property is held available for occupancy upon substantial completion of tenant improve-
ments, but no later than one year from the completion of major construction activity. If, in management’s opinion, the net sales price
of assets held for resale or the current and projected undiscounted cash flows of these assets to be held as long-term investments is
less than the net carrying value, the carrying value would be adjusted to an amount to reflect the estimated fair value of the property.

INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT VENTURES

The Company accounts for its investments in unconsolidated joint ventures under the equity method of accounting as the Company
exercises significant influence, but does not control these entities. These investments are recorded initially at cost and subsequently
adjusted for cash contributions and distributions. Earnings for each investment are recognized in accordance with each respective invest-
ment agreement and where applicable, based upon an allocation of the investment’s net assets at book value as if the investment was
hypothetically liquidated at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s joint ventures and other real estate investments primarily consist of co-investments with institutional and other joint
venture partners in neighborhood and community shopping center properties, consistent with its core business. These joint ventures
typically obtain non-recourse third-party financing on their property investments, thus contractually limiting the Company’s exposure
to losses primarily to the amount of its equity investment; and due to the lender’s exposure to losses, a lender typically will require a
minimum level of equity in order to mitigate its risk. The Company's exposure to losses associated with its unconsolidated joint ventures
is primarily limited to its carrying value in these investments. The Company, on a selective basis, obtains unsecured financing for certain
joint ventures. These unsecured financings are guaranteed by the Company with guarantees from the joint venture partners for their
proportionate amounts of any guaranty payment the Company is obligated to make.

To recognize the character of distributions from equity investees the Company looks at the nature of the cash distribution to
determine the proper character of cash flow distributions as either returns on investment, which would be included in operating activi-
ties or returns of investment, which would be included in investing activities.

On a continuous basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators, including the underlying investment property operat-
ing performance and general market conditions, that the value of the Company's investments in unconsolidated joint ventures may be
impaired. An investment's value is impaired only if management's estimate of the fair value of the investment is less than the carrying
value of the investment and such difference is deemed to be other-than-temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss
shall be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the investment over the estimated fair value of the investment.
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KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

The Company’s estimated fair values are based upon a discounted cash flow model for each specific property that includes all
estimated cash inflows and outflows over a specified holding period and, where applicable, any estimated debt premiums. Capitalization
rates, discount rates and credit spreads utilized in these models are based upon rates that the Company believes to be within a reason-
able range of current market rates for each respective property.

OTHER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS

Other real estate investments primarily consist of preferred equity investments for which the Company provides capital to owners
and developers of real estate. The Company typically accounts for its preferred equity investments on the equity method of accounting,
whereby earnings for each investment are recognized in accordance with each respective investment agreement and based upon an allo-
cation of the investment's net assets at book value as if the investment was hypothetically liquidated at the end of each reporting period.

On a continuous basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators, including the underlying investment property oper-
ating performance and general market conditions, that the value of the Company’s Other real estate investments may be impaired.
An investment's value is impaired only if management's estimate of the fair value of the investment is less than the carrying value of
the investment and such difference is deemed to be other-than-temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall be
measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the investment over the estimated fair value of the investment.

The Company’s estimated fair values are based upon a discounted cash flow model for each specific property that includes all
estimated cash inflows and outflows over a specified holding period and, where applicable, any estimated debt premiums. Capitalization
rates, discount rates and credit spreads utilized in these models are based upon rates that the Company believes to be within a reason-
able range of current market rates for each respective property.

MORTGAGES AND OTHER FINANCING RECEIVABLES

Mortgages and other financing receivables consist of loans acquired and loans originated by the Company. Borrowers of these loans
are primarily experienced owners, operators or developers of commercial real estate. Loan receivables are recorded at stated principal
amounts, net of any discount or premium or deferred loan origination costs or fees. The related discounts or premiums on mortgages
and other loans purchased are amortized or accreted over the life of the related loan receivable. The Company defers certain loan
origination and commitment fees, net of certain origination costs, and amortizes them as an adjustment of the loan’s yield over the
term of the related loan. The Company evaluates the collectability of both interest and principal on each loan to determine whether
it is impaired. A loan is considered to be impaired when, based upon current information and events, it is probable that the Company
will be unable to collect all amounts due under the existing contractual terms. When a loan is considered to be impaired, the amount
of loss is calculated by comparing the recorded investment to the value determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
the loan's effective interest rate or to the value of the underlying collateral if the loan is collateralized. Interest income on performing
loans is accrued as earned. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized on a cash basis. The Company does not provide for an
additional allowance for loan losses based on the grouping of loans as the Company believes the characteristics of the loans are not
sufficiently similar to allow an evaluation of these loans as a group for a possible loan loss allowance. As such, all of the Company'’s loans
are evaluated individually for this purpose.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents (demand deposits in banks, commercial paper and certificates of deposit with original maturities of
three months or less) includes tenants’ security deposits, escrowed funds and other restricted deposits approximating $3.9 million and
$18.3 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalent balances may, at a limited number of banks and financial institutions, exceed insurable amounts. The
Company believes it mitigates risk by investing in or through major financial institutions and primarily in funds that are currently U.S.
federal government insured. Recoverability of investments is dependent upon the performance of the issuers.
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KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

MARKETABLE SECURITIES

The Company classifies its existing marketable equity securities as available-for-sale in accordance with the FASB's Investments-Debt
and Equity Securities guidance. These securities are carried at fair market value with unrealized gains and losses reported in stockhold-
ers' equity as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (“OCI"). Gains or losses on securities sold are based on the
specific identification method.

All debt securities are generally classified as held-to-maturity because the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold the
securities to maturity. It is more likely than not that the Company will not be required to sell the debt security before its anticipated
recovery and the Company expects to recover the security’s entire amortized cost basis even if the entity does not intend to sell.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortized cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity.
Debt securities which contain conversion features generally are classified as available-for-sale.

On a continuous basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators that the value of the Company's marketable securi-
ties may be impaired. A marketable security is impaired if the fair value of the security is less than the carrying value of the security
and such difference is deemed to be other-than-temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the
excess of the carrying amount of the security over the estimated fair value in the security.

DEFERRED LEASING AND FINANCING COSTS

Costs incurred in obtaining tenant leases and long-term financing, included in deferred charges and prepaid expenses in the accom-
panying Consolidated Balance Sheets, are amortized on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method, over
the terms of the related leases or debt agreements, as applicable. Such capitalized costs include salaries and related costs of personnel
directly involved in successful leasing efforts.

REVENUE RECOGNITION AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Base rental revenues from rental property are recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases. Certain of
these leases also provide for percentage rents based upon the level of sales achieved by the lessee. These percentage rents are recog-
nized once the required sales level is achieved. Rental income may also include payments received in connection with lease termination
agreements. In addition, leases typically provide for reimbursement to the Company of common area maintenance costs, real estate
taxes and other operating expenses. Operating expense reimbursements are recognized as earned.

Management and other fee income consists of property management fees, leasing fees, property acquisition and disposition fees,
development fees and asset management fees. These fees arise from contractual agreements with third parties or with entities in which
the Company has a noncontrolling interest. Management and other fee income, including acquisition and disposition fees, are recognized
as earned under the respective agreements. Management and other fee income related to partially owned entities are recognized to
the extent attributable to the unaffiliated interest.

Gains and losses from the sale of depreciated operating property and ground-up development projects are generally recognized
using the full accrual method in accordance with the FASB's real estate sales guidance, provided that various criteria relating to the terms
of sale and subsequent involvement by the Company with the properties are met.

Gains and losses on transfers of operating properties result from the sale of a partial interest in properties to unconsolidated joint
ventures and are recognized using the partial sale provisions of the FASB's real estate sales guidance.

The Company makes estimates of the uncollectability of its accounts receivable related to base rents, straight-line rent, expense
reimbursements and other revenues. The Company analyzes accounts receivable and historical bad debt levels, customer credit worthiness
and current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. In addition, tenants in bankruptcy
are analyzed and estimates are made in connection with the expected recovery of pre-petition and post-petition claims. The Company'’s
reported net earnings is directly affected by management’s estimate of the collectability of accounts receivable.
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KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

INCOME TAXES

The Company has made an election to qualify, and believes it is operating so as to qualify, as a REIT for federal income tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Company generally will not be subject to federal income tax, provided that distributions to its stockholders equal at
least the amount of its REIT taxable income as defined under Section 856 through 860 of the Code.

In connection with the RMA, which became effective January |, 2001, the Company is permitted to participate in certain activi-
ties which it was previously precluded from in order to maintain its qualification as a REIT, so long as these activities are conducted in
entities which elect to be treated as taxable REIT subsidiaries under the Code. As such, the Company is subject to federal and state
income taxes on the income from these activities.

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The Company
provides a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets for which it does not consider realization of such assets to be more likely than not.

The Company reviews the need to establish a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis. The review
includes an analysis of various factors, such as future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, the capacity for the carryback
or carryforward of any losses, the expected occurrence of future income or loss and available tax planning strategies.

The Company applies the FASB's guidance relating to uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements.
Under this guidance the Company may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that
the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits
recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty per-
cent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes also provides
guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties on income taxes, and accounting in interim periods.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION AND TRANSACTIONS

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign operations are translated using year-end exchange rates, and revenues and expenses
are translated using exchange rates as determined throughout the year. Gains or losses resulting from translation are included in OCI,
as a separate component of the Company’s stockholders’ equity. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are trans-
lated to local currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The effect of the transactions gain or loss is
included in the caption Other (expense)/income, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

DERIVATIVE/FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company measures its derivative instruments at fair value and records them in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as an asset
or liability, depending on the Company's rights or obligations under the applicable derivative contract. The accounting for changes
in the fair value of the derivatives depends on the intended use of the derivative, whether the Company has elected to designate a
derivative in a hedging relationship and apply hedge accounting and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria necessary
to apply hedge accounting. Derivatives designated and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset,
liability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges. Derivatives
designated and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows, or other types of forecasted trans-
actions, are considered cash flow hedges. Derivatives may also be designated as hedges of the foreign currency exposure of a net
investment in a foreign operation. Hedge accounting generally provides for the matching of the timing of gain or loss recognition on
the hedging instrument with the recognition of the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to
the hedged risk in a fair value hedge or the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transactions in a cash flow hedge. The Company
may enter into derivative contracts that are intended to economically hedge certain of its risk, even though hedge accounting does
not apply or the Company elects not to apply hedge accounting under the Derivatives and Hedging guidance issued by the FASB.

50



KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

The Company accounts for noncontrolling interests in accordance with the Consolidation guidance and the Distinguishing Liabilities
from Equity guidance issued by the FASB. Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of equity that the Company does not own in
those entities it consolidates. The Company identifies its noncontrolling interests separately within the equity section on the Company's
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amounts of consolidated net earnings attributable to the Company and to the noncontrolling interests
are presented separately on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Noncontrolling interests also includes amounts related to partnership units issued by consolidated subsidiaries of the Company in
connection with certain property acquisitions. These units have a stated redemption value or a defined redemption amount based upon
the trading price of the Company’s common stock and provides the unit holders various rates of return during the holding period. The
unit holders generally have the right to redeem their units for cash at any time after one year from issuance. For convertible units, the
Company typically has the option to settle redemption amounts in cash or common stock.

The Company evaluates the terms of the partnership units issued in accordance with the FASB’s Distinguishing Liabilities from
Equity guidance. Units which embody an unconditional obligation requiring the Company to redeem the units for cash at a specified
or determinable date (or dates) or upon an event that is certain to occur are determined to be mandatorily redeemable under this
guidance and are included as Redeemable noncontrolling interest and classified within the mezzanine section between Total liabilities
and Stockholder’s equity on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. Convertible units for which the Company has the option to
settle redemption amounts in cash or Common Stock are included in the caption Noncontrolling interest within the equity section on
the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of earnings and the weighted-average number of shares used in the calculation of
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share (amounts presented in thousands, except per share data):

2010 2009 2008

Computation of Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Share:

Income from continuing operations $141,888 $ 10610 $248462
Total net gain on transfer or sale of operating properties 2,377 3,867 1,782
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (18,783)  (10,003)  (26,502)
Discontinued operations attributable to noncontrolling interests 4,936 159 1,306
Preferred stock dividends (51,346)  (47,288)  (47,288)
Income/(loss) from continuing operations available to the common shareholders 79,072 (42,655) 177,760
Earnings attributable to unvested restricted shares (375) (258) (143)
Income/(loss) from continuing operations attributable to common shareholders 78,697 (42913) 177617
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations attributable to the Company 12,450 (8,575) 24,854

Net income/(loss) attributable to the Company’s common shareholders for basic earnings per share  $ 91,147  $(51,488) $202,471
Weighted average common shares Outstanding 405,827 350077 257811
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Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable to the Company’s Common Shareholders:

Income/(loss) from continuing operations $ 019 $ (©12) $ 069
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations 0.03 (0.03) 0.10
Net income/(loss) $ 022 % (015 $ 079
Computation of Diluted Earnings/(Loss) Per Share:
Income/(loss) from continuing operations attributable to common shareholders $ 78,697 $(42913) $177617
Distributions on convertible units (a) — — 18
Income(loss) from continuing operations attributable to common shareholders for diluted
earnings per share 78,697 (42913) 177,635

Income/(loss) from discontinued operations attributable to the Company 12,450 (8,575) 24,854
Net Income/(loss) attributable to common shareholders for diluted earnings per share $ 91,147  $(51,488) $202,489
Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic 405,827 350,077 257,811
Effect of dilutive securities:

Equity awards 374 — 999

Assumed conversion of convertible units® — — 33
Shares for diluted earnings per common share 406,201 350,077 258,843
Diluted Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable to the Company’s Common Shareholders:
Income/(loss) from continuing operations $ 019 $ (012 $ 069
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations 0.03 (0.03) 0.09
Net income/(loss) $ 022 $ (015 $ 078

@ The effect of the assumed conversion of certain convertible units had an anti-dilutive effect upon the calculation of Income/(loss) from continuing operations per share. Accordingly, the impact of
such conversions has not been included in the determination of diluted earnings per share calculations.

In addition, there were 12,085,874, 15,870,967 and 13,731,767, stock options that were anti-dilutive as of December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively.

STOCK COMPENSATION

The Company maintains two equity participation plans, the Second Amended and Restated 1998 Equity Participation Plan (the
“Prior Plan”) and the 2010 Equity Participation Plan (the “2010 Plan”) (collectively, the “Plans™). The Prior Plan provides for a maximum
of 47,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock to be issued for qualified and non-qualified options and restricted stock grants.
The 2010 Plan provides for a maximum of 5,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock to be issued for qualified and non-qualified
options, restricted stock, performance awards and other awards, plus the number of shares of common stock which are or become
available for issuance under the Prior Plan and which are not thereafter issued under the Prior Plan, subject to certain conditions. Unless
otherwise determined by the Board of Directors at its sole discretion, options granted under the Plans generally vest ratably over
a range of three to five years, expire ten years from the date of grant and are exercisable at the market price on the date of grant.
Restricted stock grants generally vest (i) 100% on the fourth or fifth anniversary of the grant, (ii) ratably over three or four years or (iii)
over three years at 50% after two years and 50% after the third year. Performance share awards may provide a right to receive shares
of restricted stock based on the Company's performance relative to its peers, as defined, or based on other performance criteria as
determined by the Board of Directors. In addition, the Plans provide for the granting of certain options and restricted stock to each
of the Company’s non-employee directors (the “Independent Directors”) and permits such Independent Directors to elect to receive
deferred stock awards in lieu of directors’ fees.
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The Company accounts for equity awards in accordance with the FASB's Stock Compensation guidance which requires that all
share based payments to employees, be recognized in the statement of operations over the service period based on their fair values.
Fair value is determined, depending on the type of award, using either the Black-Scholes option pricing formula or the Monte Carlo
method, both of which are intended to estimate the fair value of the awards at the grant date. (See footnote 23 for additional disclosure
on the assumptions and methodology.)

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2009, four of the Company's joint venture investments were considered significant subsidiaries
of the Company based upon reaching certain income thresholds per the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC") Regulation 5-X
Rule 3-09. The Company’s equity in income from these joint ventures for the year ended December 31, 2009, exceeded 20% of the
Company's income from continuing operations, based upon the calculations as then prescribed by the SEC, as such the Company had
included audited financial statements of these four joint ventures as exhibits to the 2009 annual report on Form [0-K. During 2010, the
SEC revised it's guidance on the calculation of the income thresholds per the SEC Regulation S-X Rule 3-09. Such revisions, include, but
are not limited to, excluding other-than-temporary impairments in the numerator and permitting averaging of the past five years even
in a year of losses. The SEC stated that such revisions are to be applied retrospectively. Based on the recent revisions and retrospective
application of the SEC guidance to the calculations surrounding SEC Regulation S-X Rule 3-09, the Company’s joint venture investments
do not reach any of the thresholds per the SEC Regulation S-X Rule 3-09 for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008. As
such the Company is not required to file audited financial statements of these four or any other joint ventures as exhibits to this annual
report on Form 10-K. Furthermore, the Company is not required to provide summarized financial data on its investments due to these
revisions prescribed for by the SEC for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

In July 2010, FASB issued ASU2010-20, “Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit
Losses,” (“ASU2010-20"), which outlines specific disclosures that will be required for the allowance for credit losses and all finance
receivables. Finance receivables includes loans, lease receivables and other arrangements with a contractual right to receive money on
demand or on fixed or determinable dates that is recognized as an asset on an entity's statement of financial position. ASU2010-20 will
require companies to provide disaggregated levels of disclosure by portfolio segment and class to enable users of the financial statement
to understand the nature of credit risk, how the risk is analyzed in determining the related allowance for credit losses and changes to
the allowance during the reporting period. Required disclosures under ASU2010-20 as of the end of a reporting period are effective
for the Company’s December3l, 2010 reporting period and disclosures regarding activities during a reporting period are effective for
the Company’s March3l1, 2011 interim reporting period. The Company has incorporated the required disclosures within this Annual
Report on Form 10-K where deemed applicable.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Transfers and Servicing guidance, which amends the previous derecognition guidance and eliminates
the exemption from consolidation for qualifying special-purpose entities. This guidance is effective for financial asset transfers occurring
after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2009. This guidance was effective for the Company
beginning in the first quarter 2010. The Company’s adoption of this guidance did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Consolidation guidance, which amends the previous consolidation guidance applicable to variable
interest entities. The amendments significantly affect the overall consolidation analysis previously required. This guidance was effective
for the Company beginning in the first quarter 2010. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material effect on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

Reclassifications

The following reclassifications have been made to the Company's 2009 and 2008 Consolidated Statements of Operations and the
2009 Consolidated Balance Sheet to conform to the 2010 presentation: (i) a reclass of foreign taxes from other (expense)/income, net
to the (provision)/benefit for income taxes, net, (ii) a reclass of land improvements from building and improvements to land and (iii) a
partial reclass of a net foreign deferred tax asset, including a valuation allowance, from other assets to an uncertain tax position liability,
which is classified within other liabilities (see Note 24).
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2. IMPAIRMENTS:

On a continuous basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators, including property operating performance and
general market conditions, that the value of the Company'’s assets (including any related amortizable intangible assets or liabilities) may
be impaired. To the extent impairment has occurred, the carrying value of the asset would be adjusted to an amount to reflect the
estimated fair value of the asset.

During 2008 and 2009, volatile economic conditions resulted in declines in the real estate and equity markets. Increases in capitaliza-
tion rates, discount rates and vacancies as well as deterioration of real estate market fundamentals impacted net operating income and
leasing which further contributed to declines in real estate markets in general. During 2010, the U.S. economic and market conditions
stabilized and capitalization rates, discount rates and vacancies had improved; however remaining overall declines in market conditions
continued to have a negative effect on certain transactional activity as it related to select real estate assets and certain marketable
securities.

As a result of the volatility and declining market conditions described above, as well as the Company'’s strategy to dispose of cer-
tain of its non-retail assets, the Company recognized impairment charges for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 as
follows (in millions):

2010 2009 2008

Impairment of property carrying values (including amounts within discontinued operations) $ 87 $ 500 $ —

Real estate under development .7 2.1 13.6
Investments in other real estate investments 134 49.2 —
Marketable securities and other investments 53 30.1 184
Investments in real estate joint ventures — 437 155

Total gross impairment charges 39.1 175.1 147.5
Noncontrolling interests ©.1 (1.2) (1.6)
Income tax benefit (7.6) (225 (LD

Total net impairment charges $314 $I514 $1148

In addition to the impairment charges above, the Company recognized impairment charges during 2010, 2009 and 2008 of
approximately $28.3 million, before an income tax benefit of approximately $3.2 million, approximately $38.7 million, before an income
tax benefit of approximately $11.0 million, and $11.2 million, before an income tax benefit of approximately $4.5 million, respectively,
relating to certain properties held by various unconsolidated joint ventures in which the Company holds noncontrolling interests. These
impairment charges are included in Equity in income of joint ventures, net in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company will continue to assess the value of its assets on an on-going basis. Based on these assessments, the Company may
determine that one or more of its assets may be impaired due to a decline in value and would therefore write-down its cost basis
accordingly (see Notes 6, 8, 9, I, and 12).
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3. REAL ESTATE:

The Company’'s components of Rental property consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2010 2009
Land $ 1,742,425 $ 1,831,374
Undeveloped Land 94,923 106,054
Buildings and improvements:
Buildings 4,387,144 4,411,565
Building improvements 972,086 1,103,798
Tenant improvements 699,242 669,540
Fixtures and leasehold
improvements 55611 48,008
Other rental property" 306,322 246,217

8,257,753 8,416,556
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,549,380)  (1,343,148)

Total $ 6,708,373 $ 7,073,408

() At December 31, 2010 and 2009, Other rental property consisted of intangible assets including $196,124
and $162,477 respectively, of in-place leases, $21,704 and $21,851 respectively, of tenant relationships, and
$88,494 and $61,889 respectively, of above-market leases.

In addition, at December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had intangible liabilities relating to below-market leases from property
acquisitions of approximately $164.9 million and $196.2 million, respectively. These amounts are included in the caption Other liabilities
in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets. The estimated net amortization expense associated with the Company's intangible
assets and liabilities for the next five years are as follows (in millions): 2011, $26.8; 2012, $21.3; 2013, $16.3; 2014, $6.4 and 2015, $2.6.

4. PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS, DEVELOPMENTS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS:

Operating property acquisitions, ground-up development costs and other investments have been funded principally through the
application of proceeds from the Company's public equity and unsecured debt issuances, proceeds from mortgage and construction
financings, availability under the Company’s revolving lines of credit and issuance of various partnership units.

OPERATING PROPERTIES

Acquisition of Operating Properties—

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company acquired, in separate transactions, 10 operating properties, an additional
joint venture interest and two land parcels comprising an aggregate 1.7 million square feet of a GLA, for an aggregate purchase price
of approximately $251.3 million including the assumption of approximately $138.8 million of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering
seven of the properties. Details of these transactions are as follows (in thousands):

Purchase Price
Month Cash/Net Assets Debt

Property Name Location Acquired and Liabilities Assumed  Total GLA
Foothills Mall Tucson, AZ Jan-10® $ 9,063 $77,162  $86225 515
Kenneth Hahn Los Angeles, CA Mar-10@ 8,563 — 8563 165
Wexford Pittsburgh, PA June-10® 1,657 12,500 4,157 142
Riverplace S.C. Jacksonville, FL Aug-10 $35,560 — 35560 257
Cave Springs S.C.—land parcel  Lemay, Ml Sep-109) 510 — 510 —
Woodruff S.C. Greenville, SC Nov-10 18,380 — 18380 116
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Purchase Price

Month Cash/Net Assets Debt
Property Name Location Acquired and Liabilities Assumed Total GLA
Haverhill Plaza Haverhill, MA Nov-10®) 3,307 7,099 10,406 63
Midtown Commons Knightdale, NC Dec-10 23,840 — 23,840 137
Chevron Parcel Miami, FL Dec-10® 1,700 — 1,700 2
Dunhill—4 Properties Various, LA Dec-10© 9,957 42,007 51,964 328
Total $112,537 $138,768 $251,305 1,725

() The Company acquired this property from a preferred equity investment in which the Company held a noncontrolling interest. There was no gain or loss recognized in connection with this change
in control. The $77.2 million of assumed debt includes a decrease of approximately $3.8 million associated with a fair value debt adjustment relating to the property’s purchase price allocation.
During August 2010, the Company sold all of its interest in this property, see disposition discussion below.

@ The Company acquired this property through the purchase of an additional ownership interest in a joint venture in which the Company had previously held an 11.25% noncontrolling ownership interest.
As a result of this transaction the Company now holds a 75% controlling interest and consolidates this entity. There was no gain or loss recognized in connection with this change in control.

© The Company acquired this property from a joint venture in which the Company holds a 15% noncontrolling ownership interest. The debt assumed is a non-recourse mortgage which bears interest
at a rate of 5.54% and is scheduled to mature in 2016. The mortgage also provides the lender with 50% of the excess cash flow, if any, up to $8.7 million after the Company receives its invested
capital plus a stated return. There was no gain or loss recognized in connection with this change in control.

) The Company purchased these adjacent land parcels next to existing properties that the Company currently owns.

©) The Company took over control of this property from a preferred equity investment in which the Company held a noncontrolling interest and therefore now consolidates this entity. There was no
gain or loss recognized in connection with this change in control.

© The Company acquired these properties from three preferred equity investments in which the Company held noncontrolling interests. The $42.0 million of assumed debt includes a decrease of
approximately $0.6 million associated with a fair value debt adjustment relating to the property’s purchase price allocation. There were no gains or losses recognized in connection with these
changes in control.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company acquired, in separate transactions, 33 operating properties, comprising
an aggregate 6.8 million square feet of a GLA, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $955.4 million including the assumption
of approximately $577.6 million of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering 2| of the properties and $50.0 million in preferred stock.
Details of these transactions are as follows (in thousands):

Purchase Price

Month Cash/Net Assets Debt/ Preferred

Property Name Location Acquired and Liabilities Stock Assumed Total GLA
Novato Fair Novato, CA Jul-09™ $ 9902 $ 13,524 $ 23426 [25
Canby Square Canby, OR Oct-09®@ 7,052 — 7,052 16
Garrison Square Vancouver, WA Oct-09@ 3,535 — 3,535 70
Oregon Trail Center Gresham, OR Oct-09@ 18,135 — 18,135 208
Pioneer Plaza Springfield, OR Oct-09? 9,823 — 9,823 96
Powell Valley Junction Gresham, OR Oct-09®@ 5062 — 5062 107
Troutdale Market Troutdale, OR Oct-09? 4809 — 4,809 90
Angels Camp Angels Camp, CA Nov-09® 6,801 — 6,801 78
Albany Plaza Albany, OR Nov-09®@ 6,075 — 6,075 10
Elverta Crossing Antelope, CA Nov-09® 8,765 — 8,765 120
Park Place Vallejo, CA Nov-09® 15,655 — 15,655 151
Medford, Center Medford, OR Nov-09@ 21,158 — 21,158 335
PL Retail, LLC Acquisition Various Nov-09® 210,994 614,081 825,075 5,160

Total Acquisitions $327,766 $627,605 $955371 6,766

() The Company acquired this property from a joint venture in which the Company had a 10% noncontrolling ownership interest. This transaction resulted in a gain of approximately $0.3 million as a
result of remeasuring the Company’s 10% noncontrolling equity interest to fair value.

@ The Company acquired these |1 properties from a joint venture in which the Company had a 15% noncontrolling ownership interest. These transactions resulted in an aggregate gain of approxi-
mately $0.1 million as a result of remeasuring the Company’s 15% noncontrolling equity interest to fair value.

© The Company purchased the remaining 85% interest in PL Retail LLC, an entity that indirectly owns through wholly-owned subsidiaries 21 shopping centers, in which the Company held a 15%
noncontrolling interest prior to this transaction. The 2| shopping centers comprise approximately 5.2 million square feet of GLA are located in California (8 assets; 27% of GLA), Florida (6 assets;
42% of GLA), the Phoenix, Arizona metro area (2 assets; 7.3% of GLA), New Jersey (2), Long Island, New York (1), Arlington, Virginia, near metro Washington, D.C. (1) and Greenville, South
Carolina (1). The Company paid a purchase price equal to approximately $175.0 million, after customary adjustments and closing prorations, which was equivalent to 85% of PL Retail LLC's gross
asset value, which equaled approximately $825 million, less the assumption of $564 million of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering 20 properties and $50 million of perpetual preferred
stock.The purchase price includes approximately $20 million for the purchase of development rights for one shopping center. Subsequent to the acquisition of these properties, the Company
repaid an aggregate of approximately $269 million of the non-recourse mortgage debt which encumbered 10 properties. This transaction resulted in a gain of approximately $7.6 million as a
result of remeasuring the Company’s 15% noncontrolling equity interest to fair value.
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The aggregate purchase price of the above 2010 and 2009 property acquisitions have been allocated to the tangible and intangible
assets and liabilities of the properties in accordance with the FASB's Business Combinations guidance, at the date of acquisition, based
on evaluation of information and estimates available at such date. The total aggregate fair value was allocated as follows (in thousands):

2010 2009
Land $ 62475 $317,052
Buildings 134,929 383,666
Below Market Rents (8,615)  (52982)
Above Market Rents 7,613 38,681
In-Place Leases 15,473 34,042
Other Intangibles 22 12,602
Building Improvements 36,161 182,318
Tenant Improvements 9,712 27,664
Mortgage Fair Value Adjustment (4,446) 1,670
Other Assets 2,123 20,088
Other Liabilities (1,287) (9,430)
Noncontrolling Interest (2,855) —

$251,305  $955,371

Ground-Up Development—

The Company is engaged in ground-up development projects which consist of (i) U.S. ground-up development projects which will
be held as long-term investments by the Company and (i) various ground-up development projects located in Latin America for long-
term investment. During 2009, the Company changed its merchant building business strategy from a sale upon completion strategy to
a long-term hold strategy. Those properties previously considered merchant building have been either placed in service as long-term
investment properties or included in U.S. ground-up development projects. The ground-up development projects generally have
significant pre-leasing prior to the commencement of construction. As of December 31, 2010, the Company had in progress a total
of six ground-up development projects, consisting of (i) two ground-up development projects located in the U.S., (ii) two ground-up
development projects located in Mexico, (iii) one ground-up development project located in Chile and (iv) one ground-up development
project located in Brazil.

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company expended approximately $13.2 million and $9.9 million, respec-
tively, to purchase its partners noncontrolling partnership interests in four and five of its ground-up development projects, respectively.
Since there was no change in control, these transactions resulted in an adjustment to the Company’s Paid-in capital of approximately
$8.2 million and $7.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Long-term Investment Projects—

During 2009, the Company acquired a land parcel located in Rio Claro, Brazil through a newly formed joint venture in which the
Company has a 70% controlling ownership interest for a purchase price of 3.3 million Brazilian Reals (approximately USD $1.5 million).
This parcel will be developed into a 48,000 square foot retail shopping center. Due to future commitments from the partners to fund
construction costs throughout the construction period the Company has determined that this joint venture is a VIE and that the Company
is the primary beneficiary. As such, the Company has consolidated this entity for accounting and reporting purposes.
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Kimsouth—

During 2009, the Company acquired the remaining 7.5% interest in Kimsouth Realty Inc. (“Kimsouth™) for approximately $5.5 million
making Kimsouth a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Since there was no change in control, this transaction resulted in an
adjustment to the Company's Paid-in capital of approximately $3.9 million.

Kimsouth holds a 15% noncontrolling interest in a joint venture with an investment group which owns a portion of Albertson’s Inc.
During 2010, the Albertson'’s joint venture disposed of 23 operating properties for an aggregate sales price of $126.5 million, resulting
in a gain of approximately $91.7 million. Kimsouth's share was approximately $12.3 million and is included in Equity in income of joint
ventures, net on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations. Additionally, during 2010, the Albertson'’s joint venture sold
32 operating properties in a sales leaseback transaction for an aggregate sales price of approximately $266.0 million. The sales leaseback
transaction resulted in a deferred gain of approximately $262.4 million which will be recognized over the 20-year lease term. Kimsouth's
share of this deferred gain is approximately $35.2 million. In connection with these transactions, Kimsouth received a total distribution
of approximately $34.7 million. As a result of this distribution, the Company recognized additional income of approximately $1.3 million
from cash received in excess of the Company's investment.

During 2008, the Albertson’s joint venture disposed of 12| operating properties for an aggregate sales price of approximately $564.0
million, resulting in a gain of approximately $552.3 million, of which Kimsouth'’s share was approximately $73.1 million. During 2008,
Kimsouth recognized equity in income from the Albertson’s joint venture of approximately $64.4 million before income taxes, including
the $73.1 million of gain and $15.0 million from cash received in excess of the Company’s investment. As a result of these transactions,
Kimsouth fully reduced its deferred tax asset valuation allowance and utilized all of its remaining NOL carryforwards, which provided
a tax benefit of approximately $3.1 million.

Kimco Income Fund Il (“KIF II”)—

During 2007, the Company transferred || operating properties to a wholly-owned consolidated entity, Kimco Income Fund Il (“KIF
[I'"), for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $278.2 million, including non-recourse mortgage debt of $180.9 million, encumbering
Il of the properties. During 2008, the Company transferred an additional three properties for $73.9 million, including $50.6 million in
non-recourse mortgage debt. During 2008 the Company sold a 26.4% noncontrolling ownership interest in the entity to third parties
for approximately $32.5 million, which approximated the Company’s cost.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company purchased an additional 1.62% partnership interest in KIF Il from one of
its investors for approximately $0.8 million. As a result of this transaction the Company now holds a 75.28% controlling interest in KIF
Il and continues to consolidate this entity. Since there was no change in control from this transaction, the purchase of the additional
partnership interest resulted in an adjustment to the Company’s Paid-in capital of approximately $1.0 million.

FNC Realty Corporation—

During July 2010, the Company acquired an additional 3.6% interest in FNC Realty Corporation (“FNC") for $3.5 million, which
increased the Company’s total controlling ownership interest to approximately 56.6%. The Company had previously and continues to
consolidate this entity.

During the year ended December 30, 2010, FNC disposed of four properties, in separate transactions, for an aggregate sales
price of approximately $6.5 million which resulted in a pre-tax profit of approximately $0.5 million, before noncontrolling interest. This
income has been recorded as Income from other real estate investments in the Company’'s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During 2009, FNC disposed of two properties, in separate transactions, for an aggregate sales price of approximately $2.4 million.
These transactions resulted in an aggregate pre-tax profit of approximately $0.9 million, before noncontrolling interest of $0.5 million.
This income has been recorded as Income from other real estate investments in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During 2008, FNC disposed of a property for a sales price of approximately $3.3 million. This transaction resulted in a pre-tax profit
of approximately $2.1 million, before noncontrolling interest of $1.0 million. This income has been recorded as Income from other real
estate investments in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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5. DISPOSITIONS OF REAL ESTATE:

OPERATING REAL ESTATE—

During 2010, the Company (i) sold seven operating properties, which were previously consolidated, to two new joint ventures
in which the Company holds noncontrolling equity interests for an aggregate sales price of approximately $438.1 million including the
assignment of $159.9 million of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering three of the properties and (i) disposed of, in separate trans-
actions, seven operating properties for an aggregate sales price of approximately $100.5 million including the assignment of $81.0 million
of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering one of the properties. These transactions resulted in aggregate gains of approximately
$4.4 million and aggregate losses/impairments of approximately $5.0 million.

Additionally, during 2010, the Company disposed of (i) three properties, in separate transactions, for an aggregate sales price of
approximately $23.8 million and (i) five properties from a consolidated joint venture in which the Company had a preferred equity
investment for a sales price of approximately $40.8 million. These transactions resulted in an aggregate profit participation of approxi-
mately $20.8 million, before income tax of approximately $1.0 million and noncontrolling interest of approximately $4.9 million. This
profit participation has been recorded as Income from other real estate investments and is reflected in Income from discontinued
operating properties, net of tax in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During 2010, the Company also disposed of, in separate transactions, nine land parcels for an aggregate sales price of approximately
$25.6 million which resulted in an aggregate gain of approximately $3.4 million. This gain is included in Other (expense)/income, net in
the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During 2009, the Company disposed of, in separate transactions, portions of six operating properties and one land parcel for an
aggregate sales price of approximately $28.9 million. The Company provided seller financing for two of these transactions aggregat-
ing approximately $1.4 million, which bear interest at 9% per annum and are scheduled to mature in January and March of 2012. The
Company evaluated these transactions pursuant to the FASB’s real estate sales guidance. These seven transactions resulted in the
Company’s recognition of an aggregate net gain of approximately $4.I million, net of income tax of $0.2 million.

Also during 2009, a consolidated joint venture in which the Company has a controlling interest disposed of a parcel of land for
approximately $4.8 million and recognized a gain of approximately $4.4 million, before income taxes and noncontrolling interest. This
gain has been recorded as Other (expense)/income, net in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During 2008, the Company disposed of seven operating properties and a portion of four operating properties, in separate transac-
tions, for an aggregate sales price of approximately $73.0 million, which resulted in an aggregate gain of approximately $20.0 million. In
addition, the Company partially recognized deferred gains of approximately $1.2 million on three properties relating to their transfer
and partial sale in connection with the Kimco Income Fund Il transaction described above.

Additionally, during 2008, the Company disposed of an operating property for approximately $21.4 million. The Company provided
seller financing for approximately $3.6 million, which bore interest at 10% per annum and was scheduled to mature on May I, 2011.
Due to the terms of this financing, the Company deferred its gain of $3.7 million from this sale. During 2010, the third party mortgage
lender foreclosed on this property and the buyer paid the Company $0.3 million to settle the Company's loan. As such, the Company
wrote-off the remaining $3.8 million balance on the mortgage receivable and released the deferred gain of $3.7 million, which resulted in
a net loss to the Company of approximately $0.1 million, which is included in Discontinued operations on the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Additionally, during 2008, a consolidated joint venture in which the Company had a preferred equity investment disposed of a
property for a sales price of approximately $35.0 million. As a result of this capital transaction, the Company received approximately
$3.5 million of profit participation, before noncontrolling interest of approximately $1.1 million. This profit participation has been recorded
as income from other real estate investments and is reflected in Income from discontinued operating properties in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

59



KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

GROUND-UP DEVELOPMENT—

During 2010, the Company disposed of a land parcel for a sales price of approximately $0.8 million resulting in a gain of approximately
$0.4 million. Additionally, the Company recognized approximately $1.7 million in income on previously sold development properties
during the year ended December 31, 2010.

During 2009, the Company sold, in separate transactions, five out-parcels, four land parcels and three ground leases for aggregate
proceeds of approximately $19.4 million. These transactions resulted in gains on sale of development properties of approximately
$5.8 million, before income taxes of $2.3 million.

During 2008, the Company sold, in separate transactions, (i) two completed merchant building projects, (ii) 2| out-parcels, (iii) a
partial sale of one project and (iv) a partnership interest in one project for aggregate proceeds of approximately $73.5 million and
received approximately $4.I million of proceeds from completed earn-out requirements on three previously sold merchant building
projects. These sales resulted in gains of approximately $36.6 million, before income taxes of $14.6 million.

6. ADJUSTMENT OF PROPERTY CARRYING VALUES AND REAL ESTATE UNDER DEVELOPMENT:

IMPAIRMENTS—

During 2010, the Company recognized aggregate impairment charges of approximately $8.7 million, of which approximately
$5.2 million is classified as discontinued operations on the Company's Consolidated Statement of Operations, relating to its investment
in seven properties. Four of these properties were sold during 2010 and one of these properties is classified as held-for-sale as of
December 31, 2010. The estimated individual fair value of these properties is based upon purchase prices and current purchase price offers.

Additionally, during 2010, the Company had determined that one of its unconsolidated joint ventures' ground-up development
projects, located in Miramar, FL, estimated recoverable value will not exceed its estimated cost. As a result, the Company recorded
an aggregate pre-tax other-than-temporary impairment on its investment of $/1.7 million, representing the excess of the investment's
carrying value over its estimated fair value.

During 2009, as part of the Company’s ongoing impairment assessment, the Company determined that there were certain redevel-
opment mixed-use properties with estimated recoverable values that would not exceed their estimated costs. As a result, the Company
recorded an aggregate impairment of property carrying values of approximately $50.0 million, representing the excess of the carrying
values of |10 properties, primarily located in Philadelphia, Chicago, New York and Boston, over their estimated fair values.

Additionally, during 2009, the Company determined that there was one ground-up development project with an estimated recover-
able value that would not exceed its estimated cost. As a result, the Company recorded an impairment of approximately $2.1 million,
representing the excess of the carrying value of the project over its estimated fair value.

During 2008, the Company had determined that for two of its ground-up development projects, located in Middleburg, FL and
Miramar, FL, the estimated recoverable value will not exceed their estimated cost. As a result, the Company recorded an aggregate
pre-tax adjustment of property carrying value on these projects of $7.9 million, representing the excess of the carrying values of the
projects over their estimated fair values.

These impairments were primarily due to declines in real estate fundamentals along with adverse changes in local market
conditions and the uncertainty of their recovery. The Company’s estimated fair values were based upon estimated sales prices
or, where applicable, projected operating cash flows (discounted and unleveraged) of the property over its specified holding
period. Such cash flow projections consider factors such as expected future operating income, trends and prospects, as well as
the effects of demand, competition and other factors. Capitalization rates and discount rates utilized in these models were based
upon rates that the Company believes to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respective properties.
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7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE:

The Company reports as discontinued operations assets held-for-sale as of the end of the current period and assets sold during the
period. All results of these discontinued operations are included in a separate component of income on the Consolidated Statements
of Operations under the caption Discontinued operations. This has resulted in certain reclassifications of 2010, 2009 and 2008 financial
statement amounts.

The components of Income from discontinued operations for each of the three years ended December 31, 2010, are shown
below. These include the results of operations through the date of each respective sale for properties sold during 2010, 2009 and 2008
(in thousands):

2010 2009 2008

Discontinued operations:

Revenues from rental property $23487 $ 13545 $13,863
Rental property expenses (7,508) (3,767)  (3,336)
Depreciation and amortization (9,163) (1,169)  (3,402)
Interest expense (6,072) (1,860) (509)
Income from other real estate investments 20,809 10 2,472
Other expense, net (767) (2,159)  (1,080)
Income from discontinued operating properties, before income taxes 20,786 4,600 8,008
Loss on operating properties held-for-sale/sold, before income taxes (35) (174) (598)
Impairment of property carrying value (5,211 (13,300) —
Gain on disposition of operating properties, before income taxes 1,932 689 20018
Provision for income taxes (86) (231)  (1,268)
Income/(loss) from discontinued operating properties 17,386 (8416) 26,160
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (4,936) (159)  (1,306)

Income/(loss) from discontinued operations attributable to the Company  $12,450 $ (8575) $24,854

During 2010, the Company classified as held-for-sale 12 operating properties comprising approximately 0.5 million square feet of GLA.
The book value of each of these properties aggregated approximately $40.5 million, net of accumulated depreciation of $11.9 million. The
Company recognized impairment charges of approximately $5.2 million, before income tax benefit, on seven of these properties. The
individual book value of the five remaining properties did not exceed each of their estimated fair values less costs to sell. The Company'’s
determination of the fair value of the |2 properties, aggregating approximately $66.1 million, was based upon executed contracts of
sale with third parties. The Company completed the sale of eleven of these properties during 2010. The remaining property held-for-
sale has a book value of approximately $4.4 million and is included in Other Assets on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During 2008, the Company classified as held-for-sale four shopping center properties comprising approximately 0.2 million square
feet of GLA. The book value of each of these properties, aggregating approximately $16.2 million, net of accumulated depreciation of
approximately $11.3 million, did not exceed each of their estimated fair value. As a result, no adjustment of property carrying value
had been recorded. The Company's determination of the fair value for these properties, aggregating approximately $28.6 million, was
based upon executed contracts of sale with third parties less estimated selling costs. During 2009 and 2008, the Company reclassified
one property previously classified as held-for-sale into held-for-use and completed the sale of three of these properties.
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8. INVESTMENT AND ADVANCES IN REAL ESTATE JOINT VENTURES:

The Company and its subsidiaries have investments in and advances to various real estate joint ventures. These joint ventures are
engaged primarily in the operation of shopping centers which are either owned or held under long-term operating leases. The Company
and the joint venture partners have joint approval rights for major decisions, including those regarding property operations. As such,
the Company holds noncontrolling interests in these joint ventures and accounts for them under the equity method of accounting. The
table below presents joint venture investments for which the Company held an ownership interest at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in
millions, except number of properties):

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2010

Gross
Average Number Investment The The Company’s
Ownership of Total In Real Company’s Share of
Venture Interest  Properties GLA Estate Investment  Income/(Loss)
Prudential Investment Program
(“KimPru” and “KimPru [I")DO® 15.009%* 65 1.3 $ 2915.1 $ 1453 $(18.4)
Kimco Income Opportunity Portfolio (“KIR")®) 45.00% 59 2.6 [,546.6 156.1 19.8
UBS Programs® 17.909%* 43 6.3 1,366.6 68.3 1.2
BIG Shopping Centers®®) 36.50%* 22 35 507.2 424 (12)
Canadian Pension Plan® 55.00% 5 2.1 378.1 [15.1 32
Kimco Income Fund® 15.20% 12 [.5 281.7 2.4 1.0
SEB Immobilien® 15.00% [ 1.5 300.1 34 0.8
Other Institutional Programs® Various 68 4.9 838.1 35.1 0.1
RioCan 50.00% 45 9.3 1,380.7 61.5 18.6
Intown @ 138 N/A 820.1 99.4 (6.0)
Latin America Various 130 17.3 L1911 344.8 104
Other Joint Venture Programs Various 91 3.1 2,029.3 299.0 26.2
Total 689 834  $135547 $1,382.8 $ 557
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2009
Gross The
Average Number Investment The Company’s
Ownership of Total In Real Company’s Share of
Venture Interest Properties GLA Estate Investment  Income/(Loss)
KimPru and KimPru [I0¢®) 15.00%* 97® 16.3 $ 38485 $ 1358 $(36.1)
KIR® 45.00% 6l 13.0 1,573.3 164.8 14.0
UBS Programs® 17.90%* 43 6.2 1,366.5 71.3 0.4
PL Retail®® — — — — — 6.1
Kimco Income Fund® 15.20% 12 1.5 280.6 12.2 1
SEB Immobilien® 15.00% 10 |4 2757 — 1.2
Other Institutional Programs® Various 64 43 7262 353 37
RioCan 50.00% 45 9.3 1,299.4 784 5.5
Intown @ 138 N/A 814.0 [11.8 9.2)
Latin America Various 124 14.9 992.2 3277 10.9
Other Joint Venture Programs Various 80 10.3 [,691.9 166.3 (1.3)
Total 674 77.2 $12,868.3 $1,103.6 $6.3

* Ownership % is a blended rate

O This venture represents four separate joint ventures, with four separate accounts managed by Prudential Real Estate Investors (“PREI"), three of these ventures are collectively referred to as
KimPru and the remaining venture is referred to as KimPru Il.

@ During November 2009, the 85% owner in PL Retail sold its interest to the Company. At the time of the transaction, PL Retail indirectly owned through wholly-owned subsidiaries 21 shopping
centers, comprising approximately 5.2 million square feet of GLA, in which the Company held a 15% noncontrolling interest just prior to this transaction. The Company paid a purchase price
equal to approximately $175.0 million, after customary adjustments and closing prorations, which was equivalent to 85% of PL Retail LLC's gross asset value, which equaled approximately $825
million, less the assumption of $564 million of non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering 20 properties and $50 million of perpetual preferred stock.This transfer resulted in an aggregate net
gain of approximately $57.5 million of which the Company’s share was approximately $8.6 million. As a result of this transaction the Company now consolidates this entity.

© The Company manages these portfolios and, where applicable, earns acquisition fees, leasing commissions, property management fees, assets management fees and construction management fees.

® The Company'’s share of this investment is subject to fluctuation and is dependent upon property cash flows.

© During 2010 KimPru and KimPru Il sold 24 properties to four new joint ventures, in which the Company has a noncontrolling ownership interest, including the BIG Shopping Centers joint venture.
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The table below presents debt balances within the Company's joint venture investments for which the Company held noncontrolling
ownership interests at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in millions, except average remaining term):

As of December 31, 2010 As of December 31, 2009
Average Average

Mortgages Average Remaining Mortgages Average Remaining

and Notes Interest Term and Notes Interest Term
Venture Payable Rate (months)** Payable Rate (months)**
KimPru and KimPru I $1,388.0 5.56% 59.8 $2,287.0 4.98% 63.3
KIR 954.7 6.54% 53.1 991.5 6.80% 514
UBS Programs 733.6 5.70% 54.8 7464 5.70% 66.8
BIG Shopping Centers 407.2 5.47% 72.5 — — —
Canadian Pension Plan 168.7 4.45% 393 — — —
Kimco Income Fund 167.8 5.45% 44.7 169.2 5.47% 514
SEB Immobilien 193.5 5.67% 714 193.5 5.67% 834
RioCan 968.5 5.84% 520 899.4 5.94% 61.1
Intown 628.0 5.19% 46.8 633.9 5.17% 63.7
Other Institutional Programs 550.8 5.08% 56.6 4532 5.63% 65.7
Other Joint Venture Programs 1,801.8 5.08% 209 1,582.6 531% 599

Total $7962.6 $7956.7

**Average Remaining term includes extensions

PRUDENTIAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM—

During 2010, KimPru recognized impairment charges of approximately $139.7 million relating to |7 properties that were classified as
held-for-sale where the aggregate net book value of the properties exceeded the aggregate estimated selling price. The Company had
previously taken other-than-temporary impairment charges on its investment in KimPru and had allocated these impairment charges to
the underlying assets of the KimPru joint ventures including a portion to these operating properties. As a result, the Company’s share
of the $139.7 million impairment loss was approximately $11.5 million which is included in Equity in income of joint ventures, net on the
Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations. All 17 of these properties were sold during 2010.

In addition to the impairment charges above, KimPru recognized impairment charges during 2010 of approximately $22.0 million,
based on sales prices for nine properties that were classified as held-for-sale. The Company’s share of this impairment charge was
approximately $3.3 million, excluding an income tax benefit of approximately $1.8 million. The $3.3 million impairment charge is included
in Equity in income of joint ventures, net on the Company’'s Consolidated Statements of Operations. Eight of these properties were
sold during 2010.

During 2009 and 2008, the Company recognized impairment charges of $28.5 million and $15.5 million, respectively, against the
carrying value of its investment in KimPru, reflecting an other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of its investment resulting from
a further decline in the real estate markets.

In addition to the impairment charges above, KimPru recognized impairment charges during 2009 and 2008 of approximately
$223.1 million and $74.6 million, respectively, relating to (i) certain properties held by an unconsolidated joint venture within the KimPru
joint venture based on estimated sales prices and (ii) a write-down against the carrying value of an unconsolidated joint venture, reflecting
an other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of its investment resulting from a decline in the real estate markets. The Company'’s
share of these impairment charges were approximately $33.4 million, before income tax benefits of approximately $11.0 million, and
approximately $11.2 million, before income tax benefit of approximately $4.5 million, during 2009 and 2008, respectively, which is
included in Equity in income of joint ventures, net on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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During 2010, KimPru Il sold an operating property, located in Pittsburgh, PA to the Company through the assumption and modi-
fication of the mortgage debt encumbering the property. The property had a net book basis of approximately $32.2 million and non-
recourse mortgage debt of approximately $22.7 million which bore interest at 5.54% and was scheduled to mature in 2016. As a result
of this transaction, KimPru Il recognized an impairment charge of approximately $10.1 million. The Company had previously taken an
other-than-temporary impairment charge on its investment in KimPru Il and had allocated this impairment charge to the underlying
assets of the KimPru Il joint venture including a portion to this operating property. As a result, the Company's share of the $10.1 million
impairment loss is approximately $1.3 million, excluding an income tax benefit of approximately $0.5 million and is included in Equity in
income of joint ventures, net on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In addition to the impairment charge above, KimPru Il recognized impairment charges during 2010, aggregating approximately
$15.5 million for three properties that were classified as held-for-sale. KimPru II's determination of the fair value for each of these prop-
erties, aggregating approximately $32.4 million, was based upon executed contracts of sale with third parties. The Company’s share
of the $15.5 million impairment loss is approximately $2.1 million, excluding an income tax benefit of approximately $1.3 million and is
included in Equity in income of joint ventures, net on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During June 2009, the Company recognized an impairment charge of $4.0 million, against the carrying value of KimPru Il. This
impairment reflects an other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of its investment resulting from a decline in the real estate markets.

In addition to the impairment charges above, during 2009, KimPru Il recognized impairment charges relating to two proper-
ties aggregating approximately $11.4 million based on estimated sales price. The Company's share of these impairment charges were
approximately $1.7 million, which is included in Equity in income of joint ventures, net on the Company's Consolidated Statements of
Operations. These operating properties were sold, in separate transactions, during 2009 for an aggregate sales price of approximately
$43.5 million, which resulted in no gain or loss.

The Company’s estimated fair values relating to the impairment assessments above were based upon sales prices or, where applicable,
discounted cash flow models that include all estimated cash inflows and outflows over a specified holding period and where applicable,
any estimated debt premiums. Capitalization rates, discount rates and credit spreads utilized in these models are based upon rates that
the Company believed to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respective properties.

KIMCO INCOME OPERATING PARTNERSHIP, L.P. (“KIR™)—

During 2010, KIR recognized an impairment charge relating to one operating property and one out-parcel aggregating approximately
$6.7 million. The Company’s share of these impairment charges was approximately $3.0 million, which is included in Equity in income of joint
ventures, net on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. During 2010, the operating property was foreclosed on by the
third party mortgage lender, at which time KIR recognized a gain on early extinguishment of debt of approximately $5.8 million, the
Company’s share of which was $2.6 million which is included in Equity in income of joint ventures, net on the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

During 2009, KIR recognized an impairment charge relating to one property of approximately $5.0 million. The Company’s share
of this impairment charge was approximately $2.3 million which is included in Equity in income of joint ventures, net on the Company'’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations. During 2010 the third party mortgage lender foreclosed on this operating property, at which
time KIR recognized a gain on early extinguishment of debt of approximately $4.3 million, the Company'’s share of which was $2.0 million
which is included in Equity in income of joint ventures, net on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

KIR's estimated fair value relating to the impairment assessments above were based upon discounted cash flow models
that included all estimated cash inflows and outflows over a specified holding period. Capitalization rates and discount rates utilized in
this model were based upon rates that the Company believed to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respec-
tive property.
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OTHER REAL ESTATE JOINT VENTURES—

During 2010, the Company, in separate transactions, amended two of its Canadian preferred equity investment agreements to
restructure the investments as pari passu joint ventures in which the Company holds noncontrolling interests. These investments hold
retail operating properties which are encumbered by an aggregate Canadian denominated (“CAD") $187.4 million (approximately USD
$181.9 million) in mortgage debt which bear interest at rates ranging from Canadian LIBOR plus 4.0% (4.26% at December 31, 2010) to
6.15% and have scheduled maturities ranging from 2011 to 2014. As a result of these transactions, the Company continues to account
for its aggregate net investment of CAD $76.6 million (approximately USD $74.3 million) in these joint ventures under the equity
method of accounting and includes these investments in Investments and advances to real estate joint ventures within the Company's
Consolidated Balance Sheets (see Note 9).

The Company recognized impairment charges of approximately $7.0 million and approximately $12.2 million, for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, against the carrying value of its investments in various unconsolidated joint ventures. The
impairment charges recognized in 2010 resulted from properties, within various unconsolidated joint ventures, being classified as held-
for-sale. The fair values of these properties were based upon executed contracts of sale with third parties. The impairment charges
recognized in 2009 reflect an other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of various investments resulting from declines in the real
estate market. Estimated fair values were based upon discounted cash flow models that include all estimated cash inflows and outflows
over a specified holding period and where applicable, any estimated fair value debt premiums. Capitalization rates, discount rates and
credit spreads utilized in these models were based upon rates that the Company believes to be within a reasonable range of current
market rates for the respective properties.

Summarized financial information for the Company's investment and advances to real estate joint ventures is as follows (in millions):

December 31,
2010 2009
Assets:
Real estate, net $ 11,8504 $ 11,4080
Other assets 825.0 727.5

$ 126754 $ 12,1355

Liabilities and Partners/Members’ Capital:

Notes payable $ (1893) $ (BI7.)
Mortgages payable (7,683.5) (7,331.3)
Construction loans (89.9) (108.3)
Other liabilities (390.3) (340.2)
Noncontrolling interests (36.1) (35.3)
Partners/Members’ capital (4,286.3) (3,803.3)

$(12,6754) $(12,1355)

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Revenues from rental property $ 14276 $ 14204 F 14971
Operating expenses (495.6) (488.2) (512.1)
Interest expense (440.6) (447.2) (481.2)
Depreciation and amortization (390.8) (383.5) (4154)
Impairments (204.1) (86.0) —
Other expense, net (22.9) (24.0) (95.2)

(1,554.0)  (1,4289)  (1,503.9)
(Loss)/income from continuing operations (1264) (8.5) (6.8)
Discontinued Operations:
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations 1.2 (172.6) 27.0
Gain on dispositions of properties 8.8 799 339
Net (loss)/income $ (1164) $ (101.2) % 54. 1
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Other liabilities included in the Company’s accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets include accounts with certain real estate
joint ventures totaling approximately $24.7 million and $25.5 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company and
its subsidiaries have varying equity interests in these real estate joint ventures, which may differ from their proportionate share of net
income or loss recognized in accordance with GAAP.

The Company’s maximum exposure to losses associated with its unconsolidated joint ventures is primarily limited to its carrying
value in these investments. Generally such investments contain operating properties and the Company has determined these entities
do not contain the characteristics of a VIE. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company's carrying value in these investments
approximated $1.4 billion and $1.1 billion, respectively.

9. OTHER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS:

PREFERRED EQUITY CAPITAL—

The Company previously provided capital to owners and developers of real estate properties through its Preferred Equity pro-
gram. As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s net investment under the Preferred Equity program was approximately $387.7 million
relating to 570 properties, including 399 net leased properties described below. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company
earned approximately $37.6 million from its preferred equity investments, including $9.7 million in profit participation earned from nine
capital transactions. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company earned approximately $30.4 million, including $2.5 million of
profit participation earned from five capital transactions. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company earned approximately
$66.8 million, including $24.6 million of profit participation earned from five capital transactions.

Included in the capital transactions described above for the year ended December 31, 2010, was the sale of 50% of the Company’s pre-
ferred equity investment in a Canadian retail operating property for approximately CAD $31.9 million (approximately USD $31.0 million).
In connection with this sale the Company (i) recognized profit participation of approximately CAD $1.7 million (approximately USD
$1.6 million) and (i) amended its preferred equity agreement to restructure the Company’s remaining investment as a pari passu joint
venture investment. Additionally, during 2010, the Company amended its preferred equity agreement to restructure another Canadian
investment that holds investments in |2 retail properties as a pari passu joint venture investment. As a result of the amendments made
to these preferred equity agreements, the Company continues to account for both of these investments under the equity method of
accounting and includes these investments in Investments and advances to real estate joint ventures within the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets (see Note 8).

Included in the capital transactions described above for the year ended December 31, 2008, was the sale of the Company’s preferred
equity investment in an operating property to its partner for approximately $29.5 million. The Company provided seller financing to
the partner for approximately CAD $24.0 million (approximately USD $23.5 million), which bears interest at a rate of 8.5% per annum
and has a maturity date of June 2013. The Company evaluated this transaction pursuant to the provisions of the FASB’s real estate sales
guidance and accordingly, recognized profit participation of approximately $10.8 million.

During 2007, the Company invested approximately $81.7 million of preferred equity capital in an entity which was comprised of
403 net leased properties which consist of 30 master leased pools with each pool leased to individual corporate operators. Each master
leased pool is accounted for as a direct financing lease. These properties consist of a diverse array of free-standing restaurants, fast food
restaurants, convenience and auto parts stores. As of December 31, 2010, the remaining properties were encumbered by third party
loans aggregating approximately $403.2 million with interest rates ranging from 5.08% to 10.47% with a weighted-average interest rate
of 9.3% and maturities ranging from one year to |1 years.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company recognized an impairment charge of approximately $3.8 million against
the carrying value of its preferred equity investment in an operating property located in Tucson, AZ based on its estimated sales price.
During 2010, the Company acquired the remaining ownership interest in this operating property for a purchase price of approximately
$90.0 million, including the assumption of $81.0 million in non-recourse mortgage debt, which bears interest at a rate of 6.08% and is
scheduled to mature in 2016. During August 2010, this property was fully disposed of (see Note 5).
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Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company recognized an impairment charge of approximately $5.0 million
against the carrying value of two of its preferred equity investments, based on estimated sales prices. During 2010, the Company sold
one of these preferred equity investments for a sales price of approximately $0.3 million.

During 2009, the Company recognized impairment charges of $49.2 million, primarily against the carrying value of 16 preferred
equity investments, which hold 29 properties, reflecting an other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of its investment resulting
from a decline in the real estate markets.

The Company’s estimated fair values relating to the impairment assessments above were based upon sales prices, where applicable,
or discounted cash flow models that include all estimated cash inflows and outflows over a specified holding period and where applicable,
any estimated debt premiums. Capitalization rates, discount rates and credit spreads utilized in these models were based upon rates
that the Company believes to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respective properties.

Summarized financial information relating to the Company’s preferred equity investments is as follows (in millions):

December 31,
2010 2009
Assets:
Real estate, net $1,406.7  $2,000.9
Other assets 794.7 8614

$22014  $2,862.3

Liabilities and Partners/Members’ Capital:

Notes and mortgages payable $1,6695 $2,121.3
Other liabilities 612 68.1
Partners/Members’ capital 470.7 6729

$22014  $2862.3

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Revenues from rental property $2784 $3119 $ 3133

Operating expenses (73.2) (96.7)  (100.1)
Interest expense (1040) (1125) (120.0)
Depreciation and amortization (52.3) (67.7) (63.7)
Impairment® — (20.0) —
Other expense, net (6.3) (9.7) (1.7)

42.6 53 27.8
Gain on disposition of properties 137 1.7 8.5
Net income $ 563 $ 70 $ 363

@ Represents impairments on two master leased pools due to a decline in fair market values.

The Company's maximum exposure to losses associated with its preferred equity investments is primarily limited to its invested
capital. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company's invested capital in its preferred equity investments approximated $387.7 million
and $520.8 million, respectively.

OTHER—
During 2010, the Company recognized an other-than-temporary impairment charge of approximately $2.1 million against the carry-

ing value of an investment which owns an operating property located in Manchester, NH and Nashua, NH. The Company determined
the fair value of its investment based on an estimated sales price of the operating properties.
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INVESTMENT IN RETAIL STORE LEASES—

The Company has interests in various retail store leases relating to the anchor store premises in neighborhood and community
shopping centers. These premises have been sublet to retailers who lease the stores pursuant to net lease agreements. Income from
the investment in these retail store leases during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, was approximately $1.6 million,
$0.8 million and $2.7 million, respectively. These amounts represent sublease revenues during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008, of approximately $5.9 million, $5.2 million and $7.1 million, respectively, less related expenses of $4.3 million, $4.4 million and
$4.4 million, respectively. The Company’s future minimum revenues under the terms of all non-cancelable tenant subleases and future
minimum obligations through the remaining terms of its retail store leases, assuming no new or renegotiated leases are executed for
such premises, for future years are as follows (in millions): 2011, $5.2 and $3.4; 2012, $4.1 and $2.6; 2013, $3.8 and $2.3; 2014, $2.9 and
$1.7, 2015, $2.1 and $1.3, and thereafter, $2.8 and $1.6, respectively.

Leveraged Lease—

During June 2002, the Company acquired a 90% equity participation interest in an existing leveraged lease of 30 properties. The
properties are leased under a long-term bond-type net lease whose primary term expires in 2016, with the lessee having certain
renewal option rights. The Company’s cash equity investment was approximately $4.0 million. This equity investment is reported as a
net investment in leveraged lease in accordance with the FASB's Lease guidance.

As of December 31, 2010, 18 of these properties were sold, whereby the proceeds from the sales were used to pay down the
mortgage debt by approximately $31.2 million and the remaining |2 properties were encumbered by third-party non-recourse debt of
approximately $33.4 million that is scheduled to fully amortize during the primary term of the lease from a portion of the periodic net
rents receivable under the net lease.

As an equity participant in the leveraged lease, the Company has no recourse obligation for principal or interest payments on the
debt, which is collateralized by a first mortgage lien on the properties and collateral assignment of the lease. Accordingly, this obligation
has been offset against the related net rental receivable under the lease.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company’s net investment in the leveraged lease consisted of the following (in millions):

2010 2009
Remaining net rentals $ 376 $ 44.1
Estimated unguaranteed residual value 31.7 317
Non-recourse mortgage debt (30.1)  (345)
Unearned and deferred income (342) (370)
Net investment in leveraged lease $ 50 $ 43

10. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES:

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES—

Included within the Company’s consolidated operating properties at December 31, 2010 are four consolidated entities that are
VIEs and for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. All of these entities have been established to own and operate real estate
property. The Company’s involvement with these entities is through its majority ownership of the properties. These entities were
deemed VIEs primarily based on the fact that the voting rights of the equity investors are not proportional to their obligation to absorb
expected losses or receive the expected residual returns of the entity and substantially all of the entity’s activities are conducted on
behalf of the investor which has disproportionately fewer voting rights. The Company determined that it was the primary beneficiary
of these VIEs as a result of its controlling financial interest. During 2010, the Company sold two consolidated VIE's which the Company
was the primary beneficiary.

68



KIMCO REALTY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

At December 31, 2010, total assets of these VIEs were approximately $112.5 million and total liabilities were approximately
$21.8 million, including $13.6 million of non-recourse mortgage debt. The classification of these assets is primarily within real estate
and the classification of liabilities is primarily within mortgages payable and noncontrolling interests in the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

The majority of the operations of these VIEs are funded with cash flows generated from the properties. One of the VIEs is encum-
bered by third party non-recourse mortgage debt of approximately $13.6 million. The Company has not provided financial support to
any of these VIEs that it was not previously contractually required to provide, which consists primarily of funding any capital expenditures,
including tenant improvements, which are deemed necessary to continue to operate the entity and any operating cash shortfalls that
the entity may experience.

CONSOLIDATED GROUND-UP DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS—

Included within the Company’s ground-up development projects at December 31, 2010 are four consolidated entities that are
VIEs and for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. These entities were established to develop real estate property to hold as
long-term investments. The Company's involvement with these entities is through its majority ownership of the properties. These enti-
ties were deemed VIEs primarily based on the fact that the equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its
activities without additional financial support. The initial equity contributed to these entities was not sufficient to fully finance the real
estate construction as development costs are funded by the partners throughout the construction period. The Company determined
that it was the primary beneficiary of these VIEs as a result of its controlling financial interest.

At December 31, 2010, total assets of these ground-up development VIEs were approximately $236.6 million and total liabilities
were approximately $2.7 million. The classification of these assets is primarily within real estate under development and the classification
of liabilities is primarily within accounts payable and accrued expenses in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Substantially all of the projected development costs to be funded for these ground-up development VIEs, aggregating approximately
$39.0 million, will be funded with capital contributions from the Company, when contractually obligated. The Company has not provided
financial support to the VIE that it was not previously contractually required to provide.

UNCONSOLIDATED GROUND-UP DEVELOPMENT—

Also included within the Company’s ground-up development projects at December 31, 2010, is an unconsolidated joint venture,
which is a VIE for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary. This joint venture was primarily established to develop real estate
property for long-term investment and was deemed a VIE primarily based on the fact that the equity investment at risk was not suf-
ficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional financial support as development costs are funded by the partners
throughout the construction period. The Company determined that it was not the primary beneficiary of this VIE based on the fact
that the Company has shared control of this entity along with the entity's partners and therefore does not have a controlling financial
interest in this VIE.

The Company's aggregate investment in this VIE was approximately $22.6 million as of December 31, 2010, which is included in
Real estate under development in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company's maximum exposure to loss as a result
of its involvement with this VIE is estimated to be $41.5 million, which primarily represents the Company’s current investment and
estimated future funding commitments of approximately $18.9 million. The Company has not provided financial support to this VIE that
it was not previously contractually required to provide. All future costs of development will be funded with capital contributions from
the Company and the outside partner in accordance with their respective ownership percentages.

PREFERRED EQUITY INVESTMENTS—

Included in the Company’s preferred equity investments are two unconsolidated investments that are VIEs and for which the Company
is not the primary beneficiary. These joint ventures were primarily established to develop real estate property for long-term investment
and were deemed VIEs primarily based on the fact that the equity investment at risk was not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its
activities without additional financial support. The initial equity contributed to these entities was not sufficient to fully finance the real estate
construction as development costs are funded by the partners throughout the construction period. The Company determined that it was
not the primary beneficiary of theseVIEs based on the fact that the Companydoes not have a controlling financial interest in these VIEs.
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The Company’s aggregate investment in these preferred equity VIEs was approximately $5.5 million as of December 31, 2010,
which is included in Other real estate investments in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company's maximum exposure
to loss as a result of its involvement with these VIEs is estimated to be $9.2 million, which primarily represents the Company's current
investment and estimated future funding commitments. The Company has not provided financial support to these VIEs that it was not
previously contractually required to provide. All future costs of development will be funded with capital contributions from the Company
and the outside partners in accordance with their respective ownership percentages.

Il. MORTGAGES AND OTHER FINANCING RECEIVABLES:

The Company has various mortgages and other financing receivables which consist of loans acquired and loans originated by the
Company. For a complete listing of the Company's mortgages and other financing receivables at December 31, 2010, see Financial
Statement Schedule IV included in this annual report on Form [0-K.

The following table reconciles mortgage loans and other financing receivables from January I, 2008 to December 31, 2010
(in thousands) :

2010 2009 2008
Balance at January | $131,332  $181,992 $153,847
Additions:
New mortgage loans L4l 8,316 86,247
Additions under existing mortgage loans 3,047 707 8,268
Foreign currency translation 3923 6,324 —
Capitalized loan costs — 60 605
Amortization of loan discounts 247 247 247
Deductions:
Loan repayments (24,860)  (43,578)  (48,633)
Loan foreclosures — (17,312) —
Loan impairments (700) (3,800) —
Charge off/foreign currency translation (3,101) — (15,630)
Collections of principal (2,726) (1,024) (2,279)
Amortization of loan costs (80) (600) (680)
Balance at December 3| $108493 $131,332 $181,992

The Company had three loans aggregating approximately $19.5 million which were in default as of December 31, 2010. The Company
assessed these loans and determined that the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral exceeded the respective carrying values
as of December 31, 2010.

As noted in the table above, during 2010, the Company recognized an impairment charge of approximately $0.7 million, against
the carrying value, including accrued interest, of a mortgage receivable that was in default. This impairment charge reflects a decrease
in the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral. The remaining balance on this mortgage receivable as of December 31, 2010 was
approximately $1.4 million. This impairment charge is reflected in Impairments—Marketable equity securities and other investments on
the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During 2009, the Company recognized impairment charges of approximately $3.8 million, against the carrying value of two mortgage
loans. Approximately $3.5 million of the $3.8 million of impairment charges was related to a mortgage receivable that was in default.
As a result, the Company began foreclosure proceedings on the underlying property during June 2009 and the process was completed
in the fourth quarter 2009. This impairment charge reflects the decrease in the estimated fair values of the real estate collateral. This
impairment charge is reflected in Impairments—Marketable equity securities and other investments on the Company's Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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12. MARKETABLE SECURITIES:

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2010

Amortized Gross Gross Estimated
Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losses  Fair Value
Available-for-sale:
Equity and debt securities $182,817 $20,29 | $ (17) $203,091
Held-to-maturity:
Other debt securities 20,900 548 (88) 21,360
Total marketable securities $203,717 $20,839 $ (105 $224,451
December 31, 2009
Amortized Gross Gross Estimated
Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losses  Fair Value
Available-for-sale:
Equity and debt securities $182,826 $ 4,896 $(21,629) $166,093
Held-to-maturity:
Other debt securities 43,500 |,454 (7,042) 37912
Total marketable securities $226,326 $ 6,350 $(28,671) $204,005

During February 2008, the Company acquired an aggregate $190 million Australian denominated (“AUD") (approximately
$170.1 million USD) convertible notes issued by a subsidiary of Valad Property Group (“Valad"), a publicly traded Australian company
listed on the Australian stock exchange that is a diversified, property fund manager, investor, developer and property investment banker
with property investments in Australia, Europe and Asia. The notes are guaranteed by Valad and bear interest at 9.5% payable semi-
annually in arrears. The notes are repayable after five years with an option for Valad to extend up to 18 months, subject to certain
interest rate and conversion price resets. The notes are convertible any time into publicly traded Valad securities at a price of AUD
$26.60. During 2010, the Company acquired an additional $10 million AUD (approximately $9.3 million USD) of convertible notes.

In accordance with the FASB's Derivative and Hedging guidance, the Company has bifurcated the conversion option within the Valad
convertible notes and has separately accounted for this option as an embedded derivative. The original host instrument is classified as
an available-for-sale security at fair value and is included in Marketable securities on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets with
changes in the fair value recorded through Stockholders” equity as a component of other comprehensive income. At December 31,
2010, the Company had an unrealized gain, including foreign currency adjustments, associated with these notes of approximately $6.0
million and at December 31, 2009, the Company had an unrealized loss, including foreign currency adjustments, associated with these
notes of approximately $21.6 million. Interest payments on the notes are current and all amounts due in accordance with contractual
terms are considered probable by the Company. During 2010, Valad made a principal payment of AUD $8.0 million (approximately
USD $7.9 million) and subsequent to December 31, 2010, Valad made additional principal payments aggregating approximately AUD
$7.0 million (approximately USD $6.9 million). The Company has the intent and ability to hold the notes to recover its investment,
which may be to its maturity. The embedded derivative is recorded at fair value and is included in Other assets on the Company's
Consolidated Balance Sheets with changes in fair value recognized in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations. The value
attributed to the embedded convertible option was approximately AUD $10.0 million, (approximately USD $10.2 million). As a result of
the fair value remeasurement of this derivative instrument during 2010 and 2009, there was an AUD $0.2 million (approximately USD
$0.2 million) unrealized decrease and an AUD $1.4 million (approximately USD $1.6 million) unrealized increase, respectively, in the fair
value of the convertible option. This unrealized increase is included in Other (expense)/income, net on the Company's Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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During 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded impairment charges of approximately $4.6 million, $26.1 million and
$118.4 million, respectively, before income tax benefits of approximately $0 million, $0 million and $25.7 million, respectively, due to
the decline in value of certain marketable securities and other investments that were deemed to be other-than-temporary. These impair-
ments were a result of the deterioration of the equity markets for these securities during their respective years and the uncertainty
of their future recoverability. Market value for the equity securities represents the closing price of each security as it appears on their
respective stock exchange at the end of the period.

At December 31, 2010, the Company’s investment in marketable securities was approximately $224.0 million which includes an
aggregate net unrealized gain of approximately $20.3 million relating to marketable equity and debt security investments.

At December 31, 2009, the Company’s investment in marketable securities was approximately $209.6 million which includes an
aggregate unrealized loss of approximately $21.6 million relating to the Valad marketable debt securities. At December 31, 2009 there
were no unrealized losses relating to marketable equity securities.

For each of the equity securities in the Company’s portfolio with unrealized losses, the Company reviews the underlying cause of
the decline in value and the estimated recovery period, as well as the severity and duration of the decline. In the Company's evaluation,
the Company considers its ability and intent to hold these investments for a reasonable period of time sufficient for the Company to
recover its cost basis.

During 2010, the Company received approximately $23.2 million in proceeds from the sale of certain marketable securities. The
Company recognized gross realizable gains of approximately $2.6 million and gross realizable losses of approximately $1.9 million from
sales of marketable securities during 2010.

During 2009, the Company received approximately $79.8 million in proceeds from the sale of certain marketable securities. The
Company recognized gross realizable gains of approximately $8.5 million and gross realizable losses of approximately $2.6 million from
sales of marketable securities during 2009.

During 2008, the Company received approximately $50.3 million in proceeds from the sale of certain marketable securities. The
Company recognized gross realizable gains of approximately $15.9 million and gross realizable losses of approximately $1.9 million from
its marketable securities during 2008.

As of December 31, 2010, the contractual maturities of Other debt securities classified as held-to-maturity are as follows: within one
year, $ 1.6 million; after one year through five years, $0.1 million; and after five years through 10 years, $9.2 million. Actual maturities
may differ from contractual maturities as issuers may have the right to prepay debt obligations with or without prepayment penalties.

3. NOTES PAYABLE:

MEDIUM TERM NOTES—

The Company has implemented a medium-term notes (“MTN") program pursuant to which it may, from time to time, offer for
sale its senior unsecured debt for any general corporate purposes, including (i) funding specific liquidity requirements in its business,
including property acquisitions, development and redevelopment costs and (ii) managing the Company’s debt maturities.

As of December 31, 2010, a total principal amount of approximately $1.2 billion in senior fixed-rate MTNs was outstanding. These
fixed-rate notes had maturities ranging from eight months to nine years as of December 31, 2010, and bear interest at rates ranging
from 4.30% to 5.98%. Interest on these fixed-rate senior unsecured notes is payable semi-annually in arrears. Proceeds from these
issuances were primarily used for the acquisition of neighborhood and community shopping centers, the expansion and improvement
of properties in the Company's portfolio and the repayment of certain debt obligations of the Company.

During 2010, the Company issued $300.0 million of unsecured Medium Term Notes (“MTNSs") which bear interest at a rate of 4.30%
and are scheduled to mature on February |, 2018. Proceeds from these MTNs were used to repay (i) the Company’s $100.0 million
5.304% MTNs which were scheduled to mature in February 2011 and (ii) the Company’s $150.0 million 7.95% MTNs which were
scheduled to mature in April 2011. The remaining proceeds were used for general corporate purposes. In connection with the optional
make-whole provisions relating to the prepayment of these notes, the Company incurred early extinguishment of debt charges aggre-
gating approximately $6.5 million.
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During April 2010, the Company issued $150.0 million CAD unsecured notes to a group of private investors at a rate of 5.99%
scheduled to mature in April 2018. Proceeds from these notes were used to repay the Company’s CAD $150.0 million 4.45% Series |
unsecured notes which matured in April 2010.

Additionally, during 2010, the Company repaid (i) the remaining $46.5 million balance on its 4.629% MTNs, which matured in May 2010
and (i) its $25.0 million 7.30% MTNs, which matured in September 2010.

As of December 31, 2009, a total principal amount of approximately $1.1 billion in senior fixed-rate MTNs was outstanding. These
fixed-rate notes had maturities ranging from five months to six years as of December 31, 2009, and bear interest at rates ranging from
4.62% to 5.98%. Interest on these fixed-rate senior unsecured notes is payable semi-annually in arrears. Proceeds from these issuances
were primarily used for the acquisition of neighborhood and community shopping centers, the expansion and improvement of proper-
ties in the Company’s portfolio and the repayment of certain debt obligations of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company repaid (i) its $20.0 million 7.56% Medium Term Note, which matured in
May 2009 and (i) its $25.0 million 7.06% Medium Term Note, which matured in July 2009.

Additionally during 2009, the Company repurchased in aggregate approximately $36.1 million in face value of its Medium Term
Notes and Fixed Rate Bonds for an aggregate discounted purchase price of approximately $33.7 million. These transactions resulted in
an aggregate gain of approximately $2.4 million.

SENIOR UNSECURED NOTES—

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had a total principal amount of approximately $1.2 billion in fixed-rate unsecured senior
notes. These fixed-rate notes had maturities ranging from one year to seven years as of December 31, 2010, and bear interest at fixed
rates ranging from 4.70% to 6.875%. Interest on these senior unsecured notes is payable semi-annually in arrears.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had a total principal amount of approximately $1.3 billion in fixed-rate unsecured senior
notes. These fixed-rate notes had maturities ranging from nine months to nine years as of December 31, 2009, and bear interest at
fixed rates ranging from 4.70% to 7.95%. Interest on these senior unsecured notes is payable semi-annually in arrears.

During September 2009, the Company issued $300.0 million of 10-year Senior Unsecured Notes at an interest rate of 6.875%
payable semi-annually in arrears. These notes were sold at 99.84% of par value. Net proceeds from the issuance were approximately
$297.3 million, after related transaction costs of approximately $0.3 million. The proceeds from this issuance were primarily used to repay
the Company's $220.0 million unsecured term loan described below. The remaining proceeds were used to repay certain construction
loans that were scheduled to mature in 2010.

During 2009, the Company repaid its $130.0 million 6.875% senior notes, which matured on February 10, 2009.

During September 2009, the Company entered into a fifth supplemental indenture, under the indenture governing its Medium
Term Notes and Senior Notes, which included the financial covenants for future offerings under this indenture that were removed by
the fourth supplemental indenture.

In accordance with the terms of the Indenture, as amended, pursuant to which the Company’s Senior Unsecured Notes, except
for the $300.0 million issued during April 2007 under the fourth supplemental indenture, have been issued, the Company is subject to
maintaining (a) certain maximum leverage ratios on both unsecured senior corporate and secured debt, minimum debt service coverage
ratios and minimum equity levels, (b) certain debt service ratios, (c) certain asset to debt ratios and (d) restricted from paying dividends in
amounts that exceed by more than $26.0 million the funds from operations, as defined, generated through the end of the calendar quarter
most recently completed prior to the declaration of such dividend; however, this dividend limitation does not apply to any distributions
necessary to maintain the Company’s qualification as a REIT providing the Company is in compliance with its total leverage limitations.

During April 2009, the Company obtained a two-year $220.0 million unsecured term loan with a consortium of banks, which accrued
interest at a spread of 4.65% to LIBOR (subject to a 2% LIBOR floor) or at the Company’s option, at a spread of 3.65% to the "ABR," as
defined in the Credit Agreement. The term loan was scheduled to mature in April 2011. The Company utilized proceeds from this term
loan to partially repay the outstanding balance under the Company’s U.S. revolving credit facility and for general corporate purposes.
During September 2009, the Company fully repaid the $220.0 million outstanding balance and terminated this loan.
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CREDIT FACILITIES—

During October 2007, the Company established a new $1.5 billion unsecured U.S. revolving credit facility (the “U.S. Credit Facility")
with a group of banks, which was scheduled to expire in October 2011. During October 2010, the Company exercised its one-year
extension option and the U.S. Credit Facility is now scheduled to expire in October 2012. The U.S. Credit Facility has made available
funds to finance general corporate purposes, including (i) property acquisitions, (ii) investments in the Company’s institutional real estate
management programs, (i) development and redevelopment costs, and (iv) any short-term working capital requirements. Interest on
borrowings under the U.S. Credit Facility accrues at LIBOR plus 0.425% and fluctuates in accordance with changes in the Company’s
senior debt ratings. As part of this U.S. Credit Facility, the Company has a competitive bid option whereby the Company may auction
up to $750.0 million of its requested borrowings to the bank group. This competitive bid option provides the Company the opportunity
to obtain pricing below the currently stated spread. A facility fee of 0.15% per annum is payable quarterly in arrears. As part of the
U.S. Credit Facility, the Company has a $200.0 million sub-limit which provides it the opportunity to borrow in alternative currencies
such as Pounds Sterling, Japanese Yen or Euros. Pursuant to the terms of the U.S. Credit Facility, the Company, among other things, is
subject to covenants requiring the maintenance of (i) maximum leverage ratios on both unsecured and secured debt, and (ii) minimum
interest and fixed coverage ratios. As of December 31, 2010, the U.S. Credit Facility had a balance of $123.2 million outstanding and
$23.7 million appropriated for letters of credit.

The Company also has a CAD $250.0 million unsecured credit facility with a group of banks. This facility bears interest at a rate of
CDOR plus 0.425%, subject to change in accordance with the Company’s senior debt ratings and was scheduled to mature March 2011.
During September 2010, the Company exercised its one-year extension option and the credit facility is now scheduled to expire in March
2012. A facility fee of 0.15% per annum is payable quarterly in arrears. This facility also permits U.S. dollar denominated borrowings.
Proceeds from this facility are used for general corporate purposes, including the funding of Canadian denominated investments. As of
December 31, 2010, there was no outstanding balance under this credit facility. There are approximately CAD $1.4 million (approxi-
mately USD $1.4 million) appropriated for letters of credit at December 31, 2010 (see Note 22, Commitments and Contingencies). The
Canadian facility covenants are the same as the U.S. Credit Facility covenants described above.

During March 2008, the Company obtained a MXP 1.0 billion term loan, which bears interest at a rate of 8.58%, subject to change
in accordance with the Company’s senior debt ratings, and is scheduled to mature in March 2013. The Company utilized proceeds
from this term loan to fully repay the outstanding balance of a MXP 500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility, which had been
terminated by the Company. Remaining proceeds from this term loan were used for funding MXP denominated investments. As of
December 31, 2010, the outstanding balance on this term loan was MXP 1.0 billion (approximately USD $80.9 million). The covenants
for this term loan are the same as the U.S. Credit Facility covenants described above

The scheduled maturities of all unsecured notes payable as of December 31, 2010, were approximately as follows (in millions): 2011,
$90.6; 2012, $348.3; 2013, $557.2; 2014, $295.2; 2015, $350.0; and thereafter, $1,341.1.

4. MORTGAGES PAYABLE:

During 2010, the Company (i) assumed approximately $144.8 million of individual non-recourse mortgage debt relating to the
acquisition of eight operating properties, including a decrease of approximately $4.4 million associated with fair value debt adjustments,
(i) assigned approximately $159.9 million in non-recourse mortgage debt encumbering three operating properties that were sold to
newly formed joint ventures in which the Company has noncontrolling interests, (iii) assigned approximately $81.0 million of non-recourse
mortgage debt encumbering an operating property that was sold to a third party and (iv) paid off approximately $226.0 million of
mortgage debt that encumbered 17 operating properties. In connection with the repayment of five of these mortgages, the Company
incurred early extinguishment of debt charges aggregating approximately $4.3 million.

During 2009, the Company (i) obtained 2| new non-recourse mortgages aggregating approximately $400.2 million, which bear
interest at rates ranging from 5.95% to 8.00% and have maturities ranging from five months to six years (ii) assumed approximately
$579.2 million of individual non-recourse mortgage debt relating to the acquisition of 22 operating properties, including an increase
of approximately $1.6 million of fair value debt adjustments and (iii) paid off approximately $437.7 million of individual non-recourse
mortgage debt that encumbered 24 operating properties.
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Mortgages payable, collateralized by certain shopping center properties and related tenants' leases, are generally due in monthly
installments of principal and/or interest which mature at various dates through 2031. Interest rates range from approximately LIBOR
(0.26% as of December 31, 2010) to 9.75% (weighted-average interest rate of 6.13% as of December 31, 2010). The scheduled principal
payments (excluding any extension options available to the Company) of all mortgages payable, excluding net unamortized fair value
debt adjustments of approximately $1.8 million, as of December 31, 2010, were approximately as follows (in millions): 2011, $56.7; 2012,
$204.6; 2013, $92.6; 2014, $224.8; 2015, $60.6 and thereafter; $405.2.

I15. CONSTRUCTION LOANS PAYABLE:

During 2010, the Company fully repaid two construction loans aggregating approximately $30.2 million and obtained a new 25-year
construction loan on a development project located in Chile with a total loan commitment of $48.3 million and bears interest at 10
year-BCU, as defined, plus 2.87% with a floor of 5.22%. As of December 31, 2010, total loan commitments on the Company’s three
construction loans aggregated approximately $82.5 million of which approximately $30.3 million has been funded. These loans have
scheduled maturities ranging from 2012 to 2035 and bear interest at rates ranging from LIBOR plus 1.90% (2.16% at December 31,
2010) to 5.79%. These construction loans are collateralized by the respective projects and associated tenants’ leases. The scheduled
maturities of all construction loans payable as of December 31, 2010, were approximately as follows (in millions): 2011, $0; 2012, $12.9;
2013, $2.9; 2014, $2.0; 2015, $0 and thereafter, $12.5.

During 2009, the Company fully repaid nine construction loans aggregating approximately $212.2 million. As of December 3l,
2009, total loan commitments on the Company's four remaining construction loans aggregated approximately $69.7 million of which
approximately $45.8 million has been funded. These loans have scheduled maturities ranging from [ months to 56 months (excluding
any extension options which may be available to the Company) and bear interest at rates ranging from 2.13% to 4.50% at December
31, 2009. These construction loans are collateralized by the respective projects and associated tenants’ leases.

16. NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS:

Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of equity that the Company does not own in those entities it consolidates as a result
of having a controlling interest or determined that the Company was the primary beneficiary of a VIE in accordance with the provisions
of the FASB's Consolidation guidance.

The Company accounts and reports for noncontrolling interests in accordance with the Consolidation guidance and the Distinguishing
Liabilities from Equity guidance issued by the FASB. The Company identifies its noncontrolling interests separately within the equity section
on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets. Units that are determined to be mandatorily redeemable are classified as Redeemable
noncontrolling interests and presented in the mezzanine section between Total liabilities and Stockholder’s equity on the Company's
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the Company and to the noncontrolling interests
are presented separately on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During 2006, the Company acquired seven shopping center properties located throughout Puerto Rico. These properties were
acquired through the issuance of approximately $158.6 million of non-convertible units, approximately $45.8 million of convertible units,
the assumption of approximately $131.2 million of non-recourse debt and $116.3 million in cash. Noncontrolling interests related to
these acquisitions was approximately $233.0 million of units, including premiums of approximately $13.5 million and a fair market value
adjustment of approximately $15.1 million (collectively, the “Units™). The Company is restricted from disposing of these assets, other
than through a tax free transaction until November 2015.
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The Units consisted of (i) approximately 81.8 million Preferred A Units par value $1.00 per unit, which pay the holder a return of
7.0% per annum on the Preferred A Par Value and are redeemable for cash by the holder at any time after one year or callable by the
Company any time after six months and contain a promote feature based upon an increase in net operating income of the properties
capped at a 10.0% increase, (ii) 2,000 Class A Preferred Units, par value $10,000 per unit, which pay the holder a return equal to LIBOR
plus 2.0% per annum on the Class A Preferred Par Value and are redeemable for cash by the holder at any time after November 30,
2010, (i) 2,627 Class B-1 Preferred Units, par value $10,000 per unit, which pay the holder a return equal to 7.0% per annum on the
Class B-I Preferred Par Value and are redeemable by the holder at any time after November 30, 2010, for cash or at the Company’s
option, shares of the Company's common stock, equal to the Cash Redemption Amount, as defined, (iv) 5,673 Class B-2 Preferred
Units, par value $10,000 per unit, which pay the holder a return equal to 7.0% per annum on the Class B-2 Preferred Par Value and are
redeemable for cash by the holder at any time after November 30, 2010, and (v) 640,001 Class C DownReit Units, valued at an issuance
price of $30.52 per unit which pay the holder a return at a rate equal to the Company’s common stock dividend and are redeemable
by the holder at any time after November 30, 2010, for cash or at the Company’s option, shares of the Company’s common stock equal
to the Class C Cash Amount, as defined.

The following units have been redeemed as of December 31, 2010:

Par Value

Units Redeemed
Type Redeemed  (in millions) Redemption Type
Preferred A Units 2,200,000 $ 22 Cash
Class A Preferred Units 2,000 $20.0 Cash
Class B-1 Preferred Units 2,438 $24.4 Cash
Class B-2 Preferred Units 5576 $55.8 Cash/Charitable Contribution
Class C DownReit Units 61,804 $ 19 Cash

Noncontrolling interest relating to the remaining units was $110.4 million and $113.1 million as of December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

During 2006, the Company acquired two shopping center properties located in Bay Shore and Centereach, NY. Included in
Noncontrolling interests was approximately $41.6 million, including a discount of $0.3 million and a fair market value adjustment of
$3.8 million, in redeemable units (the “Redeemable Units”), issued by the Company in connection with these transactions. The prop-
erties were acquired through the issuance of $24.2 million of Redeemable Units, which are redeemable at the option of the holder;
approximately $14.0 million of fixed rate Redeemable Units and the assumption of approximately $23.4 million of non-recourse debt.
The Redeemable Units consist of (i) 13,963 Class A Units, par value $1,000 per unit, which pay the holder a return of 5% per annum of
the Class A par value and are redeemable for cash by the holder at any time after April 3, 2011, or callable by the Company any time
after April 3, 2016, and (i) 647,758 Class B Units, valued at an issuance price of $37.24 per unit, which pay the holder a return at a rate
equal to the Company's common stock dividend and are redeemable by the holder at any time after April 3, 2007, for cash or at the
option of the Company for Common Stock at a ratio of I:I, or callable by the Company any time after April 3, 2026. The Company is
restricted from disposing of these assets, other than through a tax free transaction, until April 2016 and April 2026 for the Centereach,
NY, and Bay Shore, NY, assets, respectively.

During 2007, 30,000 units, or $I.1 million par value, of theClass BUnits were redeemed by the holder in cash at the option
of the Company. Noncontrolling interest relating to the units was $40.4 million and $40.3 million as of December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

Noncontrolling interests also includes 138,015 convertible units issued during 2006, by the Company, which were valued at approxi-
mately $5.3 million, including a fair market value adjustment of $0.3 million, related to an interest acquired in an office building located
in Albany, NY. These units are redeemable at the option of the holder after one year for cash or at the option of the Company for
the Company’s common stock at a ratio of I:l. The holder is entitled to a distribution equal to the dividend rate of the Company’s
common stock. The Company is restricted from disposing of these assets, other than through a tax free transaction, until January 2017.
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The following table presents the change in the redemption value of the Redeemable noncontrolling interests for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 (amounts in thousands):

2010 2009
Balance at January I, $100,304  $115,853
Unit redemptions (5,208)  (14,889)
Fair market value amortization |8 (571)
Other (54) (89)
Balance at December 31, $ 95060 $100,304

17. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

All financial instruments of the Company are reflected in the ac